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Investing in shares of our common stock is very speculative and involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider
the risks and uncertainties described below, the section of this Report entitled “ Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations ” and our financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Report
before investing in shares of our common stock. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face.
Additional risks and uncertainties that we are unaware of, or that we currently believe are not material, may also become
important factors that affect us. If any of the following risks occur, our business, operating results and prospects could be
materially harmed. In that event, the price of our common stock could decline, and you could lose part or all of your investment.
Summary Risk Factors Our business is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties that you should consider before
investing in our company. You should carefully consider all of the risks described more fully in the section titled “ Risk
Factors ” in this Annual Report on page 19, before deciding to invest in our common stock. If any of these risks actually
occurs, our business, financial condition and results of operations would likely be materially adversely affected.
Important factors that could cause actual results or events to differ materially, but are not limited to, the following: Risks
Related to Our Intellectual Property We depend on rights to Ketamir- 2 that are or will be licensed to us. We may not be
able to adequately protect our product candidates or our proprietary technology in the marketplace. If third parties
claim that our intellectual property, products, processes, or anything else used by us infringes upon their intellectual
property, our operating profits could be adversely affected. We have been granted a license to the right to develop
Ketamir- 2 in the United States in human and pet application, but we have not been granted a license to the rights to
patents covering Ketamir- 2 in foreign jurisdictions. Risks Related to Our Operations and Financial Condition We are an
early development- stage company with no revenues and our financial condition raises substantial doubt as to our ability to
continue as a going concern. Because we have a limited operating history, you may not be able to accurately evaluate our
operations. We will need to raise additional financing for the continuation of our operations. Our operating results may
fluctuate, which could have a negative impact on our ability to grow our client base, establish sustainable revenues and
succeed overall. We have yet to achieve a profit and will not achieve a profit in the near future, if at all. Certain of our
executive officers are not employed by us on a full- time basis. Conflicts of interest may arise between us and
MIRALOGZX. Risks Relating to Our Business and Our Industry Our future success will largely depend on the success of
Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 and any future product candidates, which development will require significant capital
resources and years of clinical development effort. We are dependent on our current and future product candidates,
some of which may not receive regulatory approval or be successfully commercialized. We may not successfully integrate
with SKNY following our potential upcoming acquisition Results of pre- clinical studies and earlier clinical trials are not
necessarily predictive indicators of future results. We have limited marketing experience, and we do not anticipate at
this time establishing a sales force or distribution and reimbursement capabilities, and we may not be able to successfully
commercialize any of our product candidates if they are approved in the future. We will need to further increase the size
and complexity of our organization in the future, and we may experience difficulties in managing our growth and
executing our growth strategy. We expect to face intense competition, often from companies with greater resources and
experience than we have. We have significant and increasing liquidity needs and may require additional funding. Risks
Related to Development and Regulatory Approval of Our Product Candidates Clinical trials for our product candidates
are expensive, time- consuming, uncertain, and susceptible to change, delay or termination. The results of clinical trials
are open to differing interpretations. Any failure by us to comply with existing regulations could harm our reputation
and operating results. The regulatory approval processes with the FDA are lengthy and inherently unpredictable. There
is a high rate of failure for drug candidates proceeding through clinical trials. Risks Related to Our Reliance Upon Third
Parties We rely on, and expect to continue to rely on, third parties to conduct clinical trials for our product candidates.
Our existing collaboration arrangements and any that we may enter into in the future may not be successful, which
could adversely affect our ability to develop and commercialize our product candidates. Risks Relating to the Ownership
of Our Common Stock Because of the speculative nature of an investment in our company, you may lose your entire
investment. Certain of our founding stockholders, plus our existing officers and directors, control a substantial interest
in us and thus may influence certain actions requiring stockholder vote We are an early development- stage company
with no revenues . As such, our losses from operations and negative cash flows as of December 31, 2623-2024 raise substantial
doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern absent obtaining adequate new debt or equity financings. As a very early
development- stage enterprise that is focused on the development of a pre- clinical pharmaceutical producl, we have generated
no revenue and have an accumulated deficit of § 29. 1 million through December 31, 2024, and $ 21. 3 million through
December 31, 2023 sand-$-9-—3-miton-through-Deeember34;2022- We have conglu(lud that substantial doubt exists about our
ability to continue as a going concern for the 12 months following the issuance of the financial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10- K. As of the issuance date of these financial statements, we believe that we have sufficient
resources available to support our development activities and business operations and timely satisfy our obligations as they
come due into the feurth-third quarter of 2624-2025 . We do not have sufficient cash and cash equivalents as ()l'lhc date of filing
this Annual Report on Form 10- K to support our operations for at least the 12 months following the issuance of the financial
statements. To alleviate the conditions that raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern, we plan to



secure additional capital, potentially through a combination of public or private equity offerings and strategic transactions,
including potential alliances and drug product collaborations, however, none of these alternatives are committed at this time.
There can be no assurance that we will be successful in obtaining sufficient funding on terms acceptable to us to fund continuing
operations, if at all, identify and enter into any strategic transactions that will provide the capital that we will require or achieve
the other strategies to alleviate the conditions that raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. If
none of these alternatives are available, or if available, are not available on satisfactory terms, we will not have sufficient cash
resources and liquidity to fund our business operations for at least the 12 months following the date the financial statements are
issued. The failure to obtain sufficient capital on acceptable terms when needed may require us to delay, limit, or eliminate the
development of business opportunities and our ability to achieve our business objectives and our competitiveness, and our
business, financial condition, and results of operations will be materially adversely affected. In addition, the perception that we
may not be able to continue as a going concern may cause others to choose not to deal with us due to concerns about our ability
to meet our contractual obligations. Additionally, we filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC to facilitate the
issuance of our common stock and entered into an At The Market Offering Agreement with Rodman & Renshaw LLC,
under which we may offer and sell shares of our Common Stock. The maximum amount eligible to be sold under the
ATM Agreement is $ 75 million. However, although we have received net proceeds of $ 3. 6 million during 2024 from the
ATM, there are no assurances that we will be successful in raising any additional capital from the ATM. The report of our
independent registered accounting firm on our audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024
contains an explanatory paragraph relating to our ability to continue as a going concern. The auditor’ s opinion on our audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 includes an explanatory paragraph stating that we have no
revenue and incurred recurring losses from operations and cash used in operations that raise substantial doubt about our
ability to continue as a going concern. While we believe that we will be able to obtain the capital we need to continue our
operations, there can be no assurances that we will be successful in these efforts or will be able to resolve our liquidity issues or
eliminate our operating losses. If we are unable to obtain sufficient funding, we would need to significantly reduce our operating
plans and curtail some or all of our development efforts. Accordingly, our business, prospects, financial condition, and results of
operations will be materially and adversely affected, and we may be unable to continue as a going concern. If we seek additional
financing to fund our business activities in the future and there remains substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
concern, investors or other financing sources may be unwilling to provide additional funding on commercially reasonable terms
or at all. We Beeause-we-have-atimited-operatinghistory,-yorrmay not be able-to-acenrately-evaluate-successful in the
integration of our potential acquisition of SKNY. As discussed earlier in this Annual Report of Form 10- K, we have
entered into a binding letter of intent to acquire SKNY. Integrating SKNY” s business, processes, and operations presents
new risks to the business that must be managed carefully. If not, it could have a material impact on operations and cause
results to differ significantly from expectations. Acquisitions involve a number of risks and difficulties, including: (i)
expansion into new markets and business ventures; (ii) the requirement to understand local business practices; (iii) the
diversion of management’ s attention to the assimilation of acquired operations and personnel; (iv) being bound by client
or vendor contracts with unfavorable terms; and (v) potential adverse effects on a company’ s operating results for
various reasons, including, but not limited to, the following items: (a) the inability to achieve financial targets; (b) the
inability to achieve certain operating goals and synergies; (c) costs incurred to exit current or acquired contracts or
activities; (d) costs incurred to service any acquisition debt; and (e) the amortization or impairment of intangible assets.
Due to the multiple risks and difficulties associated with any acquisition, there can be no assurance that we will be
successful in achieving our expected strategic, operating, and financial goals for any such acquisition . We have had
limited operations to date. Therefore, we have a limited operating history upon which to evaluate the merits of investing in our
company. Potential investors should be aware of the difficulties normally encountered by new companies and the high rate of
failure of such enterprises. The likelihood of success must be considered in light of the problems, expenses, difficulties,
complications, and delays encountered in connection with the operations that we plan to undertake. These potential problems
include, but are not limited to, unanticipated problems relating to the ability to generate sufficient cash flow to operate our
business, and additional costs and expenses that may exceed current estimates. We expect to continue to incur significant losses
into the foreseeable future. We recognize that if the effectiveness of our business plan is not forthcoming, we will not be able to
continue business operations. There is no history upon which to base any assumption as to the likelihood that we will prove
successful, and it is doubtful that we will generate any operating revenues or ever achieve profitable operations. If we are
unsuccessful in addressing these risks, our business will most likely fail. We have significant and increasing liquidity needs and
will require additional funding. Our operations have consumed substantial amounts of cash since inception. For the year ended
December 31, 2023-2024 , we reported a net operating cash outflow of $ 45 . 6 million and a net cash inflow from investing
financing activities of $ 83 . 8 million. For the year ended December 31, 20222023 , we reported a net operating cash outflow
of $ 4. 5 —=6-million and a net cash inflow from nvesting-financing activities of $ 3-8 . +8 million. Research and development,
and general and administrative expenses, and cash used for operations will continue to be significant and may increase
substantially in the future in connection with new research and development initiatives and continued product commercialization
efforts. We may need to raise additional capital to fund our operations, continue to conduct clinical trials to support potential
regulatory approval of marketing applications and to fund commercialization of our products. The amount and timing of our
future funding requirements will depend on many factors, including, but not limited to: e the timing of FDA approval, if any; e
the DEA continuing to classify Ketamir- 2 and-WHRALa-as a substance not subject to CSA; e the DEA continuing to classify
granting-the-elassifieationof-MIRA- 55 as a substance not subject to CSA; e the timing and amount of revenue from sales of our
products, or revenue from grants or other sources; ® the rate of progress and cost of our clinical trials and other product
development programs; @ costs of establishing or outsourcing sales, marketing, and distribution capabilities; ® costs and timing



of completion of expanded in- house manufacturing facilities as well as any outsourced commercial manufacturing supply
arrangements for our product candidates; ® costs of filing, prosecuting, defending, and enforcing any patent claims and other
intellectual property rights associated with our product candidates; ® costs of operating as a U. S. public company; e the effect
of competing technological and market developments; ® personnel, facilities, and equipment requirements; and e the terms and
timing of any additional collaborative, licensing, co- promotion, or other arrangements that we may establish. While we expect
to fund our future capital requirements from a number of sources including existing cash balances, future cash flows from
operations and the proceeds from further public offerings, we cannot assure you that any of these funding sources will be
available to us on favorable terms, or at all. Further, even if we can raise funds from all of the above sources, the amounts raised
may not be sufficient to meet our future capital requirements. Operating results may vary significantly in future periods. Our
operating and financial results are likely to fluctuate significantly in the future. Our operating and financial results are
unpredictable and may fluctuate, for among other reasons, due to: ® our achievement of product development objectives and
milestones; @ clinical trial enrollment and expenses; ® research and development expenses; and e the timing and nature of
contract manufacturing and contract research payments. In addition, a high portion of our costs are determined on an annual
basis, due in part to our significant research and development costs. Thus, increases in our costs could disproportionately affect
financial results in a quarter. Other factors, including non- cash expenses associated with financing activity, could also lead to
fluctuations in our results of operations. Because of these factors, our operating and financial results in one or more future
quarters may fail to meet the expectations of securities analysts or investors, which could cause our share price to decline. We
have yet to generate revenues or achieve a profit and may not generate revenue or achieve a profit for many years, if at all. We
have not yet produced any revenues or profit and may not for many years, if at all. Our ability to generate revenue is dependent
on the receipt of regulatory approval of our product candidates, which will take years to achieve and may not be obtained. We
therefore cannot assure you we will be able to ever generate sufficient revenue to pay for our expenses or achieve profitability.
Our ability to continue as a going concern in the future is dependent upon raising capital from financing transactions and
keeplng operatlng expenses below our revenue levels in order to achieve positive cash flows, none of which can be assured =

0 A . MIRALOGX licenses us the patent pending rights to KETAMIR-
2. MlRALOGX isa separate 1ntellectual property development company owned by the Bay Shore Trust. The Bay Shore Trust is
also our largest stockholder. The interests of MIRALOGX are 100 % owned by the Bay Shore Trust. Our relationship with
MIRALOGX and the Bay Shore Trust may create, or may create the appearance of, conflicts of interest when we are faced with
decisions that could have different implications for MIRALOGX than the decisions have for us. Furthermore, in light of the
license agreement that we have with MIRALOGLX, if a dispute were to arise between MIRALOGX and us relating to our past or
future relationship with MIRALOGX or with respect to intellectual property matters, these potential conflicts of interest may
make it more difficult for us to favorably resolve such disputes. Certain of our executive officers will not be employed by us on
a full- time basis. Erez Aminov, our Chairmanand-Chicf Executive Officer and Chairman of our board of directors , wiltis
not be-employed by our company on a full- time basrs As intended to be provrded in h1s fespeeﬁve—employment agreernent
with our company, he works on a part- M- v y
time and as- needed basis te—t-he—a-f-faﬁs—e-ﬁetﬁeﬂmp&ny— Because he does -t-h-ts—efﬁeer—wrl—l—not Work full tlrne for our company,
instances may occur where he may not be immediately available to provide solutions to problems or address concerns that arise
in the course of us conducting our business and thus adversely affect our business. In addition, he can become subject to
conflicts of interest because he devotes part of his working time to other business endeavors and has-may have responsibilities
to other entities. Although stel-effieer-Mr. Aminov is aware of his duty-duties and accountability to our company and to
applicable laws and policies relating to corporate opportunity and conflicts of interest, such conflicts of interest may include
deciding how much time to devote to our affairs, as well as what business opportunities should be presented to us. Risks
Relating-Michelle Yanez, our Chief Financial Officer, is not employed by our company on a full- time basis. As intended
to ©ur-be provided in her employment agreement with our company, she works on a part- time and as- needed basis.
Because she does not work full time for our company, instances may occur where she may not be immediately available
to provide solutions to problems or address concerns that arise in the course of us conducting our Busirtess-business and
OurIndustry-thus adversely affect our business. In addition, she can become subject to conflicts of interest because she
devotes part of her working time to other business endeavors and may have responsibilities to other entities. Although
Mrs. Yanez is aware of her duties and accountability to our company and to applicable laws and policies relating to
corporate opportunity and conflicts of interest, such conflicts of interest may include deciding how much time to devote
to our affairs, as well as what business opportunities should be presented to us. Our future viability will largely depend on
the positive development of Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55, and any future product candidates, which development will require
significant capital resources and years of clinical development effort. We currently have no drug products on the market, and all
of our drug development projects are in a pre- clinical stage of development or moving into clinical stages . Our business
depends almost entirely on the successful pre- clinical and clinical development, FDA regulatory approval, and
commercialization of our product candidates, principally Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55. Investors need to be aware that substantial
additional investments including pre- clinical and clinical development and FDA regulatory submission and approval efforts
will be required before we are permitted to undertake clinical studies and market and commercialize our product candidates, if
ever. It may be several years before we can commence clinical trials, if ever. Any clinical trial will be subject to extensive and
rigorous review and regulation by numerous government authorities in the United States and other jurisdictions where we
intend, if approved, to market our product candidates. Before obtaining regulatory approvals for any of our product candidates,
we must demonstrate through pre- clinical testing and clinical trials that the product candidate is safe and effective for its
specific application. This process can take many years and may include post- marketing studies and surveillance, which would
require the expenditure of substantial resources. Of the large number of drugs in development for approval in the United States




(and the rest of the world), only a small percentage will successfully complete the FDA regulatory approval financing to fund
our planned research, development, and clinical programs, we cannot assure you that any of our product candidates will be
successfully developed or commercialized. We may be unable to formulate or scale up any or all of our product candidates.
There is no guarantee that any of the product candidates will be or are able to be manufactured or produced in a manner to meet
the FDA” s criteria for product stability, content uniformity and all other criteria necessary for product approval in the United
States and other markets. Any of our product candidates may fail to achieve their specified endpoints in clinical trials.
Furthermore, product candidates may not be approved even if they achieve their specified endpoints in clinical trials. The FDA
may disagree with our trial design and our interpretation of data from clinical trials or may change the requirements for approval
even after it has reviewed and commented on the design for our clinical trials. The FDA may also approve a drug for fewer or
more limited indications than we request or may grant approval contingent on the performance of costly post- approval clinical
trials (i. e., Phase IV trials). In addition, the FDA may not approve the labeling claims that we believe are necessary or desirable
for the successful commercialization of our product candidates. If we are unable to obtain regulatory approval for Ketamir- 2
and MIRA- 55 within the timeline we anticipate, we will not be able to execute our business strategy effectively and our ability
to substantially grow our revenues will be limited, which would have a material adverse 1mpact on our long term bus1ness
results of 0perat10ns ﬁnancral condrtron and prospects —We-ate-dependent-or a1 e

commereta . Our ab111ty to progress our plan will depend
on our ab111ty to clrnrcally develop, gain regulatory approval for and ultrmately commercialize our product candidates. Our
ability to successfully commercialize our product candidates will depend on, among other things, our ability to: @ successfully
complete pre- clinical and other nonclinical studies and clinical trials in a manner that allows us to progress our studies; ®
receive IND acceptance and regulatory approvals from the FDA; @ produce, through a validated process, in manufacturing
facilities inspected and approved by regulatory authorities, including the FDA, sufficiently large quantities of product candidates
to permit successful commercialization; @ obtain reimbursement from payers such as government health care programs and
insurance companies and achieve commercially attractive levels of pricing; @ secure acceptance of our product candidates from
physicians, health care payers, patients, and the medical community; ® create positive publicity surrounding our product
candidates; ® manage our spending as costs and expenses increase due to clinical trials and commercialization; and e obtain and
enforce sufficient intellectual property for our product candidates. Our failure or delay with respect to any of the factors above
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Impact of global tensions may
increase uncertainty of our future operations. The global tensions arising from the Palestine- Israel war and the war in Ukraine
may result in disruptions in the broader global economic environment. The uncertain nature, magnitude, and duration of
hostilities stemming from such conflicts, including the potential effects of sanctions and countersanctions, or retaliatory cyber-
attacks on the world economy and markets, have contributed to increased market volatility and uncertainty, which could have an
adverse impact on macroeconomic factors that affect our business and operations, such as pre- clinical study issues,
manufacturer delays or shipping delays. Moreover, the conflict between Palestine and Israel could impact future business
decisions to locate potential clinical trials in Israel. It is not possible to predict the short and long- term implications of military
conflicts or wars or geopolitical tensions which could include further sanctions, uncertainty about economic and political
stability, increases in inflation rate and energy prrces cyber— attacks supply cha1n challenges and adverse effects on currency
exchange rates and financial markets. Res es :
indieators-of-future-restdts—Any positive results from future pre- clrnrcal testrng of our product candrdates and p0tent1al future
clinical trials may not necessarily be predictive of the results from Phase +I, Phase 2-II or Phase 3-III clinical trials. In addition,
our interpretation of results derived from clinical data or our conclusions based on our pre- clinical data may prove inaccurate.
Frequently, pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies have suffered significant setbacks in clinical trials after achieving
positive results in pre- clinical testing and early phase clinical trials, and we cannot be certain that we will not face similar
setbacks. These setbacks may be caused by the fact that pre- clinical and clinical data can be susceptible to varying
interpretations and analyses. Furthermore, certain product candidates may perform satisfactorily in pre- clinical studies and
clinical trials ;-but nonetheless fail to obtain FDA approval or appropriate approvals by the appropriate regulatory authorities in
other countries. If we fail to produce positive results in our clinical trials for our product candidates, the development timeline
and regulatory approval and commercralrzauon prospects for them and as a result our bus1ness and ﬁnanclal prospects —would
be rnaterlally adversely affected —We-hav s-experieneeand-we-do-notanticipates hing

ates-H-they-are-approved-tn-the-fature- [ regulatory approval of our products is ever obtalned our ab111ty to
generate revenues ultrmately depends on our ab111ty to sell our approved products and secure adequate third- party
reimbursement. We currently have limited experience in marketing and selling our products. We currently do not have any
products approved for sale in the United States or in any other country. The commercial success of our product candidates will
not even be possible for the foreseeable future and will depend on a number of factors beyond our control, including the
willingness of physicians to prescribe our products to patients, payers’ willingness and ability to pay for the drugs, the level of
pricing achieved, patients’ response to our drugs and the ability of our marketing partners to generate sales. There can be no
guarantee that we will be able to establish or maintain the personnel, systems, arrangements and capabilities necessary to
successfully commercialize Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 or any product candidate approved by the FDA in the future. If we fail to
establish or maintain successful marketing, sales and reimbursement capabilities or fail to enter into successful marketing
arrangements with third parties, our product revenues may suffer. Should we later determine if it is in our best interest to
develop a sales force , we may be unable to effectively train and equip our sales force, therefore our ability to successfully
commercialize our products may be harmed. We will be required to expend significant time and resources to train our sales force
to be credible, persuasive and compliant with applicable laws in marketing Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 or our other product



candidates to physicians for their approved uses. In addition, we must continue to train our sales force to ensure that a consistent
and appropriate message about Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 or our other product candidates are being delivered to our potential
customers. If we are unable to effectively train our sales force and equip them with effective materials, including medical and
sales literature , to help them inform and educate potential customers about the benefits of Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 and our
product candidates and its proper administration, our efforts to successfully commercialize Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 and our
product candldates could be Jeopardlzed Wthh Would negatlvely 1mpact our ablllty to generate product revenues —Wle—wﬂ-l-need

g-rewt-h—&nd—e*eeut-mg—emegrewth—s&ategy— Our management and personnel systems and fac111tles currently in place may not be

adequate to support our business plan and future growth. As a result, we may need to further expand certain areas of our
organization. Our need to effectively manage our operations, growth and various projects requires that we: ® continue to
improve our operational, financial, management and regulatory compliance controls and reporting systems and procedures; ®
attract and retain enough talented employees; ® manage our clinical trials effectively; ® manage our external manufacturing
operations with contract research organizations effectively and in a cost- effective manner; ® manage our development efforts
effectively while carrying out our contractual obligations to contractors and other third parties; andIn addition, we may utilize
the services of part- time outside consultants and contractors to perform several tasks for us, including tasks related to
compliance programs, clinical trial management, regulatory affairs, formulation development and other drug development
functions. Our growth strategy may entail expanding our use of consultants and contractors to implement these and other tasks
going forward. If we are not able to effectively expand our organization by hiring new employees and expanding our use of
consultants and contractors, we may be unable to successfully implement the tasks necessary to effectively execute on our
planned research, development, manufacturing, and commercialization activities and, accordingly, may not achieve our
research, development and commercialization goals. Our product candidates, if approved, may be unable to achieve the
expected market acceptance and, consequently, limit our ability to generate revenue from new products. Even when product
development is successful and regulatory approval has been obtained, our ability to generate sufficient revenue depends on the
acceptance of our products by physicians and patients. We cannot assure you that our product candidates will achieve the
expected level of market acceptance and revenue if and when they obtain the requisite regulatory approvals The market
acceptance of any product depends on a number of factors, including the indication statement and warnings required by
regulatory authorities in the product label. Market acceptance can also be influenced by continued demenstration
demonstrations of efficacy and safety in commercial use, physicians’ willingness to prescribe the product, reimbursement from
third- party payers such as government health care programs and private third- party payers, the price of the product, the nature
of any post- approval risk, management activities mandated by regulatory authorities, competition, and marketing and
distribution support. Further, an ineffective or inefficient distribution model at launch may lead to the inability to fulfill demand,
and consequently a loss of revenue. Any factors preventing or limiting the market acceptance of our products could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. If the price for any future approved
products decreases or if government and other third- party payers do not provide coverage and adequate reimbursement levels,
our revenue and prospects for profitability will suffer. Patients who are prescribed medicine for the treatment of their conditions
generally rely on third- party payers to reimburse all or part of the costs associated with their prescription drugs. Reimbursement
systems in international markets vary significantly by country and by region, and reimbursement approvals generally must be
obtained on a country- by- country basis. Coverage and adequate reimbursement from governmental healthcare programs, such
as Medicare and Medicaid, and commercial payers is critical to new product acceptance. Coverage decisions may depend upon
clinical and economic standards that disfavor new drug products when more established or lower- cost therapeutic alternatives
are already available or subsequently become available. Even if we obtain coverage for products we may market, the resulting
reimbursement payment rates may require co- payments that patients find unacceptably high. Patients may not use our products
if coverage is not provided, or reimbursement is inadequate to cover a significant portion of #s-their cost. In addition, the
market for our products will depend significantly on access to third- party payers’ drug formularies or lists of medications for
which third- party payers provide coverage and reimbursement. The industry competition to be included in such formularies
often leads to downward pricing pressures on pharmaceutical companies. Also, third- party payers may refuse to include a
particular branded drug in their formularies or otherwise restrict patient access to a branded drug when a less costly generic
equivalent or other alternative is available, even if not approved for the indications for which our products are approved. Third-
party payers or governmental or commercial entities are developing increasingly sophisticated methods of controlling healthcare
costs. The current environment is putting pressure on companies to price products below what they may feel is appropriate.
Selling our products at less than an optimized price could impact our revenues and overall success as a company. It will be
difficult to determine the optimized price for our products. In addition, in the U. S., no uniform policy of coverage and
reimbursement for drug products exists among third- party payers. Therefore, coverage and reimbursement for our products
may differ significantly from payer to payer. As a result, the coverage determination process is often a time- consuming and
costly process that will require us to provide scientific and clinical support for the use of our products to each payer separately,
with no assurance that coverage will be obtained. If we are unable to obtain coverage of, and adequate payment levels for,
products we may market to third- party payers, physicians may limit how much or under what circumstances they will prescribe
or administer them, and patients may decline to purchase them. This in turn could affect our ability to successfully
commercialize products we may market, and thereby adversely impact our profitability, results of operations, financial
condition, and future success. In addition, where we have chosen to collaborate with a third party on product candidate
development and commercialization, our partner may elect to reduce the price of our products in order to increase the likelihood
of obtaining reimbursement approvals. In many countries, products cannot be commercially launched until reimbursement is
approved and the negotiation process in some countries can exceed 12 months. In addition, pricing and reimbursement decisions




in certain countries can be affected by decisions taken in other countries, which can lead to mandatory price reductions and / or
additional reimbursement restrictions across a number of other countries, which may thereby adversely affect our sales and
profitability. In the event that countries impose prices that are not sufficient to allow us or our partners to generate a profit, our
partners may refuse to launch the product in such countries or withdraw the product from the market, which would adversely
affect sales and profitability. Events, such as price decreases, government mandated rebates or unfavorable reimbursement
decisions, could affect the pricing and reimbursement of Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 and our other product candidates and could
have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation, results of operations and financial condition. We expect to face
intense competition, often from companies with greater resources and experience than we have. Demand for ketamine analogs
like Ketamir- 2 and synthetic cannabinoids such as MIRA- 55 and will likely be dependent on a number of social, political,
legislative, and economic factors that are beyond our control. While we believe that there will be a demand for such drugs, and
that the demand will grow, there is no assurance that such demand will happen, that we will benefit from any demand or that our
business, in fact, will ever generate revenues from our drug development programs or become profitable. The emerging markets
for product candidates like ours and related medical research and development is and will likely remain competitive. The
development and commercialization of drugs and medicines is highly competitive. We compete with a variety of multinational
pharmaceutical companies and specialized biotechnology companies, as well as products and processes being developed by
universities and other research institutions. Many of our competitors have developed, are developing, or will develop drugs and
processes which may be competitive with our drug candidates. Competitive therapeutic treatments include those that have
already been approved by medicines regulators and accepted by the medical community and any new treatments that may enter
the market. For some of our drug development programs / areas of therapeutic interest, other treatment options are currently
available, under development, and may become commercially available in the future. If any of our product candidates are
approved for the diseases and conditions we are currently pursuing, they may compete with a range of medicines or therapeutic
treatments that are either in development, will be developed in the future or currently marketed. Established companies may
have a competitive advantage over us due to their size and experiences, financial resources, and institutional networks. Many of
our competitors may have significantly greater financial, technical, and human resources than we do. Due to these factors, our
competitors may have an advantage in marketing their approved drugs and may obtain regulatory approval of their drug
candidates before we are able to, which may limit our ability to develop or commercialize our drug candidates. Our competitors
may also develop drugs / medicines that are safer, more effective, more widely used and less expensive than ours. These
advantages could materially impact our ability to develop and, if approved, commercialize our product candidates successfully.
Furthermore, some of these competitors may make acquisitions or establish collaborative relationships among themselves or
with third parties to increase their ability to rapidly gain market share. Our product candidates may compete with other synthetic
cannabinoids, as well as with cannabinoid or cannabis- based drugs, in addition to competing with state- licensed medical and
recreational marijuana, in markets where the recreational and / or medical use of marijuana is legal. There is continuing support
in the U. S. for further state legalization of marijuana. In markets where recreational and / or medical marijuana is not legal, our
product candidates, once approved by regulators, may compete with marijuana or marijuana- based products purchased in the
illegal drug market. This may or may not affect the commercial price that we may be able to achieve for our synthetic
regulatory- approved medicines, should they be approved by the FDA. Moreover, as generic versions of drug products enter the
market, the price for such medicines may be expected to decline rapidly and substantially. Even if we are the first to obtain FDA
approval of one of our product candidates, the future potential approval of generics could adversely affect the price we are able
to charge, and the profitability of our product (s) will likely decline. Mergers and acquisitions in the pharmaceutical and
biotechnology industries may result in more resources being concentrated among a smaller number of our competitors. Smaller
and other early- stage companies may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly through collaborative arrangements
with large and established companies. These companies may compete with us in recruiting and retaining qualified scientific,
management and commercial personnel, utilizing contract manufacturing facilities or contract research organizations (CROs), or
establishing clinical trial sites and subject registration for clinical trials, as well as in acquiring technologies complementary to
our research projects. Product shipment delays could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition. The shipment, import and export of Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 and our other product candidates require
import and export licenses. In the U. S., FDA, U. S. Customs and Border Protection and the DEA, and in other countries similar
regulatory authorities, regulate the import and export of pharmaceutical products that contain controlled substances.
Specifically, the import and export process require the issuance of import and export licenses by the relevant controlled
substance authority in both the importing and exporting eountry-countries . We may not be granted, or if granted, maintain 5
such licenses from the authorities in certain countries. Even if we obtain the relevant licenses, shipments of Ketamir- 2 and
MIRA- 55 and our product candidates may be held up in transit, which could cause significant delays and may lead to product
batches being stored outside required temperature ranges. Inappropriate storage may damage the product shipment resulting in a
partial or total loss of revenue from one or more shipments of Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 or our other product candidates. A
partial or total loss of revenue from one or more shipments of Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 or our other product candidates could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Even though the DEA has
confirmed in writing that it conducted a scientific review of the chemical structure of MIRA 1a and Ketamir- 2 in accordance
with the definitions within the CSA and its implementing regulations and determined that MIRA 1a and Ketamir- 2 is not a
controlled substance or listed chemical, there is no assurance that the DEA may not change its position. We have filed the
necessary requirements with the DEA to review MIRA- 55, however, there can be no assurance that the DEA will conclude that
MIRA- 55 is not a controlled substance or listed chemical. The manufacture of our product candidates is complex and uncertain,
and until we develop a validated manufacturing process, we may encounter difficulties in supplying our planned and future
clinical trials. If we encounter such difficulties, or fail to meet quality standards, our ability to meet clinical timelines and expand



our development strategy could be impacted. The processes involved in manufacturing Ketamir- 2, MIRA- 55 and other product
candidates are complex, expensive, highly regulated and subject to multiple risks and uncertainties. We have been faced with
issues such as this in the initial synthesis of MIRA- 55 (which we initially believed was based on our patented MIRA 1a
molecule). In addition, as product candidates are developed through early to late- stage clinical trials and then to approval and
commercialization, it is common that various aspects of the development program, such as manufacturing methods, are
modified along the way to optimize the scale, process and results. Any changes to the manufacturing processes carry the risk
that they will not achieve these intended objectives, or that the product candidates may not meet the rigorous quality standards
necessary for use in our pre- clinical or clinical trials. Also, if planned or future manufacturing of Ketamir- 2, MIRA- 55 or other
product candidates fails to meet the quality standards for use in our pre- clinical or clinical trials, or the active drug substance
does not meet our quality specifications, it could impact our timelines and limit our development strategy. For example, and as
discussed above, in the first quarter of 2024, we concluded that during the manufacturing and scale- up process of MIRA 1a, the
intended MIRA 1a compound was in fact synthesized as MIRA- 55. Moreover, our contract manufacturing organizations (*
CMOs ”) or contract development and manufacturing organization (“ CDMOs ) may be unable to successfully increase the
manufacturing scale for our product candidates in a timely or cost- effective manner and may experience delays due to limited
manufacturing capacity. In addition, quality issues may arise during manufacturing activities. If our CMOs or CDMOs are
unable to successfully manufacture our product candidates in sufficient quantity in a timely manner or produce active drug
substances that do not meet our quality specifications, our planned pre- clinical or clinical trials may be delayed or modified. We
may fail to expand our manufacturing capability in time to meet market demand for our products and product candidates, and the
FDA may refuse to accept our facilities or those of our contract manufacturers as being suitable for the production of our
products and product candidates. Any problems in our manufacturing process could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition. Before we can begin commercial manufacture of any product candidates
for sale in the U. S., we must obtain FDA regulatory approval for the product, which requires a successful FDA inspection of
our manufacturing facilities and those of our contract manufacturers, processes, and quality systems in addition to other product-
related approvals. Although we may successfully navigate this pre- approval inspection process as it relates in the U. S.,
pharmaceutical manufacturing facilities are continuously subject to post- approval inspection by the FDA and foreign regulatory
authorities. Due to the complexity of the processes used to manufacture our product candidates, we may be unable to initially or
continue to pass federal, state or international regulatory inspections in a cost- effective manner. If we are unable to comply with
manufacturing regulations, we may be subject to fines, unanticipated compliance expenses, recall or seizure of any approved
products, total or partial suspension of production and / or enforcement actions, including injunctions, and criminal or civil
prosecution. These possible sanctions would adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Business interruptions could delay us in the process of developing our product candidates and could disrupt our product sales.
Our research and development activities are conducted through outside contractors and manufacturers. Loss of our contracted
manufacturing facilities, stored inventory or laboratory facilities through fire, theft or other causes, or loss of our raw material,
could have an adverse effect on our ability to continue product development activities and to conduct our business. Failure to
supply our partners with commercial product may lead to adverse consequences, including the right of partners to take over
responsibility for product supply. We currently do not have insurance coverage to compensate us for such business interruptions.
Our contract manufacturers and suppliers provide that in their separate operations; however, such coverage may prove
insufficient to fully compensate us for the damage to our business resulting from any significant property or casualty loss to
those facilities. If product liability lawsuits are successfully brought against us, we will incur substantial liabilities and may be
required to limit the commercialization of Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 and our product candidates. Although we have never had
any product liability claims or lawsuits brought against us, we face potential product liability exposure related to the testing of
our product candidates in human clinical trials. We may face exposure to claims by an even greater number of persons when we
begin to market and distribute our products commercially in the U. S., Europe and elsewhere. Now, and in the future, an
individual may bring a liability claim against us alleging that Ketamir- 2, MIRA- 55 or one of our other product candidates
caused an injury. While we continue to take what we believe are appropriate precautions, we may be unable to avoid significant
liability if any product liability lawsuit is brought against us. Large judgments have been awarded in class action or individual
lawsuits based on drugs that had unanticipated side effects. If we cannot successfully defend ourselves against product liability
claims, we will incur substantial liabilities. Regardless of merit or eventual outcome, liability claims may result in: ® decreased
demand for Ketamir- 2, MIRA- 55 or our other product candidates if such product candidates are approved; ® injury to our
reputation; @ withdrawal of clinical trial participants; e costs of related litigation; @ substantial monetary awards to patients and
others; ® increased cost of liability insurance; ® loss of revenue; and e the inability to successfully commercialize our products.
Counterfeit versions of our products could harm our business. Counterfeiting activities and the presence of counterfeit products
in a number of markets and over the Internet continue to be a challenge for maintaining a safe drug supply for the
pharmaceutical industry. Counterfeit products are frequently unsafe or ineffective and can be life- threatening. To distributors
and users, counterfeit products may be visually indistinguishable from the authentic version. Reports of adverse reactions to
counterfeit drugs along with increased levels of counterfeiting could be mistakenly attributed to the authentic product, affect
patient confidence in the authentic product and harm the business of companies such as ours. If our products were to be the
subject of counterfeits, we could incur reputational and financial harm. We depend upon our key personnel and our ability to
attract and retain employees. Our future growth and success depend on our ability to recruit, retain, manage, and motivate our
employees. The inability to hire or retain experienced management personnel could adversely affect our ability to execute our
business plan and harm our operating results. Due to the specialized scientific and managerial nature of our business, we rely
heavily on our ability to attract and retain qualified scientific, technical, and managerial personnel. The competition for qualified
personnel in the pharmaceutical field is intense. Due to this intense competition, we may be unable to continue to attract and



retain the qualified personnel necessary for the development of our business or to recruit suitable replacement personnel. Our
employees may engage in misconduct or other improper activities, including noncompliance with regulatory standards and
requirements. We are exposed to the risk of employee fraud or other misconduct. Misconduct by employees could include
intentional failures to comply with FDA or foreign regulations, provide accurate information to FDA or other regulatory
authorities, comply with applicable manufacturing standards, comply with other foreign, federal, and state laws and regulations,
report information or data accurately or disclose unauthorized activities to us. Employee misconduct could also involve the
improper use of information, including information obtained during clinical trials, or illegal appropriation of drug products,
which could result in government investigations and serious harm to our reputation. The precautions we take to detect and
prevent these prohibited activities may not be effective in controlling unknown or unmanaged risks or losses or in protecting us
from governmental investigations or other actions or lawsuits stemming from a failure to comply with such laws or regulations.
If any such actions are instituted against us, and we are not successful in defending ourselves or asserting our rights, those
actions could have a significant impact on our business, including the imposition of significant fines or other sanctions. We are
subject to the U. S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other anti- corruption laws, as well as export control laws, customs laws,
sanctions laws and other laws governing our operations. If we fail to comply with these laws, we could be subject to civil or
criminal penalties, other remedial measures, and legal expenses, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition. Our operations are subject to anti- corruption laws, including the U. S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of
1977, as amended (the “ FCPA ”), and other anti- corruption laws that apply in countries where we do business. The FCPA and
these other laws generally prohibit us and our employees and intermediaries from bribing, being bribed or making other
prohibited payments to government officials or other persons to obtain or retain business or gain some other business advantage.
We and our commercial partners operate in a number of jurisdictions that pose a high risk of potential FCPA violations, and we
participate in collaborations and relationships with third parties whose actions could potentially subject us to liability under the
FCPA or local anti- corruption laws. In addition, we cannot predict the nature, scope, or effect of future regulatory requirements
to which our international operations might be subject or the manner in which existing laws might be administered or
interpreted. We are also subject to other laws and regulations governing our international operations, including regulations
administered by the government of the U. S. and other countries in which we operate or plan to operate, including applicable
export control regulations, economic sanctions on countries and persons, customs requirements, and currency exchange
regulations, (collectively referred to as the “ Trade Control laws ). However, there is no assurance that we will be completely
effective in ensuring our compliance with all applicable anti- corruption laws, including the FCPA or other legal requirements,
including Trade Control laws. If we are not in compliance with the FCPA and other anti- corruption laws or Trade Control laws,
we may be subject to criminal and civil penalties, disgorgement and other sanctions and remedial measures, and legal expenses,
which could have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and liquidity, as well as our
reputation. Likewise, any investigation of any potential violations of the FCPA, other anti- corruption laws or Trade Control
laws by the U. S. or other authorities could also have an adverse impact on our reputation, our business, results of operations
and financial condition. Our proprietary information, or that of our suppliers and business partners, may be lost or we may suffer
security breaches. In the ordinary course of our business, we will collect and store sensitive data, including valuable and
commercially sensitive intellectual property, clinical trial data, our proprietary business information and that of our suppliers
and business partners, and personally identifiable information of our clinical trial subjects and employees, on our networks, and
with our third- party cloud service providers. The secure processing, maintenance and transmission of this information is critical
to our operations. Despite our security measures, our information technology and infrastructure, and that of our third parties,
may be vulnerable to attacks by hackers or breached due to employee error, malfeasance, or other disruptions. Any breach could
compromise our networks and the information stored there could be accessed, publicly disclosed, lost, or stolen. Any such
access, disclosure or other loss of information could result in legal claims or proceedings, liability under laws that protect the
privacy of personal information, regulatory penalties, disrupt our operations, damage our reputation, and cause a loss of
confidence in our products and our ability to conduct clinical trials, which could adversely affect our business and reputation and
lead to delays in gaining regulatory approvals for Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 or other product candidates. Failure of our
information technology systems, including cybersecurity attacks or other data security incidents, could significantly disrupt the
operation of our business. Our business is increasingly dependent on critical, complex, and interdependent information
technology (“ IT ) systems, including internet- based systems, some of which are managed or hosted by third parties, to support
business processes as well as internal and external communications. The size and complexity of our IT systems make us
potentially vulnerable to IT system breakdowns, malicious intrusion, and computer viruses, which may result in the impairment
of our ability to operate our business effectively. We are continuously evaluating and, where appropriate, enhancing our IT
systems to address our planned growth, including to support our planned manufacturing operations. There are inherent costs and
risks associated with implementing the enhancements to our IT systems, including potential delays in access to, or errors in,
critical business and financial information, substantial capital expenditures, additional administrative time and operating
expenses, retention of sufficiently skilled personnel to implement and operate the enhanced systems, demands on management
time, and costs of delays or difficulties in transitioning to the enhanced systems, any of which could harm our business and
results of operations. In addition, the implementation of enhancements to our IT systems may not result in productivity
improvements at a level that outweighs the costs of implementation, or at all. In addition, our systems and the systems of our
third- party providers and collaborators are potentially vulnerable to data security breaches which may expose sensitive data to
unauthorized persons or to the public. Such data security breaches could lead to the loss of confidential information, trade
secrets or other intellectual property, could lead to the public exposure of personal information (including personally identifiable
information or individually identifiable health information) of our employees, clinical trial patients, customers, business
partners, and others, could lead to potential identity theft, or could lead to reputational harm. Data security breaches could also



result in loss of clinical trial data or damage to the integrity of that data. In addition, the increased use of social media by our
employees and contractors could result in inadvertent disclosure of sensitive data or personal information, including but not
limited to, confidential information, trade secrets and other intellectual property. Any such disruption or security breach, as well
as any action by us or our employees or contractors that might be inconsistent with the rapidly evolving data privacy and
security laws and regulations applicable within the United States and elsewhere where we conduct business, could result in
enforcement actions by U. S. states, the U. S. federal government or foreign governments, liability or sanctions under data
privacy laws, including healthcare laws such as HIPAA, that protect certain types of sensitive information, regulatory penalties,
other legal proceedings such as but not limited to private litigation, the incurrence of significant remediation costs, disruptions to
our development programs, business operations and collaborations, diversion of management efforts and damage to our
reputation, which could harm our business and operations. Because of the rapidly moving nature of technology and the
increasing sophistication of cybersecurity threats, our measures to prevent, respond to and minimize such risks may be
unsuccessful. Security breaches, loss of data and other disruptions could compromise sensitive information related to our
business, prevent us from accessing critical information or expose us to liability, which could adversely affect our business and
our reputation. In the ordinary course of our business, we, our vendors, and our third- party cloud service providers may collect
and store sensitive data, including legally protected patient health information, credit card information, personally identifiable
information about our employees and patients, intellectual property, and proprietary business information. We manage and
maintain our applications and data utilizing cloud- based and on- site systems. These applications and data encompass a wide
variety of business- critical information including research and development information, commercial information and business
and financial information. The secure processing, storage, maintenance, and transmission of this critical information is vital to
our operations and business strategy, and we devote significant resources to protecting such information. Although we take
measures to protect sensitive information from unauthorized access or disclosure, our information technology and infrastructure
may be vulnerable to attacks by hackers, or viruses, breaches, or interruptions due to employee error, malfeasance or other
disruptions, or lapses in compliance with privacy and security mandates. Any such virus, breach or interruption could
compromise our networks and the information stored there could be accessed by unauthorized parties, publicly disclosed, lost or
stolen. We have measures in place that are designed to prevent, and if necessary to detect and respond to such security incidents,
breaches of privacy, and security mandates. However, in the future, any such access, disclosure or other loss of information
could result in legal claims or proceedings, liability under laws that protect the privacy of personal information, such as HIPAA
in the United States and the General Data Protection Regulation in the European Union, or GDPR, government enforcement
actions and regulatory penalties. Unauthorized access, loss or dissemination could also disrupt our operations, including our
ability to process samples, provide test results, share and monitor safety data, bill payers or patients, provide customer support
services, conduct research and development activities, process and prepare company financial information, manage various
general and administrative aspects of our business and may damage our reputation, any of which could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Legislative or regulatory reform of the health care system in the U. S.
may affect our ability to profitably sell our products, if approved. Our ability to commercialize our future products successfully,
alone or with collaborators, will depend in part on the extent to which coverage and reimbursement for the products will be
available from government and health administration authorities, private health insurers and other third- party payers. The
continuing efforts of the U. S. government, insurance companies, managed care organizations and other payers for health care
services to contain or reduce health care costs may adversely affect our ability to set prices for our products which we believe
are fair, and our ability to generate revenues and achieve and maintain profitability. Specifically, in the U. S., there have been a
number of legislative and regulatory proposals to change the health care system in ways that could affect our ability to sell our
products profitably. For example, certain states in the U. S. are proposing legislation mandating publicly funded health program
coverage of medical cannabis. In addition, the 2010 Affordable Care Act, or the ACA, substantially changed the way healthcare
is financed by both governmental and private insurers. Both Congress and the U. S. President have already taken some actions
that are intended to significantly limit the ACA, and we expect efforts to further modify or repeal the ACA to continue. The
success and potential effects of these efforts to repeal or modify the ACA are not clear. We expect additional federal and state
legislative proposals for health care reform, which could limit the prices that can be charged for the products we develop and
may limit our commercial opportunity. The continuing efforts of government and other third- party payers to contain or reduce
the costs of health care through various means may limit our commercial opportunity. It will be time- consuming and expensive
for us to go through the process of seeking coverage and reimbursement from Medicare, Medicaid, and other governmental
health programs and from private payers. Our products may not be considered cost- effective, and government and third- party
private health insurance coverage and reimbursement may not be available to patients for any of our future products or sufficient
to allow us to sell our products on a competitive and profitable basis. Our results of operations could be adversely affected by
ACA, changes to the ACA, and by other health care reforms that may be enacted or adopted in the future. In addition,
increasing emphasis on managed care in the U. S. will continue to put downward pressure on the pricing of pharmaceutical
products. Cost- control initiatives could decrease the price that we or any potential collaborators could receive for any of our
future products and could adversely affect our ability to generate revenue in the U. S. market and maintain profitability.
Unfavorable global economic and geopolitical conditions could adversely affect our business, financial condition, stock
price, and results of operations. Our business could be adversely affected by unstable economic and political conditions
within the United States and foreign jurisdictions, including as a result of an economic downturn and geopolitical events,
such as changes in U. S. federal policy that affect the geopolitical landscape. Changes to policy implemented by the U. S.
Congress, the Trump administration or any new administration have impacted and may in the future impact, among
other things, the U. S. and global economy, international trade relations, unemployment, immigration, healthcare,
taxation, the U. S. regulatory environment, inflation and other areas. For example, during the prior Trump



administration, increased tariffs were implemented on goods imported into the U. S., particularly from China, Canada,
and Mexico. On February 1, 2025, the U. S. imposed a 25 % tariff on imports from Canada and Mexico, which were
subsequently suspended for a period of one month, and a 10 % additional tariff on imports from China. Historically,
tariffs have led to increased trade and political tensions, between not only the U. S. and China, but also between the U. S.
and other countries in the international community. In response to tariffs, other countries have implemented retaliatory
tariffs on U. S. goods. Political tensions as a result of trade policies could reduce trade volume, investment, technological
exchange and other economic activities between major international economies, resulting in a material adverse effect on
global economic conditions and the stability of global financial markets. Any changes in political, trade, regulatory, and
economic conditions, including U. S. trade policies, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or
results of operations. Until we know what policy changes are made, whether those policy changes are challenged and
subsequently upheld by the court system and how those changes impact our business and the business of our competitors
over the long term, we will not know if, overall, we will benefit from them or be negatively affected by them. The global
credit and financial markets have also generally experienced extreme volatility and disruptions (including as a result of
actual or perceived changes in interest rates, inflation and macroeconomic uncertainties), which has included severely
diminished liquidity and credit availability, declines in consumer confidence, declines in economic growth, high inflation,
uncertainty about economic stability, global supply chain disruptions, and increases in unemployment rates. The
financial markets and the global economy may also be adversely affected by military conflict, including the ongoing
conflicts between Russia and Ukraine, and Israel and Hamas, terrorism, or other geopolitical events. Sanctions imposed
by the United States and other countries in response to such conflicts, including the one in Ukraine, may also continue to
adversely impact the financial markets and the global economy, and any economic countermeasures by the affected
countries or others could exacerbate market and economic instability. There can be no assurance that further
deterioration in credit and financial markets and confidence in economic conditions will not occur. A severe or
prolonged economic downturn could result in a variety of risks to our business. In addition, current inflationary trends
in the global economy may impact salaries and wages, costs of goods and transportation expenses, among other things,
and recent and potential future disruptions in access to bank deposits or lending commitments due to bank failures may
create market and economic instability. We cannot anticipate all of the ways in which the foregoing, and the current
economic climate and financial market conditions generally, could adversely impact our business. We may acquire other
companies which could divert our management’ s attention, result in additional dilution to our shareholders and otherwise
disrupt our operations and harm our operating results. We may in the future seek to acquire businesses, products, or technologies
that we believe could complement or expand our product offerings, enhance our technical capabilities or otherwise offer growth
opportunities. The pursuit of potential acquisitions may divert the attention of management and cause us to incur various
expenses in identifying, investigating, and pursuing suitable acquisitions, whether or not they are consummated. If we acquire
additional businesses, we may not be able to integrate the acquired personnel, operations and technologies successfully, or
effectively manage the combined business following the acquisition or realize anticipated cost savings or synergies. We also
may not achieve the anticipated benefits from the acquired business due to a number of factors, including: e incurrence of
acquisition- related costs; @ diversion of management’ s attention from other business concerns; ® unanticipated costs or
liabilities associated with the acquisition; ® harm to our existing business relationships with collaboration partners as a result of
the acquisition; @ harm to our brand and reputation; e the potential loss of key employees; ® use of resources that are needed in
other parts of our business; and @ use of substantial portions of our available cash to consummate the acquisition. In the future, if
our acquisitions do not yield expected returns, we may be required to take charges to our operating results arising from the
impairment assessment process. Acquisitions may also result in dilutive issuances of equity securities or the incurrence of debt,
which could adversely affect our operating results. In addition, if an acquired business fails to meet our expectations, our
business, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected. RisksRelated-to-Development-andRegulatory
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expensive, time consuming and difficult to design and implement. Regulatory agencies may analyze or interpret the results
differently than us. Even if the results of our clinical trials are favorable, the clinical trials for a number of our product
candidates are expected to continue for several years and may take significantly longer to complete. In addition, we, the FDA, or
other regulatory authorities, including state and local authorities, or an Institutional Review Board, or IRB, with respect to a trial
at its institution, may suspend, delay or terminate our clinical trials at any time, require us to conduct additional clinical trials,
require a particular clinical trial to continue for a longer duration than originally planned, require a change to our development
plans such that we conduct clinical trials for a product candidate in a different order, e. g., in a step- wise fashion rather than
running two trials of the same product candidate in parallel, or the DEA could suspend or terminate the registrations and quota
allotments we require in order to procure and handle controlled substances, for various reasons, including: @ lack of
effectiveness of any product candidate during clinical trials; ® discovery of serious or unexpected toxicities or side effects
experienced by trial participants or other safety issues, such as drug interactions, including those which cause confounding
changes to the levels of other concomitant medications; ® slower than expected rates of subject recruitment and enrollment rates
in clinical trials; e difficulty in retaining subjects who have initiated a clinical trial but may withdraw at any time due to adverse
side effects from the therapy, insufficient efficacy, fatigue with the clinical trial process or for any other reason; e delays or
inability in manufacturing or obtaining sufficient quantities of materials for use in clinical trials due to regulatory and
manufacturing constraints; @ inadequacy of or changes in our manufacturing process or product formulation; @ delays in
obtaining regulatory authorization to commence a trial, including * clinical holds ” or delays requiring suspension or termination
of a trial by a regulatory agency, such as the FDA, before or after a trial is commenced; e changes in applicable regulatory



policies and regwlatierrregulations , including changes to requirements imposed on the extent, nature, or timing of studies; ®
delays or failure in reaching agreement on acceptable terms in clinical trial contracts or protocols with prospective clinical trial
sites; ® uncertainty regarding proper dosing; e delay or failure to supply product for use in clinical trials which conforms to
regulatory specification; ® unfavorable results from ongoing pre- clinical studies and clinical trials; @ failure of our contract
research organizations, or CROs, or other third- party contractors to comply with all contractual requirements or to perform their
services in a timely or acceptable manner; o failure by us, our employees, our CROs or their employees to comply with all
applicable FDA or other regulatory requirements relating to the conduct of clinical trials or the handling, storage, security, and
recordkeeping; @ scheduling conflicts with participating clinicians and clinical institutions; e failure to design appropriate
clinical trial protocols; @ regulatory concerns with cannabinoid products generally and the potential for abuse; ® insufficient
data to support regulatory approval; e inability or unwillingness of medical investigators to follow our clinical protocols; or @
difficulty in maintaining contact with patients during or after treatment, which may result in incomplete data. Any of the
foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Clinical trials of
synthetic cannabinoid drug candidates and ketamine analogs are novel with very limited or non- existing history; we face a
significant risk that the trials will not result in commercially viable drugs and treatments. At present, there is only a very limited
documented clinical trial history from which we can derive any scientific conclusions for our product candidates or prove that
our present assumptions for the current and planned research are scientifically compelling. The active pharmaceutical ingredient
(or API) content shown in INDs can vary from one IND to another —= hence it is not necessarily possible to extrapolate results
from studies with one product and predict efficacy of safety with another product containing a similar API and different source.
Whilst the principal synthetic cannabinoid component may be similar, the APIs may differ in terms of minor cannabinoid
content, impurity profiles or degradant profiles. While we are encouraged by the results of clinical trials by others (where they
exist), there can be no assurance that any pre- clinical study or clinical trial will result in in commercially viable drugs or
treatments. Clinical trials are expensive, time consuming and difficult to design and implement. We, as well as the regulatory
authorities , may suspend, delay or terminate our clinical trials at any time, may require us, for various reasons, to conduct
additional clinical trials, or may require a particular clinical trial to continue for a longer duration than originally planned,
including, among others: e lack of effectiveness of any API, formulation, or delivery system during clinical trials; @ discovery
of serious or unexpected toxicities or side effects experienced by trial participants or other safety issues; ® slower than expected
rates of subject recruitment and enrollment rates in clinical trials; ® delays or inability in manufacturing or obtaining sufficient
quantities of GMP- grade materials for use in clinical trials due to regulatory and manufacturing constraints; e delays in
obtaining regulatory authorization to commence a trial, including Institutional Review Board (* IRB ”) approvals or DEA
approvals, licenses required for obtaining and using synthetic cannabinoids or cannabinoid- like substances for research, either
before or after a trial is commenced; ® unfavorable results from ongoing pre- clinical studies and clinical trials; @ patients or
investigators failing to comply with clinical trial protocols; @ patients failing to return for post- treatment follow- up at the
expected rate; @ sites participating in an ongoing clinical trial withdraw, requiring us to engage new sites; ® third- party clinical
investigators decline to participate in our clinical trials, do not perform the clinical trials on the anticipated schedule, or act in
ways inconsistent with the established investigator agreement, clinical trial protocol, good clinical practices, and other IRB
requirements; @ third- party entities do not perform data collection and analysis in a timely or accurate manner or at all; or ®
regulatory 1nspect10ns of our chmcal trrals requrre us to undertake corrective actlon or suspend or terminate our clinical trials =
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progressing through the approval process. We must also adhere to all regulatory requirements including FDA’ s Good
Laboratory Practice, Good Clinical Practice, and current Good Manufacturing Practices requirements (“ cGMP )
pharmacovigilance requirements, advertising, and promotion restrictions, reporting and recordkeeping requirements. If we or
our suppliers fail to comply with applicable regulations, including FDA pre- or post- approval cGMP requirements, then FDA
could sanction us. Even if a drug is FDA- approved, regulatory authorities may impose significant restrictions on a product’ s
indicated uses or marketing or impose ongoing requirements for potentially costly post- marketing trials. Ketamir- 2 and MIRA-
55, and any of our product candidates that may be approved in the U. S. in the future, will be subject to ongoing regulatory
requirements for manufacturing, labeling, packaging, storage, distribution, import, export, advertising, promotion, sampling,
recordkeeping and submission of safety and other post- market information, including both federal and state requirements in the
U. S. In addition, manufacturers and manufacturers’ facilities are required to comply with extensive FDA requirements,
including ensuring that quality control and manufacturing procedures conform to GMP. As such, we, and our contract
manufacturers (in the event contract manufacturers are appointed in the future) are subject to continual review and periodic
inspections to assess compliance with GMP. Accordingly, we and others with whom we work must continue to spend time,
money, and effort in all areas of regulatory compliance, including manufacturing, production, quality control and quality
assurance. We will also be required to report certain adverse reactions and production problems, if any, to the FDA, and to
comply with requirements concerning advertising and promotion for our products. Promotional communications with respect to
prescription drugs are subject to a variety of legal and regulatory restrictions and must be consistent with the information in the
product’ s approved label. If a regulatory agency discovers previously unknown problems with a product, such as adverse events
of unanticipated severity or frequency, or problems with the facility where the product is manufactured, or disagrees with the
promotion, marketing or labeling of the product, it may impose restrictions on that product or us, including requiring withdrawal
of the product from the market. If we fail to comply with applicable regulatory requirements, a regulatory agency or
enforcement authority may: e issue untitled or warning letters; ® seek to enjoin our activities; ® impose civil or criminal
penalties; ® suspend regulatory approval; @ suspend any of our ongoing clinical trials; e refuse to approve pending applications
or supplements to approved applications submitted by us; ® impose restrictions on our operations, including by requiring us to




enter into a Corporate Integrity Agreement or closing our contract manufacturers’ facilities, if any; or @ seize or detain products
or require a product recall. In addition, any government investigation of alleged violations of law could require us to expend
significant time and resources in response and could generate negative publicity. Any failure to comply with ongoing regulatory
requirements may significantly and adversely affect our ability to commercialize and generate revenue from our product
candidates. If regulatory sanctions are applied or if regulatory approval is withdrawn, the value of our business and our
operating results may be adversely affected. Any action against us for violation of these laws, even if we successfully defend
against it, could cause us to incur significant legal expenses, divert our management’ s attention from the operation of our
business and damage our reputation. We expend significant resources on compliance efforts and such expenses are
unpredictable and might adversely affect our results. Changing laws, regulations and standards might also create uncertainty,
higher expenses and increase insurance costs. As a result, we intend to invest all reasonably necessary resources to comply with
evolving standards, and this investment might result in increased management and administrative expenses and a diversion of
management time and attention from revenue- generating activities to compliance activities. We are subject to federal and state
healthcare laws and regulations and implementation of or changes to such healthcare laws and regulations could adversely affect
our business and results of operations. In the United States, there have been a number of legislative and regulatory proposals to
change the healthcare system in ways that could impact our ability to sell our product candidates. If we are found to be in
violation of any of these laws or any other federal or state regulations, we may be subject to administrative, civil and / or
criminal penalties, damages, fines, individual imprisonment, exclusion from federal health care programs and the restructuring
of our operations. Any of these could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results. Since many of these
laws have not been fully interpreted by the courts, there is an increased risk that we may be found in violation of one or more of
their provisions. Any action against us for violation of these laws, even if we ultimately are successful in our defense, will cause
us to incur significant legal expenses and divert our management’ s attention away from the operation of our business. We
expect that the ACA, as well as other healthcare reform measures that may be adopted in the future, may result in more rigorous
coverage criteria and in additional downward pressure on the price that we may receive for any approved product. There have
been judicial challenges to certain aspects of the ACA and numerous legislative attempts to repeal and / or replace the ACA in
whole or in part, and we expect there will be additional challenges and amendments to the ACA in the future. At this time, the
full effect that the ACA will have on our business in the future remains unclear. An expansion in the government’ s role in the
U. S. healthcare industry may cause general downward pressure on the prices of prescription drug products, lower
reimbursements, or any other product for which we obtain regulatory approval, reduce product utilization, and adversely affect
our business and results of operations. Any reduction in reimbursement from Medicare or other government programs may
result in a similar reduction in payments from private payers. The implementation of cost containment measures or other
healthcare reforms may prevent us from being able to generate revenue, attain profitability, or commercialize products for
which we may receive regulatory approval. We plan to conduct clinical trials at sites outside the United States. The FDA
may not accept data from trials conducted in such locations, and the conduct of trials outside the United States could
subject us to additional delays and expense. We plan to conduct one or more clinical trials with one or more trial sites
that are located outside the United States. The acceptance by the FDA or other regulatory authorities of study data from
clinical trials conducted outside their jurisdiction may be subject to certain conditions or may not be accepted at all. In
cases where data from foreign clinical trials are intended to serve as the sole basis for marketing approval preeesses-in the
United States, the FDA will generally not approve the application on the basis of foreign data alone unless (i) the data are
applicable to the United States population and United States medical practice; (ii) the trials were performed by clinical
investigators of recognized competence and pursuant to GCP regulations and (iii) the data may be considered valid
without the need for an on- site inspection by the FDA, or if the FDA considers such inspection to be necessary, the FDA
is able to validate the data through an on- site inspection or other appropriate means. In addition, even where the foreign
study data are not intended to serve as the sole basis for approval, the FDA will not accept the data as support for an
application for marketing approval unless the study is well- designed and well- conducted in accordance with GCP
requirements and the FDA is able to validate the data from the study through an onsite inspection if deemed necessary.
Many foreign regulatory authorities have similar approval requirements. In addition, such foreign trials would be
subject to the applicable local laws of the foreign jurisdictions where the trials arc fengthy-conducted. There can be no
assurance that the FDA or any comparable foreign regulatory authority will accept data from trials conducted outside
of the United States or the applicable jurisdiction. If the FDA or any comparable foreign regulatory authority does not
accept such data, it would result in the need for additional trials, which could be costly and inherently-unpredietable-time-
consuming, and which may result in current or future product candidates that we may develop not receiving approval
for commerecialization in the applicable jurisdiction. Conducting clinical trials outside the United States also exposes us
to additional risks, including risks associated with: e additional foreign regulatory requirements; ® foreign exchange
fluctuations; e compliance with foreign manufacturing, customs, shipment and storage requirements; e cultural
differences in medical practice and clinical research; e diminished protection of intellectual property in some countries;
and e interruptions or delays in our trials resulting from geopolitical events, such as war or terrorism . We are not
permitted to market our drug candidates as medicines in the United States or other countries until we receive approval of a New
Drug Application (“ NDA ) from the FDA or in any foreign countries until we receive the approval from the regulatory
authorities of such countries. Prior to submitting an NDA to the FDA for approval of our drug candidates we will need to have
completed our pre- clinical studies and clinical trials and demonstrate that our products meet all applicable standards of identity,
strength, quality, and purity throughout their expiration date. Successfully completing any clinical program and obtaining
approval of an NDA is a complex, lengthy, expensive, and uncertain process, and the FDA (or other country medicines
regulatory body) may delay, limit, or deny approval of product candidates for many reasons, including, among others, because:



e an inability to demonstrate that our product candidates are safe and effective in treating patients to the satisfaction of the FDA;
e results of clinical trials that may not meet the level of statistical or clinical significance required by the FDA; e disagreements
with the FDA with respect to the number, design, size, conduct or implementation of clinical trials; ® requirements by the FDA
to conduct additional clinical trials; e disapproval by the FDA of certain formulations, labeling or specifications of product
candidates; e findings by the FDA that the data from pre- clinical studies and clinical trials are insufficient; ® findings by the
FDA that our API or finished products do not meet all applicable standards of identity, strength, quality, and purity; e the FDA
may disagree with the interpretation of data from pre- clinical studies and clinical trials; and e the FDA may change their
approval policies or adopt new regulations. Any of these factors, many of which are beyond our control, could increase
development time and / or costs or Jeopardlze our ab111ty to obtaln regulatory approval for our drug candidates —Fherets-a-high

d e : g ; als- Generally, there is a high rate of failure for drug candidates
proceedlng through cllnlcal trials. We may suffer s1gn1ﬁcant setbacks in our clinical trials similar to the experience of a number
of other companies in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries, even after receiving promising results in earlier trials.
Further, even if we view the results of a clinical trial to be positive, FDA may disagree with our interpretation of the data. In the
event that we obtain negative results from clinical trials for product candidates or other problems related to potential chemistry,
manufacturing and control issues or other hurdles occur and our product candidates are not approved, we may not be able to
generate sufficient revenue or obtain financing to continue our operations, our ability to execute on our current business plan
may be materially impaired, our reputation in the industry and in the investment community might be significantly damaged and
the price of our common stock could decrease significantly. In addition, our inability to properly design, commence and
complete clinical trials may negatively impact the timing and results of our clinical trials and ability to seek approvals for our
drug candidates. If we are found in violation of federal or state * fraud and abuse ” laws, we may be required to pay a penalty
and / or be suspended from participation in federal or state health care programs, which may adversely affect our business,
financial condition, and results of operations. In the United States, we are subject to various federal and state health care * fraud
and abuse ” laws, including anti- kickback laws, false claims laws and other laws intended to reduce fraud and abuse in federal
and state health care programs, which could affect us particularly upon successful commercialization of our products in the U. S.
The Medicare and Medicaid Patient Protection Act of 1987, or federal Anti- Kickback Statute, makes it illegal for any person,
including a prescription drug manufacturer (or a party acting on its behalf), to knowingly and willfully solicit, receive, offer or
pay any remuneration that is intended to induce the referral of business, including the purchase, order or prescription of a
particular drug for which payment may be made under a federal health care program, such as Medicare or Medicaid. Under
federal law, some arrangements, known as safe harbors, are deemed not to violate the federal Anti- Kickback Statute. Although
we seek to structure our business arrangements in compliance with all applicable requirements, it is often difficult to determine
precisely how the law will be applied in specific circumstances. Accordingly, it is possible that our practices may be challenged
under the federal Anti- Kickback Statute and Federal False Claims Act. Violations of fraud and abuse laws may be punishable
by criminal and / or civil sanctions, including fines and / or exclusion or suspension from federal and state health care programs
such as Medicare and Medicaid and debarment from contracting with the U. S. government. In addition, private individuals have
the ability to bring actions on behalf of the government under the federal False Claims Act as well as under the false claims laws
of several states. Many states have adopted laws similar to the federal anti- kickback statute, some of which apply to the referral
of patients for health care services reimbursed by any source, not just governmental payers. There are ambiguities as to what is
required to comply with these state requirements and if we fail to comply with an applicable state law requirement, we could be
subject to penalties. Neither the government nor the courts have provided definitive guidance on the application of fraud and
abuse laws to our business. Law enforcement authorities are increasingly focused on enforcing these laws, and it is possible that
some of our practices may be challenged under these laws. While we believe we have structured our business arrangements to
comply with these laws, it is possible that the government could allege violations of, or convict us of violating, these laws. If we
are found in violation of one of these laws, we could be required to pay a penalty and could be suspended or excluded from
participation in federal or state health care programs, and our business, results of operations and financial condition may be
adversely affected. Serious adverse events or other safety risks could require us to abandon development and preclude, delay or
limit approval of our product candidates, limit the scope of any approved label or market acceptance, or cause the recall or loss
of marketing approval of products that are already marketed. If any of our product candidates prior to or after any approval for
commercial sale, cause serious or unexpected side effects, or are associated with other safety risks such as misuse, abuse or
diversion, a number of potentially significant negative consequences could result, including: e regulatory authorities may
interrupt, delay or halt clinical trials; @ regulatory authorities may deny regulatory approval of our product candidates; ®
regulatory authorities may require certain labeling statements, such as warnings or contraindications or limitations on the
indications for use, and / or impose restrictions on distribution in the form of a REMS in connection with approval or post-
approval; e regulatory authorities may withdraw their approval, require more onerous labeling statements, impose a more
restrictive Risk Evaluation and Mitigation Strategy (“ REMS ), or require us to recall any product that is approved; ® we may
be required to change the way the product is administered or conduct additional clinical trials; ® our relationships with our
collaboration partners may suffer; ® we could be sued and held liable for harm caused to patients; or @ our reputation may
suffer. The reputational risk is heightened with respect to those of our product candidates that are being developed for pediatric
indications. We may voluntarily suspend or terminate our clinical trials if at any time we believe that they present an
unacceptable risk to participants or if preliminary data demonstrate that our product candidates are unlikely to receive regulatory
approval or unlikely to be successfully commercialized. Following receipt of approval for commercial sale of a product we may
voluntarily withdraw or recall that product from the market if at any time we believe that its use, or a person’ s exposure to it,
may cause adverse health consequences or death. To date we have not withdrawn, recalled, or taken any other action, voluntary
or mandatory, to remove an approved product from the market. In addition, regulatory agencies, IRBs, or data safety monitoring




boards may at any time recommend the temporary or permanent discontinuation of our clinical trials or request that we cease
using investigators in the clinical trials if they believe that the clinical trials are not being conducted in accordance with
applicable regulatory requirements, or that they present an unacceptable safety risk to participants. Although we have never been
asked by a regulatory agency, IRB, or data safety monitoring board to discontinue a clinical trial temporarily or permanently, if
we elect or are forced to suspend or terminate a clinical trial of any of our product candidates, the commercial prospects for that
product will be harmed and our ability to generate product revenue from that product may be delayed or eliminated.
Furthermore, any of these events may result in labeling statements such as warnings or contraindications. In addition, such
events or labeling could prevent us or our partners from achieving or maintaining market acceptance of the affected product and
could substantially increase the costs of commercializing our product candidates and impair our ability to generate revenue from

the commercrahzatlon of these products erther by us or by our collaboratlon partners Rrsks—Reiafed—te—Gtﬂ“Rehaﬂee—U-pen—Thﬁd

v affee b clop-and-commeretalize ; et-eandidates—\We may seek addrtronal collaboratron
arrangements with pharrnaceutlcal or biotechnology companies for the development or commercialization of our product
candidates. We may, with respect to our product candidates, enter into new arrangements on a selective basis depending on the
merits of retaining commercialization rights for ourselves as compared to entering into selective collaboration arrangements with
leading pharmaceutical or biotechnology companies for each product candidate, both in the U. S. and internationally. To the
extent that we decide to enter into collaboration agreements, we will face significant competition in seeking appropriate
collaborators and the terms of any collaboration or other arrangements that we may establish may not be favorable to us. Any
existing or future collaboration that we enter may not be successful. The success of our collaboration arrangements will depend
heavily on the efforts and activities of our collaborators. Collaborators generally have significant discretion in determining the
efforts and resources that they will apply to these collaborations. Disagreements between parties to a collaboration arrangement
regarding development, intellectual property, regulatory or commercialization matters can lead to delays in the development
process or commercialization of the applicable product candidate and, in some cases, termination of the collaboration
arrangement. These disagreements can be difficult to resolve if neither of the parties has final decision- making authority. Any
such termination or expiration could harm our business reputation and may adversely affect us financially. We depend on a
limited number of suppliers for materials and components required to manufacture our product candidates. The loss of these
suppliers, or their failure to supply us on a timely basis, could cause delays in our current and future capacity and adversely
affect our business. We depend on a limited number of suppliers for the materials and components required to manufacture our
product candidates. As a result, we may not be able to obtain sufficient quantities of critical materials and components in the
future. A delay or interruption by our suppliers may also harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. In
addition, the lead time needed to establish a relationship with a new supplier can be lengthy, and we may experience delays in
meeting demand in the event we must switch to a new supplier. The time and effort to qualify for and, in some cases, obtain
regulatory approval for a new supplier could result in additional costs, diversion of resources or reduced manufacturing yields,
any of which would negatively impact our operating results. Our dependence on single- source suppliers exposes us to
numerous risks, including the following: our suppliers may cease or reduce production or deliveries, raise prices or renegotiate
terms; our suppliers may become insolvent or cease trading; we may be unable to locate a suitable replacement supplier on
acceptable terms or on a timely basis, or at all; and delays caused by supply issues may harm our reputation, frustrate our
customers and cause them to turn to our competitors for future needs. We maintain our cash at financial institutions, at times in
balances that exceed federally insured limits. The failure of financial institutions could adversely affect our ability to pay
operational expenses or make other payments. Our cash held in non- interest- bearing and interest- bearing accounts can at times
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“ FDIC ”) insurance limits. If such banking institutions were to fail, we could
lose all or a portion of those amounts held in excess of such insurance limitations. In addition, even if account holders are
ultimately made whole with respect to a future bank failure, account holders’ access to their accounts and assets held in their
accounts may be substantially delayed. Any material loss that we may experience in the future or inability for a material time
period to access our cash and cash equivalents could have an adverse effect on our ability to pay our operational expenses or
make other payments, which could adversely affect our business. We rely on, and expect to continue to rely on, third parties to
conduct clinical trials for our product candidates. If these third parties do not successfully carry out their contractual duties,
comply with regulatory requirements or meet expected deadlines, we may not be able to obtain marketing approval for or
commercialize our product candidates, and our business could be substantially harmed. We have agreements with third- party
CROs to operationalize, provide monitors for and to manage data for our ongoing clinical trials. We rely heavily on these parties
for the execution of clinical trials and control only certain aspects of their activities. As a result, we have less direct control over
the start- up, conduct, timing and competition of these clinical trials, and the management of data developed through the clinical
trials than would be the case if we were relying entirely upon our own staff. Communicating with outside parties can also be
challenging, potentially leading to mistakes as well as difficulties in coordinating activities. However, we remain responsible for
the conduct of these trials and are subject to enforcement which may include civil and criminal liabilities for any violations of
FDA rules and regulations and the comparable foreign regulatory provisions during the conduct of our clinical trials. Outside
parties may: e have staffing difficulties; e fail to comply with contractual obligations; @ Devote inadequate resources to our
clinical trials; @ Experience regulatory compliance issues; ® Undergo changes in priorities or become financially distressed; or
e Form more favorable relationships with other entities, some of which may be our competitors. These factors, among others,
may materially adversely affect the willingness or ability of third parties to conduct our clinical trials and may subject us to
unexpected cost increases that are beyond our control. Nevertheless, we are responsible for ensuring that each of our studies is
conducted in accordance with the applicable protocol, legal, regulatory and scientific standards, and our reliance on CROs does
not relieve us of our regulatory responsibilities. We and our CROs are required to comply with GCPs, which are guidelines



enforced by the FDA, the competent authorities of the EU member states and equivalent competent authorities in foreign
jurisdictions for any products in clinical development. The FDA and foreign regulatory authorities enforce these regulations and
GCP guidelines through periodic inspections of clinical trial sponsors principal investigators, and trial sites, and IRBs. If we or
our CROs fail to comply with applicable GCPs, the clinical data generated in our clinical trials may be deemed unreliable and
the FDA or other equivalent competent authorities in foreign jurisdictions may require us to perform additional clinical trials
before approving our marketing applications. We cannot assure you that, upon inspection, the FDA or foreign regulatory
authorities will determine that any of our clinical trials comply with GCPs. In addition, our clinical trials must be conducted with
products produced under current Good Manufacturing Practices, or cGMPs and similar foreign requirements. Our failure or the
failure of our CROs to comply with these regulations may require us to repeat clinical trials, which would delay the regulatory
approval process and could also subject us to enforcement action up to and including civil and criminal penalties. If any of our
relationships with these third- party CROs terminate, we may not be able to enter into arrangements with alternative CROs. If
CROs do not successfully carry out their contractual duties or obligations or meet expected deadlines, if they need to be replaced
or if the quality or accuracy of the clinical data they obtain are compromised due to the failure to adhere to our clinical
protocols, regulatory requirements or for other reasons, any such clinical trials may be extended, delayed or terminated, and we
may not be able to obtain regulatory approval for, or successfully commercialize, Ketamir- 2, MIRA- 55 or our other product
candidates. As a result, our financial results and the commercial prospects for Ketamir- 2 MIRA- 55 or our other product
candidates would be harmed, our costs could increase and our ability to generate revenue could be delayed. We rely and expect
to continue to rely on third parties to manufacture our clinical product supplies and clinical candidates, and we may rely on third
parties for at least a portion of the manufacturing process of our product candidates, if approved. Our business could be harmed
if those third parties fail to provide us with sufficient quantities of product supplies or product candidates or fail to do so at
acceptable quality levels or prices. We do not currently own any facility that may be used as a clinical- scale manufacturing and
processing facility, and we rely on outside vendors and collaborators to manufacture supplies and process our product
candidates. For certain of our components or product candidates, we rely on single suppliers or manufacturers to supply or
manufacture, but we plan to expand the number of suppliers and manufacturers as we advance our product candidates through
clinical development. Our product candidates are not yet manufactured or processed on a commercial scale and we may remain
unable to do so for any of our product candidates. Although in the future we may develop our own manufacturing facilities, we
may also continue to use third parties as part of our manufacturing processes and may, in any event, never be successful in
developing our own manufacturing facilities. Our anticipated reliance on third- party manufacturers exposes us to the following
risks: @ We may be unable to identify manufacturers on acceptable terms or at all because the number of potential
manufacturers is limited and the FDA must inspect any manufacturers for current cGMP. ® Non- compliance of our third- party
manufacturers with requirements of our marketing application (s). In addition, a new manufacturer would have to be educated in,
or develop substantially equivalent processes for, the production of our product candidates. ® Third- party manufacturers may
have little or no experience with our product candidates -and therefore may require a significant amount of support from us in
order to implement and maintain the infrastructure and processes required to manufacture our product candidates. ® Third- party
manufacturers might be unable to timely manufacture our product candidates or produce the quantity and quality required to
meet our clinical and commercial needs, if any. ® Third- party manufacturers may not be able to execute our manufacturing
procedures and other logistical support requirements appropriately. ® Third- party manufacturers may not perform as agreed,
may not devote sufficient resources to our product candidates or may not remain in the contract manufacturing business for the
time required to supply our clinical trials or to successfully produce, store, and distribute our products, if any. @ Manufacturers
are subject to ongoing periodic unannounced inspection by the FDA and corresponding state or foreign agencies to ensure strict
compliance with cGMP and other government regulations and corresponding foreign standards. We do not have control over
third- party manufacturers’ compliance with these regulations and standards. ® We may not own, or may have to share, the
intellectual property rights to any improvements made by our third- party manufacturers in the manufacturing processes for our
product candidates. ® Our third- party manufacturers could breach or terminate their agreements with us, and we may be
required to pay fees upon suspension or termination of the agreement even if the manufacturers do not deliver adequate supply
of the product candidates or their components. ® Raw materials and components used in the manufacturing processes,
particularly those for which we have no other source or supplier, may not be available or may not be suitable or acceptable for
use due to factors beyond our control. ® Our third- party manufacturers may have unacceptable or inconsistent product quality
success rates and yields, and we have no direct control over their ability to maintain adequate quality control, quality assurance
and qualified personnel. Each of these risks could delay or prevent the completion of our clinical trials or the approval of any of
our product candidates by the FDA, result in higher costs or adversely impact commercialization of our product candidates. In
addition, we will rely on third parties to perform certain specification tests on our product candidates prior to delivery to
patients. If these tests are not appropriately done and test data are not reliable, patients could be put at risk of serious harm and
the FDA could place significant restrictions on our company until deficiencies are remedied. Furthermore, our or a third party’ s
failure to execute on our manufacturing requirements, to do so on commercially reasonable terms or to comply with cGMP
could adversely affect our business in a number of ways, including: @ An inability to initiate or continue clinical trials of our
product candidates under development; ® Delay in submitting regulatory applications, or receiving marketing approvals, for our
product candidates; ® Loss of the cooperation of future collaborators; ® Subjecting third- party manufacturing facilities or our
manufacturing facilities to additional inspections by regulatory authorities; ® Requirements to cease development or to recall
batches of our product candidates; and e In the event of approval to market and commercialize our product candidates, an
inability to meet commercial demands for our product or any other future product candidates. If any CMO or CDMO with whom
we contract fails to perform its obligations, we may be forced to enter into an agreement with a different CMO or CDMO, which
we may not be able to do on reasonable terms, if at all. In such scenario, our clinical trials supply could be delayed significantly



as we establish alternative supply sources. In some cases, the technical skills required to manufacture our products or product
candidates may be unique or proprietary to the original CMO or CDMO and we may have difficulty, or there may be contractual
restrictions prohibiting us from, transferring such skills to a back- up or alternate supplier, or we may be unable to transfer such
skills at all. In addition, if we are required to change CMOs or CDMOs for any reason, we will be required to verify that the
new CMO or CDMO maintains facilities and procedures that comply with quality standards and with all applicable regulations.
We will also need to verify, such as through a manufacturing comparability study, that any new manufacturing process will
produce our product candidate according to the specifications previously submitted to the FDA or another regulatory authority.
The delays associated with the verification of a new CMO or CDMO could negatively affect our ability to develop product
candidates or commercialize our products in a timely manner or within budget. In addition, changes in manufacturers often
involve changes in manufacturing procedures and processes, which could require that we conduct bridging studies between our
prior clinical supply used in our clinical trials and that of any new manufacturer. We may be unsuccessful in demonstrating the
comparability of clinical supplies which could require the conduct of additional clinical trials. We are dependent on third parties
to conduct our clinical trials and preclinical and nonclinical studies. Specifically, we rely on, and intend to continue to rely on,
medical institutions, clinical investigators, contract research organizations, or CROs, and consultants to conduct nonclinical
studies and clinical trials, in each case in accordance with our study protocols and applicable regulatory requirements. These
CROs, investigators and other third parties play a significant role in the conduct and timing of these studies or trials and the
subsequent collection and analysis of data. Though we expect to carefully manage our relationships with our CROs,
investigators and other third parties, there can be no assurance that we will not encounter challenges or delays in the future or
that these delays or challenges will not have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and prospects.
Further, while we have and will have agreements governing the activities of our third- party contractors, we have limited
influence over their actual performance. Nevertheless, we are responsible for ensuring that each of our clinical trials is
conducted in accordance with the applicable protocol and legal, regulatory and scientific standards and requirements, and our
reliance on our CROs and other third parties does not relieve us of our regulatory responsibilities. In addition, we and our CROs
are required to comply with GLP and GCP requirements, as applicable, which are regulations and guidelines enforced by the
FDA and comparable foreign regulatory authorities related to the conduct of nonclinical studies and clinical trials, respectively.
Regulatory authorities enforce GCPs through periodic inspections of trial sponsors, principal investigators and trial sites. If we
or any of our CROs or trial sites fail to comply with applicable GLP or GCP or other requirements, the collected nonclinical data
or the clinical data generated in our clinical trials may be deemed unreliable, and the FDA or comparable foreign regulatory
authorities may require us to perform additional nonclinical studies or clinical trials before approving our marketing
applications, if ever. Furthermore, our clinical trials must be conducted with materials manufactured in accordance with cGMP
regulations. Failure to comply with these regulations may require us to repeat clinical trials, which would delay the regulatory
approval process. There is a risk that our CROs, investigators or other third parties will be unable to devote adequate time and
resources to such trials or studies or perform as contractually required. If any of these third parties fail to meet expected
deadlines, adhere to our clinical protocols or meet regulatory requirements, or otherwise perform in a substandard manner, our
clinical trials may be extended, delayed or terminated. In addition, many of the third parties with whom we contract may also
have relationships with other commercial entities, including our competitors, for whom they may also be conducting clinical
trials or other development activities that could harm our competitive position. In addition, principal investigators for our
clinical trials are expected to serve as scientific advisors or consultants to us from time to time and may receive cash or equity
compensation in connection with such services. If these relationships and any related compensation result in perceived or actual
conflicts of interest, or the FDA concludes that the financial relationship may have affected the interpretation of the study, the
integrity of the data generated at the applicable clinical trial site may be questioned and the utility of the clinical trial itself may
be jeopardized, which could result in the delay or rejection by the FDA of any NDA we submit. Any such delay or rejection
could prevent us from receiving regulatory approval for, or commercializing, TELOIR- 1 and any future product candidates. Our
CROs have the right to terminate their agreements with us in the event of an uncured material breach and under other specified
circumstances. If any of our relationships with these third parties terminate, we may not be able to enter into arrangements with
alternative third parties on commercially reasonable terms, in a timely manner or at all. Switching or adding CROs, investigators
and other third parties involves additional cost and requires our management’ s time and focus. In addition, there is a natural
transition period when a new CRO commences work. As a result, delays occur, which can materially impact our ability to meet
our desired clinical development timelines. Though we work to carefully manage our relationships with our CROs, investigators
and other third parties, there can be no assurance that we will not encounter challenges or delays in the future or that these
delays or challenges will not have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and prospects. RisksRelated-to
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mareetplaee—Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to obtain patents, protect our trade secrets and operate without
infringing on the proprietary rights of others. We may rely upon a combination of patents, trade secret protection (i. e., know-
how), trademarks, licenses, and confidentiality agreements to protect the intellectual property of our product candidates. The
strengths of patents in the pharmaceutical field involve complex legal and scientific questions and can be uncertain. Where
appropriate, we seek patent protection for certain aspects of our products and technology. However, patent protection for
naturally occurring compounds is exceedingly difficult to obtain, defend and enforce. Filing, prosecuting and defending patents
throughout the world would be prohibitively expensive, so our policy is to look to patent technologies with commercial potential
in jurisdictions with significant commercial opportunities. However, patent protection may not be available for some of the
products or technology we are developing. If we must spend significant time and money protecting, defending, or enforcing our
patents, designing around patents held by others or licensing, potentially for large fees, patents or other proprietary rights held
by others, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be harmed. We may not develop additional proprietary




products that are patentable. The patent positions of pharmaceutical products are complex and uncertain. The scope and extent
of patent protection for our product candidates are particularly uncertain. To date, our principal product candidates have been
based on specific formulations of certain previously known cannabinoids found in nature in the cannabis sativa plant. While we
have sought patent protection, where appropriate, directed to, among other things, composition- of- matter for our specific
formulations, their methods of use, and methods of manufacture, we do not have and will not be able to obtain composition of
matter protection on these previously known cannabinoids per se. We anticipate that the products we develop in the future will
continue to be based on the same or other naturally occurring compounds, as well as additional synthetic compounds we may
discover. Although we have sought and expect to continue to seek patent protection for our product candidates, their methods of
use, and methods of manufacture, any, or all of them may not be subject to effective patent protection. If any of our products are
approved and marketed for an indication for which we do not have an issued patent, our ability to use our patents to prevent a
competitor from commercializing a non- branded version of our commercial products for that non- patented indication could be
significantly impaired or even eliminated. Publication of information related to our product candidates by us, or others may
prevent us from obtaining or enforcing patents relating to these products and product candidates. Furthermore, others may
independently develop similar products, may duplicate our products, or may design around our patent rights. In addition, any of
our issued patents may be opposed and / or declared invalid or unenforceable. If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual
property, we may face competition from companies who attempt to create a generic product to compete with our product
candidates. We may also face competition from companres Who develop a substantrally srmllar product to one of our product
candldates that is not covered by any of our patents - § y

substantral arnount of htrgatron both within and 0uts1de the U. S., 1nvolv1ng patent and other 1ntellectua1 property rrghts in the
pharmaceutical industry. We may, from time to time, be notified of claims that we are infringing upon patents, trademarks,
copyrights, or other intellectual property rights owned by third parties, and we cannot provide assurances that other companies
will not, in the future, pursue such infringement claims against us, our commercial partners or any third- party proprietary
technologies we have licensed. If we were found to infringe upon a patent or other intellectual property right, or if we failed to
obtain or renew a license under a patent or other intellectual property right from a third party, or if a third party that we were
licensing technologies from was found to infringe upon a patent or other intellectual property rights of another third party, we
may be required to pay damages, including damages of up to three times the damages found or assessed, if the infringement is
found to be willful, suspend the manufacture of certain products or reengineer or rebrand our products, if feasible, or we may be
unable to enter certain new product markets. Any such claims could also be expensive and time consuming to defend and divert
management’ s attention and resources. Our competitive position could suffer as a result. In addition, if we have declined or
failed to enter into a valid non- disclosure or assignment agreement for any reason, we may not own the invention or our
intellectual property, and our products may not be adequately protected. Thus, we cannot guarantee that our product candidates,
or our commercialization thereof, does not and will not infringe any third party’ s intellectual property. If we are unable to
obtain and maintain intellectual property protection for our technology and products, or if the scope of the intellectual property
protection obtained is not sufficiently broad, our competitors could commercialize technology and products similar or identical
to ours, and our ability to successfully commercialize our technology and products may be impaired. Our success depends in
large part on our ability to obtain and maintain patent protection in relevant countries with respect to our proprietary technology
and products. We seek to protect our proprietary position by filing patent applications in the United States and internationally
that are related to our novel technologies and product candidates. This patent portfolio includes issued patents and pending
patent applications covering pharmaceutical compositions and methods of use. The patent prosecution process is expensive and
time- consuming, and we may not be able to file and prosecute all necessary or desirable patent applications at a reasonable cost
or in a timely manner. We may choose not to seek patent protection for certain innovations and may choose not to pursue patent
protection in certain jurisdictions, and under the laws of certain jurisdictions, patents or other intellectual property rights may be
unavailable or limited in scope. It is also possible that we will fail to identify patentable aspects of our discovery and nonclinical
development output before it is too late to obtain patent protection. Moreover, in some circumstances, we may not have the right
to control the preparation, filing and prosecution of patent applications, or to maintain the patents, covering technology that we
license from third parties. Therefore, these patents and applications may not be prosecuted and enforced in a manner consistent
with the best interests of our business. The patent position of biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies generally is highly
uncertain, involves complex legal and factual questions and has in recent years been the subject of much litigation. In addition,
the laws of foreign countries may not protect our rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States. For example, India
and China do not allow patents for methods of treating the human body. Publications of discoveries in the scientific literature
often lag behind the actual discoveries, and patent applications in the United States and other jurisdictions are typically not
published until 18 months after filing, or in some cases not at all. Therefore, we cannot know with certainty whether we were
the first to make the inventions claimed in our owned or licensed patents or pending patent applications, or that we were the first
to file for patent protection of such inventions. As a result, the issuance, scope, validity, enforceability and commercial value of
our patent rights are highly uncertain. Our pending and future patent applications may not result in patents being issued which
protect our technology or products, in whole or in part, or which effectively prevent others from commercializing competitive
technologies and products. Changes in either the patent laws or interpretation of the patent laws in the EU, the United States and
other countries may diminish the value of our patents or narrow the scope of our patent protection. The risks described
pertaining to our patents and other intellectual property rights also apply to the intellectual property rights that we license, and
any failure to obtain, maintain and enforce these rights could have a material adverse effect on our business. In some cases, we
may not have control over the prosecution, maintenance or enforcement of the patents that we license, and our licensors may fail
to take the steps that we believe are necessary or desirable in order to obtain, maintain and enforce the licensed patents. Any



inability on our part to protect adequately our intellectual property may have a material adverse effect on our business, operating
results and financial position. The USPTO and various non- U. S. governmental patent agencies require compliance with several
procedural, documentary, fee payment and other similar provisions during the patent application process. In certain situations,
non- compliance can result in abandonment or lapse of the patent or patent application, resulting in partial or complete loss of
patent rights in the relevant jurisdiction. In such an event, our competitors might be able to enter the market and this
circumstance would have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, we acquired rights to Ketomir- 2 through a
license agreement with MIRALOGX and may in the future enter into other license agreements with third parties for other
intellectual property rights or assets. These license agreements may impose various diligence, milestone payment, royalty, and
other obligations on us. If we fail to comply with our obligations under these agreements, or we are subject to a bankruptcy, we
may be required to make certain payments to the licensor, we may lose the exclusivity of our license, or the licensor may have
the right to terminate the license, in which event we would not be able to develop or market products covered by the license.
Additionally, the milestone and other payments associated with these licenses will make it less profitable for us to develop our
drug candidates than if we had developed the licensed technology internally. In some cases, patent prosecution of our licensed
technology may be controlled solely by the licensor. If our licensors fail to obtain and maintain patent or other protection for the
proprietary intellectual property we license from them, we could lose our rights to the intellectual property or our exclusivity
with respect to those rights, and our competitors could market competing products using the intellectual property. In certain
cases, we may control the prosecution of patents resulting from licensed technology. In the event we breach any of our
obligations related to such prosecution, we may incur significant liability to our licensing partners. If disputes over intellectual
property and other rights that we have licensed prevent or impair our ability to maintain our current licensing arrangements on
acceptable terms, we may be unable to successfully develop and commercialize the affected product candidates. We have no
patent protection for MIRA- 55, which could adversely impact MIRA- 55’ s potential competitive position. We have no issued
patents relating to MIRA- 55 and our patent application for MIRA- 55 may not result in an issued patent. While we attempt to
protect our proprietary information as trade secrets through certain agreements with our employees, consultants, agents and other
organizations to which we disclose our proprietary information, we cannot give assurance that these agreements will provide
effective protection for our proprietary information in the event of unauthorized use or disclosure of such information. If other
products similar to MIRA- 55 are approved and marketed, we may be unable to prevent them from competing with MIRA- 55 in
MIRA- 55’ s potential marketplace. We expect that the presence of one or more competing products could reduce our potential
market share and could negatively impact potential price levels and third- party reimbursement for MIRA- 55, any of which
would materially affect our business. Risks Relating to the Ownership of our Common Stock Because of the speculative nature
of investment risk, you may lose your entire investment. An investment in our securities carries a high degree of risk and should
be considered as a speculative investment. We have a limited operating history, no revenues, have not paid dividends, and are
unlikely to pay dividends in the immediate or near future. The likelihood of our success must be considered in light of the
problems, expenses, difficulties, complications and delays frequently encountered in connection with the establishment of any
business. An investment in our securities may result in the loss of an investor’ s entire investment. Only potential investors who
are experienced in high- risk investments and who can afford to lose their entire investment should consider an investment in our
securities. Certain of our founding stockholders, plus our existing officers and directors, control a substantial interest in us and
thus may influence certain actions requiring stockholder vote. Our founding stockholders, which include the Bay Shore Trust,
and MIRALOGX, collectively own in excess of 36-27 % of our issued and outstanding common stock , as well as outstanding
warrants . Our officers and directors also own shares of our common stock. Therefore, these entities and individuals could
influence the outcome of matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant
corporate transactions. Sales of a significant number of shares of our common stock in the public markets, or the perception that
such sales could occur, could depress the market price of our common stock. Sales of a significant number of shares of our
common stock in the public markets, or the perception that such sales could occur as a result of our utilization of a universal
shelf registration statement or otherwise could depress the market price of our common stock and impair our ability to raise
capital through the sale of additional equity securities. Notably, a large number of shares of our common stock held by Bay
Shore Trust and MIRALOGX have been registered for public resale and could be sold in the public market, depressing our stock
price. Moreover, we cannot in general predict the effect that future sales of our common stock or the market perception that we
are permitted to sell a significant number of our securities would have on the market price of our common stock. The
requirements of being a public company may strain our resources, divert management’ s attention and affect our ability to attract
and retain executive management and qualified board members. As a reporting issuer, we are subject to the reporting
requirements of applicable securities legislation of the jurisdiction in which we are a reporting issuer, the listing requirements of
Nasdaq and other applicable securities rules and regulations. Compliance with these rules and regulations increase our legal and
financial compliance costs, make some activities more difficult, time- consuming or costly and increase demand on its systems
and resources. Applicable securities laws require us to, among other things, file certain annual and quarterly reports with respect
to its business and results of operations. In addition, applicable securities laws require us to, among other things, maintain
effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting. In order to maintain and, if required,
improve its disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting to meet this standard, significant
resources and management oversight are required and, as a result, management’ s attention may be diverted from other business
concerns, which could harm our business and results of operations. To comply with these requirements, we may need to hire
more employees in the future or engage outside consultants, which will increase its-our costs and expenses. In addition,
changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure are creating uncertainty for
public companies, increasing legal and financial compliance costs and making some activities more time consuming. These
laws, regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to their lack of specificity, and, as a



result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies. This
could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to
disclosure and governance practices. We intend to continue to invest resources to comply with evolving laws, regulations and
standards, and this investment may result in increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management’ s
time and attention from revenue- generating activities to compliance activities. If our efforts to comply with new laws,
regulations and standards differ from the activities intended by regulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguities related to their
application and practice, regulatory authorities may initiate legal proceedings against us, which could adversely affect our
business and financial results. As a public company subject to these rules and regulations, it may be more expensive to obtain
director and officer liability insurance, and we may be required to accept reduced coverage or incur substantially higher costs to
obtain coverage. These factors could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified members of the Board,
particularly to serve on the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee, and qualified executive officers. We are an *
emerging growth company, ” and any decision on our part to comply only with certain reduced reporting and disclosure
requirements applicable to emerging growth companies could make shares of our common stock less attractive to investors. We
are an “ emerging growth company, ” as defined in Section 2 (a) of the Securities Act. For as long as we continue to be an
emerging growth company, we may choose to take advantage of exemptions from various reporting requirements applicable to
other public companies that are not emerging growth companies, including, but not limited to, not being required to have our
independent registered public accounting firm audit our internal control over financial reporting under Section 404 of the
Sarbanes- Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and exemptions
from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any
golden parachute payments not previously approved. We could be an emerging growth company until the fifth anniversary of
the fiscal year end date following the completion of our initial public offering, however, our status would change more quickly
if we have more than US § 1. 235 billion in annual revenue, if the market value of our shares of common stock held by non-
affiliates equals or exceeds US $ 700 million as of June 30 of any year, or we issue more than US §$ 1. 0 billion of non-
convertible debt over a three- year period before the end of that period. Investors could find our shares less attractive if we
choose to rely on these exemptions. If some investors find shares less attractive as a result of any choice to reduce future
disclosure, there may be a less active trading market for our shares and our share price may be more volatile. For as long as we
are an “ emerging growth company ”, our independent registered public accounting firm will not be required to attest to the
effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404. We could be an “ emerging growth
company ” until the fifth anniversary of the fiscal year end date following the completion of our initial public offering. An
independent assessment of the effectiveness of our internal controls could detect problems that our management’ s assessment
might not. Undetected material weaknesses in our internal controls could lead to financial statement restatements and require us
to incur the expense of remediation. If we identify material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, or if we
are unable to comply with the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner or assert that our internal control over financial
reporting is effective, or if our independent registered public accounting firm is unable to express an opinion as to the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting when required, investors may lose confidence in the accuracy and
completeness of our financial reports and the market price of our securities could be negatively affected, and we could become
subject to investigations by the stock exchange on which our securities are listed, the SEC, or other regulatory authorities, which
could require additional financial and management resources. Additionally, we are a “ smaller reporting company ” as defined
in Item 10 (f) (1) of Regulation S- K. Smaller reporting companies may take advantage of certain reduced disclosure
obligations, including, among other things, providing only two years of audited financial statements. We will remain a smaller
reporting company until the last day of any fiscal year for so long as either: (i) the market value of our shares of common stock
held by non- affiliates does not equal or exceed $ 250 million as of the prior June 30th; or (ii) our annual revenues did not equal
or exceed $ 100 million during such completed fiscal year. To the extent we take advantage of such reduced disclosure
obligations, it may also make the comparison of our financial statements with other public companies difficult or impossible. If
we fail to maintain compliance with Nasdaq Listing Rules, our shares may be delisted from Nasdaq, which would result in a
limited trading market for our shares and make obtaining future debt or equity financing more difficult for the us. Our common
stock is listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ MIRA . However, there is no assurance that we will be able to
continue to maintain our compliance with the Nasdaq continued listing requirements. If we fail to do so, our securities may lose
their status on Nasdaq and they would likely be traded on the over- the- counter markets, including the Pink Sheets market. As a
result, selling our securities could be more difficult because smaller quantities of shares or warrants would likely be bought and
sold, transactions could be delayed, and security analysts’ coverage of us may be reduced. In addition, in the event our securities
are delisted, broker dealers would bear certain regulatory burdens which may discourage broker dealers from effecting
transactions in the securities and further limit the liquidity of the securities. These factors could result in lower prices and larger
spreads in the bid and ask prices for the securities. Such delisting from Nasdaq and continued or further declines in the share
price of the securities could also greatly impair our ability to raise additional necessary capital through equity or debt financing
and could significantly increase the ownership dilution to shareholders caused by our issuing equity in financing or other
transactions. If our shares were to be delisted from Nasdaq, they may become subject to the SEC” s “ penny stock ” rules.
Delisting from Nasdaq may cause our securities to become subject to the SEC’ s ““ penny stock ” rules. The SEC generally
defines a penny stock as an equity security that has a market price of less than $ 5. 00 per share or an exercise price of less than
$ 5. 00 per share, subject to certain exemptions. One such exemption is to be listed on Nasdaq. Therefore, if shares of our
common stock were to be delisted from Nasdaq, our securities could become subject to the SEC’ s ““ penny stock  rules. These
rules require, among other things, that any broker engaging in a purchase or sale of our securities provide its customers with: (i)
a risk disclosure document, (ii) disclosure of market quotations, if any, (iii) disclosure of the compensation of the broker and its



salespersons in the transaction, and (iv) monthly account statements showing the market values of our securities held in the
customer’ s accounts. A broker would be required to provide the bid and offer quotations and compensation information before
effecting the transaction. This information must be contained in the customer’ s confirmation. Generally, brokers are less willing
to effect transactions in penny stocks due to these additional delivery requirements. These requirements may make it more
difficult for shareholders to purchase or sell the shares of our common stock. Since the broker, not us, prepares this information,
we would not be able to assure that such information is accurate, complete or current. Some provisions of Florida law and our
amended and restated articles of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws may have anti- takeover effects that could
discourage an acquisition of us by others, even if an acquisition would be beneficial to our shareholders and may prevent
attempts by our shareholders to replace or remove our current management. Our status as a Florida corporation and the anti-
takeover provisions of the Florida Business Corporation Act, which we sometimes refer to as the FBCA, may discourage, delay
or prevent a change in control even if a change in control would be beneficial to our shareholders. The control share acquisition
statute, Section 607. 0902 of the FBCA, generally provides that in the event a person acquires voting shares of the company in
excess of 20 % of the voting power of all of our issued and outstanding shares, such acquired shares will not have any voting
rights unless such rights are restored by the holders of a majority of the votes of each class or series entitled to vote separately,
excluding shares held by the person acquiring the control shares or any of our officers or employees who are also directors of
the company. Certain acquisitions of shares are exempt from these rules, such as shares acquired pursuant to the laws of intestate
succession or pursuant to a gift or testamentary transfer, pursuant to a merger or share exchange effected in compliance with the
FBCA if we are a party to the agreement, or pursuant to an acquisition of our shares if the acquisition has been approved by our
board of directors before the acquisition. The control share acquisition statute generally applies to any “ issuing public
corporation, ”” which means a Florida corporation which has: ® One hundred or more shareholders; ® Its principal place of
business, its principal office, or substantial assets within Florida; and e Either (i) more than 10 % of its shareholders are resident
in Florida; (ii) more than 10 % of its shares are owned by residents of Florida; or (iii) one thousand shareholders are resident in
Florida. The affiliated transaction (or so- called “ business combination ) statute, Section 607. 0901 of the FBCA, provides that
we may not engage in certain mergers, consolidations, sales of assets, issuances of stock, reclassifications, recapitalizations, and
other affiliated transactions with any “ interested shareholder ” for a period of three years following the time that such
shareholder became an interested shareholder, unless: ® Prior to the time that such shareholder became an interested
shareholder, our board of directors approved either the affiliated transaction or the transaction which resulted in the shareholder
becoming an interested shareholder; or; ® Upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the shareholder becoming an
interested shareholder, the interested shareholder owned at least 85 % of our voting shares outstanding at the time the
transaction commenced; or ® At or subsequent to the time that such shareholder became an interested shareholder, the affiliated
transaction is approved by our board of directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of shareholders, and not by
written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least two- thirds of the outstanding voting shares which are not owned by the
interested shareholder. An “ interested shareholder ” is generally defined as any person who is the beneficial owner of more
than 15 % of our outstanding voting shares. Currently, Bay Shore Trust would be considered an  interested shareholder. ” The
voting requirements set forth above do not apply to a particular affiliated transaction if one or more conditions are met,
including, but not limited to, the following: if the affiliated transaction has been approved by a majority of our disinterested
directors; if we have not had more than 300 shareholders of record at any time during the three years preceding the date the
affiliated transaction is announced; if the interested shareholder has been the beneficial owner of at least 80 % of our
outstanding voting shares for at least three years preceding the date the affiliated transaction is announced; or if the
consideration to be paid to the holders of each class or series of voting shares in the affiliated transaction meets certain
requirements of the statute with respect to form and amount, among other things. Both the control share acquisition statute and
the affiliated transactions statute may have the effect of discouraging or preventing certain change of control or takeover
transactions involving us. In addition, our amended and restated articles of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws
contain provisions that may make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us or increase the cost of acquiring us, even if
doing so would benefit our shareholders, including transactions in which shareholders might otherwise receive a premium for
their shares. These provisions include: ® nothing in our amended and restated articles of incorporation precludes future
issuances without shareholder approval of the authorized but unissued shares of our common stock; e advance notice procedures
apply for shareholders to nominate candidates for election as directors or to bring matters before an annual meeting of
shareholders; ® a special meeting of shareholders can only be called by our chairman of the board of directors, our chief
executive officer, our president (in the absence of a chief executive officer), a majority of our board of directors or the holders of
10 % or more of all of our votes entitled to be cast on any issue proposed to be considered at the special meeting of shareholders;
e no provision in our amended and restated articles of incorporation or amended and restated bylaws provides for cumulative
voting, which limits the ability of minority shareholders to elect director candidates; ® directors will only be able to be removed
for cause; ® our amended and restated articles of incorporation authorizes undesignated preferred stock, the terms of which may
be established and shares of which may be issued, without the approval of the holders of our capital stock; and e certain
litigation against us can only be brought in Florida. These provisions could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving
a change in control of our company. These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for you
and other shareholders to elect directors of your choosing and cause us to take corporate actions other than those you desire. See
“ Description of Capital Stock. ”” Our amended and restated bylaws designates the state courts located within the state of Florida
as the exclusive forum for substantially all disputes between us and our shareholders and the federal district courts as the
exclusive forum for Securities Act claims, which could limit our shareholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for
disputes with us. Our amended and restated bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative
forum, the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, (ii) any action asserting a



claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any of our current or former directors, officers or other employees to us or our
shareholders, (iii) any action arising pursuant to any provision of the FBCA, our amended and restated articles of incorporation
or our amended and restated bylaws, or (iv) any other action asserting a claim that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine
shall be a state court located within the state of Florida (or, if a state court located within the state of Florida does not have
jurisdiction, the federal district court for the Middle District of Florida); provided that, the exclusive forum provision will not
apply to suits brought to enforce any liability or duty created by the Exchange Act, or to any claim for which the federal courts
have exclusive jurisdiction. Our amended and restated bylaws also provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of
an alternative forum, the U. S. federal district courts shall be the exclusive forum for the resolution of any claims arising under
the Securities Act. Under the Securities Act, federal and state courts have concurrent jurisdiction over all suits brought to
enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act, and investors cannot waive compliance with the federal securities
laws and the rules and regulations thereunder. Accordingly, there is uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce such a
forum selection provision as written in connection with claims arising under the Securities Act. By becoming a shareholder in
our company, you will be deemed to have notice of and have consented to the provisions of our amended and restated bylaws
related to choice of forum. The choice of forum provisions in our amended and restated bylaws may limit our shareholders’
ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us. Additionally, the enforceability of choice of forum provisions in
other companies’ governing documents has been challenged in legal proceedings, and it is possible that, in connection with any
applicable action brought against us, a court could find the choice of forum provisions contained in our amended and restated
bylaws to be inapplicable or unenforceable in such action. If so, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such
action in other jurisdictions, which could harm our business, results of operations, and financial condition. Securities or industry
analysts may not regularly publish reports on us, which could cause the price of our securities or trading volumes to decline. The
trading market for our securities could be influenced by research and reports that industry and / or securities analysts may
publish us, our business, the market or our competitors. We do not have any control over these analysts and cannot be assured
that such analysts will cover us or provide favorable coverage. If any of the analysts who may cover our business change their
recommendation regarding our securities adversely, or provide more favorable relative recommendations about our competitors,
the price of our securities would likely decline. If any analysts who may cover our business were to cease coverage or fail to
regularly publish reports on us, we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which in turn could cause the price of our
securities or trading volumes to decline. We will likely conduct further offerings of our equity securities in the future, in which
case your proportionate interest may become diluted. We will likely be required to conduct equity offerings in the future to
finance our current projects or to finance subsequent projects that we decide to undertake. If our common stock shares are issued
in return for additional funds, the price per share could be lower than that paid by our current shareholders. We anticipate
continuing to rely on equity sales of our common stock shares in order to fund our business operations. If we issue additional
common stock shares or securities convertible into shares of our common stock, your percentage interest in us could become
diluted. We may issue shares of preferred stock in the future, which could make it difficult for another company to acquire us or
could otherwise adversely affect holders of our common stock, which could depress the price of our common stock. Our
certificate of incorporation authorizes us to issue one or more series of preferred stock. Our board of directors will have the
authority to determine the preferences, limitations and relative rights of the shares of preferred stock and to fix the number of
shares constituting any series and the designation of such series, without any further vote or action by our shareholders. Our
preferred stock could be issued with voting, liquidation, dividend and other rights superior to the rights of our common stock.
The potential issuance of preferred stock may delay or prevent a change in control of us, discouraging bids for our common
stock at a premium to the market price, and materially adversely affect the market price and the voting and other rights of the
holders of our common stock. We have never declared or paid any cash dividends or distributions on our capital stock. We do
not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We have never declared or paid any
cash dividends or distributions on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain our future earnings, if any, to support
operations and to finance expansion and therefore we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future. The declaration, payment and amount of any future dividends will be made at the discretion of the board of
directors, and will depend upon, among other things, the results of our operations, cash flows and financial condition, operating
and capital requirements, and other factors as the board of directors considers relevant. There is no assurance that future
dividends will be paid, and, if dividends are paid, there is no assurance with respect to the amount of any such dividend. Item
1B. Unresolved Staff Comments. None. Item 1C. Cybersecurity. Cybersecurity Risk Management and Strategy We recognize
the importance of assessing, identifying, and managing material risks associated with cybersecurity threats, as such term is
defined in Item 106 (a) of Regulation S- K. These risks include, among other things: operational risks, intellectual property theft,
fraud, extortion, harm to employees or customers and violation of data privacy or security laws. Identifying and assessing
cybersecurity risk is integrated into our overall risk management systems and processes. Cybersecurity risks related to our
business, technical operations, privacy and compliance issues are identified and addressed through a multi- faceted approach
including third party assessments, internal IT Audit, IT security, governance, risk and compliance reviews. To defend, detect
and respond to cybersecurity incidents, we, among other things: conduct proactive privacy and cybersecurity reviews of systems
and applications, audit applicable data policies, conduct employee training, monitor emerging laws and regulations related to
data protection and information security and implement appropriate changes. Our risk management program also assesses third
party risks, and we perform third- party risk management to identify and mitigate risks from third parties such as vendors,
suppliers, and other business partners associated with our use of third- party service providers. Cybersecurity risks are evaluated
when determining the selection and oversight of applicable third- party service providers and potential fourth- party risks when
handling and / or processing our employee, business or customer data. To date, we have not identified any cybersecurity threats
or past incidents that have had, or are likely to have, a material impact on our company’ s operations, business strategy, financial



performance, or results of operations. Cybersecurity Governance To manage our cybersecurity governance, we use Coalition
Control, a cyber risk management platform that combines insurance, technology, and services from Coalition and its partners
into an online experience. It allows us to detect, assess, and mitigate cyber risks proactively. Coalition Control monitors and
detects risks across our entire external digital footprint, including assets, apps, services, and data leaks. The tool shows us where
any potential vulnerabilities are identified and how to fix them. Our CFO is responsible for the day- to- day oversight of
cybersecurity risks, and who utilizes the Coalition management platform for such risk management. Our CFO keeps the Board
apprised of ongoing cybersecurity risk mitigation and any breaches if presented. Item 2. Description of Property. Refer to Note 2
6, “ Leases ” to our consolidated financial statements included in Part IV of this Report on Form 10- K, which is incorporated
into this item by reference. Item 3. Legal Proceedings. Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures. Not applicable. PART II Item 5. Market
for Registrant’ s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities. Market Information
Our common stock has been public traded begam-tradingAwgust3;2623;-on The Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol *
MIRA " since August 3, 2023. Prior to that date, there was no public trading market for our common stock. Holders of
Common Stock As of March 28, 2824-2025 , we had approximately 9455 holders of record of our common stock. No cash
dividends have been paid on the common stock to date. We currently intend to retain earnings for further business development
and do not expect to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity
Compensation Plans See Item 12.- Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities Item 6. Reserved
MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following discussion and analysis provide information which our management believes is relevant to an assessment and
understanding of our results of operations and financial condition. You should read the following discussion and analysis of our
results of operations and financial condition together with our financial statements and related notes and other information
included elsewhere in this Report. In addition to historical financial information, this discussion contains forward- looking
statements based upon our current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially
from such forward- looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth under “ Risk Factors ” and *
Cautionary Note Regarding Forward- Looking Statements ” included elsewhere in this Report. Additionally, our historical
results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any period in the future. Overview We-are-MIRA
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (NASDAQ: MIRA) is a pre—clinical- stage pharmaceutical development company with-advancing two
neuroscience programs targeting a-breadrange-efneurologic and neuropsychiatric disorders. We-have-an-The company holds
exclusive heensing-agreementrights in the U. S., Canada, and Mexico for Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55 | two a-unique;patent

pending-novel drug candidates designed efa-l—kef&mme—ana-leg—tmdeﬁmrest-nga{-ten—to potentialty-deliverultra—rapid

antidepressanteffeets-address unmet medlcal needs in paln management pfeﬂdmg—hqae-feﬁméﬂdﬂal&baf&mg—&eafmem-
festsf&nt—deple%lon(—"PRB)— v 3

of Ketamlr 2 and MIRA- 55 Concluded that it Would not be Conﬂdered a Controlled qub%tance or hsted chemlcal under the
Controlled Substances Act (CSA) and its governing regulations. Additienally—w =
S5-to-be-evatuated-by-the b—S—DEA-We had net losses of $ 7. 9 mllllon and $ 12 m-l-l-hen—&nd—$—7— -1—0 mllhon for the year

ended December 31, %92—3—2024 and December 31, %922—2023 reipectlvely —Reeent—Beve{epmeﬂfS—I-ﬂ-eaﬁ-y—Febﬁlafy—EG%—we

e&ndtd&tewvh&e—s&H—fef&rmﬁg—etu“ﬂghﬁs—te—PvﬂM}a— Rever%e Stock Spht Effectlve June 28, 2023 we Completed a 1-for- 5

reverse stock split of our outstanding common stock. Unless otherwise noted, the share and per share information in this Report
reflects the reverse stock split. Components of our Results of Operations Research and Development Expenses Research and
development expenses represent costs incurred to conduct research and development of our product candidate. We recognize all
research and development costs as they are incurred. Research and development expenses consist primarily of the following: e
salartes-contracted research and benefits-manufacturing ; e eontractedresearch-and-manufaeturing-patent- related costs ; o
consulting arrangements; and e other expenses incurred to advance our research and development activities. Our operating
expenses have historically been the costs associated with our patent prosecution and initial investment in pre- clinical research
and development activities. We expect research and development expenses will increase in the future as we advance Ketamir- 2
and MIRA- 55 into and through clinical trials and pursue regulatory approvals, which will require a significant investment in
costs of clinical trials, regulatory support, and contract manufacturing. In addition, we will evaluate opportunities to acquire or
in- license additional product candidates and technologies, which may result in higher research and development expenses due



to license fee and / or milestone payments, as well as added clinical development costs. The process of conducting clinical trials
necessary to obtain regulatory approval is costly and time consuming. We may never succeed in timely development and
achieving regulatory approval for our product candidates. The probability of success of our product candidates may be affected
by numerous factors, including clinical data, competition, manufacturing capability and commercial viability. As a result, we are
unable to determine the duration and completion costs of our development projects or when and to what extent we will generate
revenue from the commercialization and sale of our product candidates. General and Administrative Expenses General and
administrative expenses consist of employee- related expenses, including salaries, benefits, and travel, and other administrative
functions, as well as fees paid for legal, accounting and tax services, consulting fees and facilities costs not otherwise included
in research and development expense. Legal costs include general corporate legal fees and-patenteosts- We expect to incur
additional expenses as a result of becoming a public company, including expenses related to compliance with the rules and
regulations of the SEC and Nasdaq, additional insurance, investor relations and other administrative expenses and professional
services. Interest expense Interest expense, net consists of accrued interest on a related party line of credit, net of earned interest
income. Results of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2822-Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023
2022-Revenues $- $- Operating costs: General and administrative expenses 4, 712, 753 6, 499, 537 2,992,425 Related party
travel costs = 453, 550 45704;356-Research and development expenses 3, 305, 575 1, 572, 963 253545465 Total operating costs
8, 018, 328 8, 526, 049 F-847,-940-Interest income ( cxpense ) , net 165, 669 (3, 456, 294 HH9;250-) Net loss attributable to
common stockholders § (4H-7 , 982-852 , 343-659 ) $ (F11 , 658982 , +998-343 ) Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0. 64-51 ) $
(0. 46-85 ) Weighted average common stock shares outstanding 48;566;,458— 15 47, 566-444 , 533-149 13, 924, 619 General
and Administrative Expenses. We incurred $ 4. 7 million and $ 6. 5 mitlerand-$2-9-million in general and administrative
expenses during the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 and December 31, 2822-2023 , respectively. General and
administrative expenses are-eompesed-in 2024 consisted of stock compensation expense of $ 1. 9 million, payroll expense of
$ 0. 9 million, accounting and legal expenses of $ 0. 4 million, marketing, investor relations, advertising, and general
corporate expenses of $ 1. 0 million and insurance expenses of $ 0 5 mllhon The decrease in general and admlmstratlve
expenses during 2024 relate primarily to a efeomp afe ston A
admmrstr&tterrartd—e&tem%ated—eeﬁs—?heﬂﬁerease-decrease ﬂ—prﬂﬁaﬂ-}y—&ue-m personnel in 2024 compared to 2023 atrand a
concerted iterea e s— effort ofto
conserve cash until the exeeut—rve—teaﬁa—shelf reglstratlon statement and at- the- market offermg was put into place in
August 2024 . Related Party Travel Costs. We incurred $ 0. 5 4mittenand-$4-—Fmillion in related party travel costs during the
year ended December 31, 2023 and-. There were no related party travel costs incurred during the year ended December 31,
2022-2024 respeettvely-. Related party travel costs conslsted ofa lease and use of an alrplane with an entity under common
control. The airplane deerease e he-lcase was terminated in
March 2023 , and hence, we ceased use of the alrplane and there were no further costs incurred . Interest income ( expense
). We earned $ 0. 2 million, in interest income (expense) net, during the year ended December 31, 2024, which consisted of
income earned from funds in a money market account . We incurred $ 3. 5 million, fet-in tnterest-expense-and-interest
income (expense) net, during the year ended December 31, 2023, and-which consisted of $ 2. 8 million of write- off of
unamortized deferred financing costs, $ 0. 8+7 million of debt issuance costs, offset by $ 0. 02 million of interest income.
Research and Development expense-Expenses . during-During the year ended December 31, 2622-2024 , we respeetively-

Interestexpense-during 2023-inetuded- incurred $ 2-3 . &3 million in research e%wrﬁe—efﬁe-ﬁtmamert-rzed—deferred—ﬁnaﬂemg
eosts;$-0—44-millien-of debtissuanee-eosts-and development $-0—-02-million-ofinterestineome—Theremaining 2023-and-2022

interestexpense-expenses , which were primarily eonsists-ofacertned-interestonra-rclated party Hne-oferedit—Researeh-to pre-
IND submission work, consultants and BevelopmentExpenses-stock compensation . During the year ended December 31,

2023, we incurred $ 1. 6 million in research and development expenses, which were primarily related to initial payments for
toxicology studies, consultants and stock compensation. The increase We-irenrred-$24-million-in rescarch and development
expenses during the-three-menths-ended-Deeember31+2622-2024 —re}at-mg—are related to the IND enablmg stud1es -m-rﬁa-}
payment-for-toxieotogy study-eosts—Researeh-and submission 2
eonsultant-expenses-. Major components of research and development expenses durlno the year ended December 31 %92—3—2024
are as follows: R & D Category Expense R & D consultants $ 0. 25-53 million R & D research $ 0. 3796 million R & D
toxicology $ 8-1 . 2172 million R & D stock compensation $ 0. 74-10 million Liquidity and Capital Resources Since our
inception in September 2020, we have financed our operations primarily through an unsecured line of credit with a major
shareholder and an affiliated company and through a private placement of shares of our common stock that occurred during the
fourth quarter 2021 and during 2022. We intend to finance our clinical development programs and working capital needs from
existing cash, potential new sources of debt and equity financing, including the proceeds from our completed IPO in August
2023 , and through proceeds of an ATM offering . We may also enter into new licensing and commercial partnership
agreements. On August 12, 2024, the Company filed a shelf registration statement on Form S- 3 with the SEC. The terms
of any offering under the shelf registration statement will be established at the time of such offering and will be
described in a prospectus supplement filed with the SEC prior to completion of any such offering On April 28, 2023, we
entered into a Promissory Note and Loan Agreement with the Bay Shore Trust, a trust established by our founder, and under
which various of his family members are beneficiaries (the ““ Bay Shore Trust ). Under this Promissory Note and Loan
Agreement (the “ Bay Shore Note ), we have the right to borrow up to an aggregate of $ 5, 000, 000 from the Bay Shore Trust
at any time up to the second anniversary of the issuance of the Bay Shore Note or, if earlier, upon the completion of our initial
public offering. Our right to borrow funds under the Bay Shore Note is subject to the absence of a material adverse change in
our assets, operations, or prospects. The Bay Share Note, together with accrued interest, will become due and payable on the
second anniversary of the issuance of the note, provided that it may be prepaid at any time without penalty. The Bay Shore Note




will accrue interest at a rate equal 7 % per annum, %imple interest, during the first year that the note is outstanding and 10 % per
annum, simple interest, thereafter. The Bay Shore Note is unsecured. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Bay Shore Note was
paid in full exeeptfor-an-unpaidinterestbalanee-of-$—0+mitlion- In consideration of the loan facility provrded by the Bay
Shore Trust, we issued to the Bay Shore Trust a common stock purchase warrant on April 28, 2023, giving the Bay Shore Trust
the right to purchase up to 1, 000, 000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $ 5. 00 per share, which warrant will
expire five years after the date of grant. Since January 1, 2023, MIRALOGX, LLC, an intellectual property development and
holding company owned by Bay Shore Trust (“ MIRALOGX ”), has advanced funds on behalf of Bay Shore Trust to our
company in order to fund operating activities. The total amount advanced and outstanding from MIRALOGX was $ 1. 6 million
immediately prior to being consolidated into the Bay Shore Note in 2023, and such amounts become a part of the outstanding
balance of the Bay Shore Note, which as of December 31, 2023, is $ 0. On July 20, 2023, we entered into a conversion
agreement with the Bay Shore Trust under which the Bay Shore Trust agreed to convert, upon the completion of our initial
public offering, $ 1, 100, 190 of the outstanding principal balance of the Bay Shore Note into shares of our common stock at a
conversion price equal to our initial public offering price, which resulted in the issuance of 157, 170 shares to the Bay Shore
Trust upon the completion of our initial public offering (the “ Bay Shore Trust Conversion Agreement ”’). In August 2023, we
completed our IPO of common stock selling 1, 275, 000 shares at an offering price of $ 7. 00 per share, resulting in gross
proceeds of $ 8. 9 million. Net proceeds received after underwriting fees and offering expenses were $ 8. 1 million. We raised $
3. 2 million in 2022. Substantially all our equity capital had been raised at $ 1. 00 per share (pre- reverse split). We used $ 3-5 . 4
6 million in operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2823-2024 , compared to $ 4. 5 —6-million in operating
activities during the year ended December 31, 2822-2023 . We have incurred significant losses and negative cash flows from
operations since inception and expect to incur additional losses until such time that we can generate significant revenue and
profit. We had negative cash flow from operations of approximately $ 3-5 . 4-6 million for the year ended December 31, 2623
2024 and an accumulated deficit of approximately $ 24-29 . 2-1 million as of December 31, 2623-2024 . As of December 31,
2623-2024 , we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $ 42 . 8 6—m1-1-heﬁ—&ﬂd—werkrﬂg—eapﬁa-l—ef—$—4—4—mrlhon We
currently expect that our cash and cash equivalents be sufficient to fund our operations, development plans, and capital
expenditures through at least the fourth-third quarter of 2624-2025 . We did not have any material non- cancellable contractual
obligations as of December 31, 2823-2024 . Cash Flows The following table provides information regarding our cash flows for
the periods presented: Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2822-Net cash provided by (used in): Operating activities $ (45,
532560 , 463-606 ) S (54 , 604532 , 759403 ) Financing activities 3, 790, 971 8, 783, 991 3;446;485-Net change in cash § (1,
769, 635) $ 4, 251, 588 $+42,458;,574)-Net Cash Used in Operating Activities The Cash used in operating activities resulted
primarily from our net losses, stock- based compensation expense r-amertization-of-debt-issuanee-eests-and changes in
components of accounts payable and accrued liabilities . For the year ended December 31, 2024, operating activities used $
5. 6 million of cash, primarily due to a net loss of $ 7. 9 million, offset by $ 1. 9 million in stock- based compensation
expense, and a $ 0. 4 million change in accounts payable, accrued and prepaid expenses. Accounts payable, accrued and
prepaid expenses was primarily composed of research and development payables, consultant costs, insurance costs and
investor relations expenses . For the year ended December 31, 2023, operating activities used $ 4. 5 million of cash, primarily
due to a net loss of $ 12 million, a $ 0. 6 million change in accounts payable, accrued and prepaid expenses, offset by $ 2. 5
million in stock- based compensation expense, $ 0. 7 million in amortization of debt issuance costs, $ 3. 5 million of interest
expense, and $ 1. 1 million of repayments under related party line of credit. Interest income ( expense ), net was primarily

composed of debt issuance costs wafr&nt—expense—&nd—lme-ef—efed-rt—eaqaense— offqet by interest income —Aeeeuﬁs—payab}e;

bﬁﬁm Account% payable accrued and prepard expenses was prrmarrly

composed of research and development payables, consultant costs, insurance costs and investor relations expenses. Net Cash
Provided by Financing Activities For the year ended December 31, 2024, financing activities provided $ 3. 8 million of cash,
resulting primarily from $ 3. 6 million in proceeds from sale of common stock, less offering costs, $ 0. 1 million from the
Bay Shore Trust short- swing disgorgement, and $ 0. 03 million in advances from related party. For the year ended
December 31, 2023, financing activities provided $ 8. 8 million of cash, resulting primarily from $ 7. 7 million in proceeds from
sale of common itock less offerrng costs and $ 2. 1 million in advances from related party hne of credrt offset by $ 1. | mitkton

+6-million of repayment% under related party line of credit. We currently antrcrpate that we erl seck to monetize our product
candidates, Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55, at the end of our planned Phase 2-II studies. Prior to that time, we anticipate that
additional capital may be required to support ongoing activities and further phases of development. Should that be required, our
available capital may be consumed more rapidly than currently anticipated, resulting in the need for additional funding. In
addition, there can be no assurance that additional funding, when and if required, will be available at commercially favorable
terms, if at all. Accordingly, we may need to raise additional capital, which may be available to us through a variety of sources,
including: @ public equity markets; ® private equity financings; ® commercialization agreements and collaborative
arrangements; @ sale of product royalty; e grants and new license revenues; ® bank loans; and @ public or private debt.
Additional funding, capital, or loans (including, without limitation, milestone, or other payments from potential
commercialization agreements) may be unavailable on favorable terms, if at all. If adequate funds are not available, we may be
required to significantly reduce or refocus our operations or to obtain funds through arrangements that may require us to
relinquish rights to certain technologies and drug formulations or potential markets, any of which could have a material adverse



effect on us, our financial condition, and our results of operations. To the extent that additional capital is raised through the sale
of equity or convertible debt securities or exercise of warrants and options, the issuance of such securities would result in
ownership dilution to existing stockholders. If we are unable to attract additional funds on commercially acceptable terms, it
may adversely affect our ability to achieve our development and commercialization goals, which could have a material and
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. We believe that we have sufficient resources
available to support our development activities and business operations and timely satisfy our obligations as they become due
into the feurth-third quarter of 2024-2025 . We do not have sufficient cash and cash equivalents as of the date of filing this
Annual Report on Form 10- K to support our operations for at least the 12 months following the date the financial statements
are issued. These conditions raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern through 12 months after the
date that the financial statements are issued. To alleviate the conditions that raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue
as a going concern, we plan to secure additional capital, potentially through a combination of public or private equity offerings
and strategic transactions, including potential alliances and drug product collaborations; however, none of these alternatives are
committed at this time. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in obtaining sufficient funding on terms acceptable
to us to fund continuing operations, if at all, identify and enter into any strategic transactions that will provide the capital that we
will require or achieve the other strategies to alleviate the conditions that raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as
a going concern. If none of these alternatives are available, or if available, are not available on satisfactory terms, we will not
have sufficient cash resources and liquidity to fund our business operations for at least the 12 months following the date the
financial statements are issued. The failure to obtain sufficient capital on acceptable terms when needed may require us to delay,
limit, or eliminate the development of business opportunities and our ability to achieve our business objectives and our
competitiveness, and our business, financial condition, and results of operations will be materially adversely affected. In
addition, the perception that we may not be able to continue as a going concern may cause others to choose not to deal with us
due to concerns about our ability to meet our contractual obligations. The accompanying financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal
course of business, and do not include any adjustments relating to recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or
the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should we be unable to continue as a going concern.
Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements A description of recently issued and adopted accounting
pronouncements that may potentially impact our financial position and results of operations is disclosed in Note -1 to our
financial statements appearing at the end of this Report. Off- Balance Sheet Arrangements During the periods presented, we did
not have, nor do we currently have any off balance sheet arrangements as defined under SEC rules. Summary of Crltlcal
Accounting Policies W ; ation Ax-BSSets

are expensed in the perlod in Wthh they are incurred and include the expenses pald to third parties, such as contract research
organizations and consultants, who conduct research and development activities on our behalf. Patent- related costs, including
registration costs, documentatlon costs and other legal fees ass001ated W1th the apphcatlon are expensed in the period in Wthh
theyarelncurred. 3e stimates—The-prepara al-sta with-ge y AtHHRE

sueh—d-l-ffefenees—emﬁd—be—m&teﬂa-l— Stoek based eompensatlon We account for stock based compensatlon under the provisions
of FASB ASC 718, “ Compensation- Stock Compensation ”, which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation
expense for all stock- based awards made to employees, directors and consultants based on estimated fair values on the grant
date. We estimate the fair value of stock- based awards on the date of grant using the Black- Scholes model. The value of the
portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service periods using the
straight- line method. We have elected to account for forfeiture of stock- based awards as they occur. Emerging Growth
Company Election We are an “ emerging growth company ” as defined in Section 2 (a) of the Securities Act and have elected to
take advantage of the benefits of the extended transition period for new or revised financial accounting standards. We expect to
continue to take advantage of the benefits of the extended transition period, although we may decide to early adopt such new or
revised accounting standards to the extent permitted by such standards. We expect to use this extended transition period for
complying with new or revised accounting standards that have different effective dates for public and non- public companies
until the earlier of the date we (i) are no longer an emerging growth company or (ii) affirmatively and irrevocably opt out of the
extended transition period provided in the JOBS Act. This may make it difficult or impossible to compare our financial results
with the financial results of another public company that is either not an emerging growth company or is an emerging growth
company that has chosen not to take advantage of the extended transition period exemptions because of the potential differences
in accounting standards used. In addition, we intend to rely on the other exemptions and reduced reporting requirements
provided by the JOBS Act. Subject to certain conditions set forth in the JOBS Act and compliance with applicable laws, if, as an
emerging growth company, we rely on such exemptions, we are not required to, among other things: (a) provide an auditor’ s
attestation report on our system of internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 (b) of the Sarbanes- Oxley
Act 0f 2002; (b) provide all of the compensation disclosures that may be required of non- emerging growth public companies
under the Dodd- Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010; (c) comply with any requirement that may be
adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the



auditor’ s report providing additional information about the audit and the financial statements (auditor discussion and analysis);
and (d) disclose certain executive compensation- related items such as the correlation between executive compensation and
performance and comparisons of the Chief Executive Officer’ s compensation to median employee compensation. We will
remain an emerging growth company under the JOBS Act until the earliest of (a) December 31, 2028, (b) the last date of our
fiscal year in which we had total annual gross revenue of at least $ 1. 07 billion, (¢) the date on which we are deemed to be a
large accelerated filer ” under the rules of the SEC or (d) the date on which we have issued more than $ 1. 0 billion in non-
convertible debt securities during the previous three years. Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk. Smaller reporting companies are not required to provide the information required by this item. Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data. Our Censelidated-Financial Statements and Notes thereto and the tepettreports of
Salberg & Company P. A for the year ended December 31, 2024 and Cherry Bekaert for the year ended December 31,
2023 , our independent registered public accounting firmr-firms (PEAOBIHD:677-, for the respective years ended listed above
, are set forth on pages F- 1 through F- 22 of this Report. Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on
Accounting and Financial Disclosure. Item 9A. Controls and Procedures. Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures ¥We
have-established-Our management, our Chief Executive Officer (our principal executive officer) and our Chief Financial
Officer (our principal financial officer) (the “ Certifying Officers ), has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e) or 15d- 15 (e) under the Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2024.
The term “ disclosure controls and procedures, ” as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e) under the Exchange Act,
means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by
the company in the reports that we-it file-files or sabmit-submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported , within the time periods specified in the SEC” s rules and forms . Disclosure controls and procedures include,
without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company
in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company’ s

management, including the-its principal executive effieertour-ChiefExeeutive-Offieery-and principal finanetal-accounting
efﬁeer—ofﬁcers (—, ot or Ghief—Fm&neial-efﬁeeﬁ-persons performmg s1mllar functlons as approprlate to allow mmlv

eﬂ—Feﬂﬂ—l—G——IGM&nagemeﬂt—luoonuu lhdl any d-ise-k-)safe—uommls dnd plocuduru no matter hO\\ well dcsmmd and operated,
can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and our management necessarily applies its judgment in
evaluating the cost- benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures . Our-The Certifying Officers have
concluded, based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this Report, that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective have-been-desigred-to provide reasonable assurance that efachieving-thetr—- the objectives of our
disclosure control system were met. Management’ s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Section 13a- 15 (f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended). Internal control over
financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the Company’ s principal financial officer to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Company’ s
financial statements for external reporting purposes in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles
and include those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposition of the assets of the companys; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorization of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’ s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements. During 2024, we designed and implemented new and enhanced
controls to strengthen our internal controls over financial reporting, including hiring additional experienced accounting
personnel, among other enhancements. Management believes these enhancements were sufficient to remediate
previously identified material weaknesses. As of December 31, 2024, management conducted an assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework established in Internal
Control- Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway
Commission . Based on the criteria established by COSO management such-evaluation,-our-Chief Exeettive-Offteer-and
Chief Finanetal-Offteerconcluded that eur-diselosure-the Company’ s internal eontrols— control and-proeedures-were-over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2024. This Report does not effeetive-at-include an attestation report
of the Company’ s independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting as
smaller reporting companies are not required to include such report and emerging growth companies (“ EGC’ s ”) are
exempt from this requirement entirely until the-they end-ef fiseal-year2623-are no longer an EGC. Management’ s report
is not subject to attestation by the Company’ s independent registered public accounting firm . Changes in Internal
Control over Financial Reporting There were no additional changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Rule 13 (a)- 15 (f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the yearended-Deeember3+;2023-period covered by this

annual report that hd\L materially affected, or are udsonablv li kuly to malumlly d[ ect, our internal wnlrol over financial




pablie-eempantes- [tem 9B. Other Information. Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections
PART III Item 10. Directors, Executlve Officers dnd Corpordte Governance. Mareh2024-Changes-to-Our-Managementand

efﬁeefs—Our directors dnd executlve oﬁlcers and their ages as of the date of this Report are as follows: que Age Position Erez
Aminov Chief Executive Officer and Chairman Michelle Yanez Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer Miekael
Jerman-Matthew Pratt Whalen Director Matthew Paul Del Giudice, M. D. Director Denil Nanji Shekhat, M. D. Director
Edward MacPherson DirectorThe following is a brief biography of each of our current executive officers and directors: Erez
Aminov has served as a director and our Chief Executive Officer since April 2023 and our Chairman since March 2024. Mr.
Aminov is an experienced biotechnology consultant and investor and initially joined our as a consultant in 2022. Mr. Aminov’ s
experience in the biotech consulting sector began in 2021 when he founded Locate Venture Corp. in September 2021. Locate
Venture is a strategy and investment consulting firm focused on advancing and supporting early- stage biotech startups. Prior to
founding Locate Venture Corp., from February 2015 to September 2020, Mr. Aminov served as the President of Finds4less Inc.,
a global distributor of electronics and gaming products. In this role, Mr. Aminov provided strategic oversight and direction for
all aspects of the company’ s operations, while also spearheading new business development initiatives to capitalize on
emerging market opportunities. Mr. Aminov’ s more than two decades of experience includes experience with the biotech
industry’ s particular challenges, including creating strategic alliances and guiding startups toward growth and prosperity. Mr.
Aminov earned a B. A. in Accounting from Touro University in New York. We believe that Mr. Aminov is qualified to serve as
one of our directors based on his finance and investment experience, particularly with early stage life sciences companies.
Michelle Yanez, MBA has served as our Chief Financial Officer since April 2023, prior to which she served as our Corporate
Controller since May 2022. Ms. Yanez is a senior financial executive with over 25 years of experience in public and privately
held biotech, pharmaceutical, and life science companies. Ms. Yanez’ experience includes a broad range of responsibilities in a
highly complex and regulated market. She also brings deep corporate governance experience through her work with corporate

boards, including dudlt and fmdnce committees. Smce Ma—y—June %92—2—2024 Ms. Yanez -ts—paft-—t-ﬂﬁe—@efpefafe—@eﬂ-tfeﬂer—&t

a pre- chmcal— stage pharmaceutlcal company, seekmg to lead development in age- reversal science, by focusmg on the
development of a novel small molecule designed to lengthen the DNA’ s protective telomere caps, which are crucial in the
aging process . From May 2002 until its acquisition in April 2022, Ms. Yanez held various leadership positions at ;ineluding
the-Direetorof FinanetalReporting;ef BioDelivery Sciences International, Inc. (Nasdaq: BDSI). In her role, she led financial
offerings, managed due diligence for product acquisitions and financings and managed finance documents and filings for the
tender offer, leading to the acquisition of BioDelivery Sciences in April 2022. Ms. Yanez also serves as a non- employee
director of Inhibitor Therapeutics, Inc. (OTCQB: INTI), a publicly traded pharmaceutical development company focused on
therapeutics for certain cancers and non- cancerous proliferation disorders, since December 2022. Ms. Yanez is a-ember-also
Co- Founder and Chief Financial Officer of the-Institite-Santander Pharma Consulting, a privately held life sciences
consulting firm that provides business development and commercial strategy services to pharmaceutical, medical device,
and life science companies offering guidance throughout all stages of commercial development, from inception to
product launch, since February 2024. Ms. Yanez earned her B A. 1n Busmess Mdnas_ement Aeeeuﬂfaﬂ%s—from University
South Florida and further distinguished v tved-her acumen with an
MBA degree-euntlaude-in Strateglc Leadershlp from Rutgers School of Busmess -Sehee-l— Cum Laude . MichaeHerman
Matthew Pratt Whalen , CPA , i a direetor-Certified Public Accountant with over two decades of
experience in Beeember%@%—public accounting and corporate finance . He-alse-Mr. Whalen currently serves as a-member
the Chief Financial Officer of Power Digital Marketing Inc., an industry leading digital marketing agency, where the— he
board-has driven significant revenue growth and led key financial transactions. Specifically, Mr. Whalen oversees the
finance team, manages tax and audit relationships, and handles treasury management. Prior to joining Power Digital,
from 2010 to May 2021, Mr. Whalen was the Chief Financial Officer of MRC Smart Technology Solutions, a subsidiary




of Xerox Corporation where he played a pivotal role in growing the company’ s revenue and managed diverse teams
across multiple departments. Mr. Whalen holds a B. A. in Accounting from the University of San Diego and is a
Certified Public Accountant in California. Mr. Whalen has also served on the Finance Committee of United Way San

Diego. We believe that Mr. Whalen is qualified to serve as one of our directors efdnhibtterTherapenties; Ine~(OFCINTD

based on hlS extensive experience in finance and as a Certlﬁed Publlc Accountant . Mr :}eﬂﬁ&n—Whalen has also served as

ex—fefd—Dr Matthew Paul Del Gludlce Jomed our Company asa dlrector in March 2024 Dr Del Gludlce has practlced asa
radiologist since 2014. He currently serves as a general overnight emergency radiologist at the Cleveland Clinic and as a real
estate investor with Comfort Living, LLC. Prior to joining the Cleveland Clinic, from March 2021 to May 2022, Dr. Del
Giudice was a general radiologist with Radiology and Imaging Specialists in Lakeland, Florida. From July 2015 to February
2021, Dr. Del Giudice was a radiologist with Radiology Partners Phoenix, and from July 2014 to June 2015, he practiced as a
musculoskeletal radiologist at the University of Arizona Health Sciences Center —= Tucson. Dr. Del Giudice received his B. S.
from the University of Illinois at Urbana- Champaign, his M. D. from Loyola University Stritch School of Medicine, completed
his radiology residency at Loyola University Medical Center, and his musculoskeletal radiology fellowship at the University of
Arizona Health Sciences Center — Tucson. Dr. Del Giudice is licensed to practice medicine in Florida and Ohio. Dr. Denil
Nanji Shekhat joined our company as a director in March 2024. Dr. Shekhat has practiced as a radiologist since 2014 and
currently practices at DNS Teleradiology in Wellington, Florida. Prior to starting DNS Teleradiology, Dr. Shekhat was a
musculoskeletal specialist for Radiology Associates of Florida / Radiology Partners from July 2018 to December 2023. From
July 2015 to August 2018, Dr. Shekhat practiced as a general and musculoskeletal radiologist with Bethesda Radiology
Associates. Dr. Shekhat received his B. A. in economics from Bowdoin College, his M. D. from the University of Tennessee
Health Science Center, College of Medicine, completed his radiology residency at Baptist Memorial Hospital and his
musculoskeletal radiology fellowship at the University of Arizona. Dr. Shekhat is currently licensed to practice medicine in
Florida. Edward MacPherson joined our company as a director in March 2024. Mr. MacPerson currently serves as Chief Growth
Officer for Power Digital, an industry leading digital marketing agency. Prior to joining Power Digital, from May 2016 to
December 2023, he served as CEO and Head of Growth for Endrock Growth & Analytics, a company he founded and sold to
Power Digital. Prior to founding Endrock Growth & Analytics, Mr. MacPherson held senior marketing and leadership positions
at sunglass maker Prive Revaux (March 2018 to April 2020), curated meal company Menud (October 2014 to April 2018) and
Rejuvenetics, LLC, a distributor of health and wellness products (December 2012 to March 2016). Mr. Macpherson holds a BA
in Economics from Gettysburg College. Key Consultants On March 43-8 , 2024 , and subsequently amended on January 24,
2025, we entered into an Amended and Restated Consulting Agreement with Angel Pharmaceutical Consulting & Technologies
Ltd., an Israeli consulting firm (“ APCT ). All services provided to our company by APCT (which began in October 2023) are
provided directly by Dr. Itzchak Angel, who shall be our Chief Scientific Advisor. Dr. Angel has over 30 years of experience in
the pharmaceutical industry, guiding strategic drug and business development initiatives in both large and emerging companies.
Dr. Angel has served as Head of Pharmacology of Synthelabo (Paris, France, now Sanofi) for numerous years, where he was
instrumental in the development and bringing into the market of several drugs such as Xatral (Alfuzosin), Ambien (Zolpidem)
and Mizollen (Mizolastine). He formerly served as President and Chief Executive Officer of stem- cell company Accellta
(Haifa, Israel) and Vice President for Research and Development at Proteologics Ltd, and at D- Pharm Biopharmaceuticals
(Rehovot, Israel) where he developed several neurology compounds (stroke, Alzheimer’ s and Parkinson’ s Disease) into
advanced clinical development and was involved in submitting numerous INDs of drugs under development. Dr. Angel is the
author of more than 100 book chapters, papers, and abstracts as well as the named inventor of a number of pharmaceutical
patents. Dr. Angel received his B. S. and M. Sc. in Biology from Tel- Aviv University, Israel, cum laude in 1979, and received
Ph. D. cum laude from the Hamburg University, Germany in 1982. As part of his consulting services, Dr. Angel shall assist our
company with (i) pharmaceutical regulatory affairs, toxicology, drug research and pre- clinical and clinical testing, (ii)
outsourcing and helping our company in managing third party vendors and (iii) working with our company in our interactions
with regulatory bodies. Board Composition Our business and affairs are managed under the direction of our board of directors,
which currently consists of five members. The number of directors is determined by our board of directors, subject to the terms
of our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws that. Our directors are elected for one- year terms. Family



Relationships There are no family relationships among any of our directors and executive officers. Director Independence Our
board of directors has undertaken a review of the independence of each director. Based on information provided by each director
concerning his or her background, employment, and affiliations, our board of directors has determined that Miehael-Jerman
Matthew Whalen , Dr. Matthew Del Giudice, Dr. Denil Shekhat and Edward MacPherson do not have any relationship that
would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director and are independent
directors under the Nasdaq Listing Rules. In making these determinations, our board of directors considered the current and prior
relationships that each non- employee director has with our company and all other facts and circumstances our board of directors
deemed relevant in determining their independence, including the transactions described in the section of this Report titled *
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions. ” Committees of the Board of Directors Our board of directors
has established an audit committee, a compensation committee, and a nominating and corporate governance committee. The
functions of these committees are described below. Members will serve on these committees until their resignation or until
otherwise determined by our board of directors. Our board of directors may establish other committees as it deems necessary or
appropriate from time to time. Audit Committee Our audit committee consists of MiehaeHerman-Matthew Whalen , Dr. Denil
Shekhat and Edward MacPherson, with MiehaeHerman-Matthew Whalen serving as the chair of the audit committee. Each
member of the committee meets the requirements for independence under the listing standards of Nasdaq and SEC rules and
regulations, including Rule 10A- 3 (b) (1) under the Exchange Act. Each member of our audit committee also meets the
financial literacy requirements of the listing standards of Nasdaq. In addition, our board of directors has determined that Michael
Jerman is an audit committee financial expert within the meaning of Item 407 (d) of Regulation S- K under the Securities Act.
The audit committee’ s main purpose is to oversee our corporate accounting and financial reporting process. Our audit
committee is responsible for, among other things: e selecting a qualified firm to serve as the independent registered public
accounting firm to audit our financial statements; ® helping to ensure the independence and performance of the independent
registered public accounting firm; e discussing the scope and results of the audit with the independent registered public
accounting firm, and reviewing, with management and the independent registered public accounting firm, our interim and year-
end results of operations; ® developing procedures for employees to submit concerns anonymously about questionable
accounting or audit matters; ® reviewing our policies on risk assessment and risk management; e reviewing related party
transactions; e reviewing and pre- approving, as required, all audit and all permissible non- audit services to be performed by
the independent registered public accounting firm; and e assisting our board of directors in monitoring the performance of our
internal audit function. Our audit committee operates under a written charter that satisfies the applicable rules and regulations of
the SEC and the listing standards of Nasdagq, a copy of which is available on our website at www. mirapharmaceuticals. com.
Our compensation committee consists of Dr. Denil Shekhat and Edward MacPherson, with Dr. Denil Shekhat serving as the
chair of the compensation committee. Each member of the committee meets the requirements for independence under the listing
standards of Nasdaq and SEC rules and regulations. Each member of our compensation committee is also a non- employee
director, as defined pursuant to Rule 16b- 3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, or Rule 16b- 3. In arriving at these
determinations, our board of directors examined all factors relevant to determining whether any compensation committee
member has a relationship to us that is material to that member’ s ability to be independent from management in connection with
carrying out such member’ s duties as a compensation committee member. The compensation committee’ s main purpose is to
review and recommend policies relating to compensation and benefits of our officers and employees. Our compensation
committee is responsible for, among other things: e reviewing, approving, and determining, or making recommendations to our
board of directors regarding, the compensation and compensation arrangements of our executive officers; ® administering our
equity compensation plans; @ reviewing and approving, or making recommendations to our board of directors regarding,
incentive compensation and equity compensation plans; and e establishing and reviewing general policies relating to
compensation and benefits of our employees. Our compensation committee operates under a written charter that satisfies the
applicable rules and regulations of the SEC and the listing standards of Nasdaq, a copy of which is available on our website.
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Our nominating and corporate governance committee consists of Dr.
Matthew PelGuidiee-Del Giudice and Dr. Denil Shekhat with Dr. Matthew PelGutdiee-Del Giudice serving as the chair of the
nominating and corporate governance committee. Each member of the committee meets the requirements for independence
under the listing standards of Nasdaq and SEC rules and regulations. Our nominating and corporate governance committee is
responsible for, among other things: e identifying, evaluating, and selecting, or making recommendations to our board of
directors regarding, nominees for election to our board of directors and its committees; ® developing and overseeing the annual
evaluation of our board of directors and of its committees; ® considering and making recommendations to our board of directors
regarding the composition of our board of directors and its committees; ® overseeing our corporate governance practices; and ®
making recommendations to our board of directors regarding corporate governance guidelines. Our nominating and corporate
governance committee operates under a written charter that satisfies the applicable listing standards of Nasdaq, a copy of which
is available on our website. Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation None of the members of our
compensation committee is a current or former executive officer or employee of our company. None of our executive officers
serves as a member of the compensation committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving on our
compensation committee. Risk Oversight One of the key functions of our board of directors is informed oversight of our risk
management process. Our board of directors administers this oversight function directly through our board of directors as a
whole, and through various standing committees of our board of directors that address risks inherent in their respective areas of
oversight. In particular, our board of directors is responsible for monitoring and assessing strategic risk exposure, including risks
associated with cybersecurity and data protection, and our audit committee has the responsibility to consider our major financial
risk exposures and the steps our management has taken to monitor and control these exposures, including guidelines and
policies to govern the process by which risk assessment and management is undertaken. Our audit committee will review legal,



regulatory, and compliance matters that could have a significant impact on our financial statements. Our nominating and
corporate governance committee will monitor the effectiveness of our corporate governance practices, including whether they
are successful in preventing illegal or improper liability- creating conduct. Our compensation committee will assess and monitor
whether any of our compensation policies and programs has the potential to encourage excessive risk taking. While each
committee is responsible for evaluating certain risks and overseeing the management of such risks, our entire board of directors

will be res_ularly mformed through commlttee reports about such risks —Beﬁd—Bﬁerﬁtyh@tﬁeﬁma—t—mg—aﬁd—eerper&te

dtreetefs—ts—eerﬂpﬂsed-ef—ﬁ-v&er—}ess*d-rreeters— Code or Busmess C onduct and Ethrcs Our board or dlrectors has ddopted a code

of business conduct and ethics applicable to all of our directors, officers (including our principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, and principal accounting officer) and all global employees in accordance with applicable federal securities laws
and corporate governance rules of the Nasdaq Capital Market. Our code of business conduct and ethics is available on our
website. Any amendments to the code of business conduct and ethics, or waivers of its requirements, will, if required, be
disclosed on our website. Insider Trading Policy Our board of directors has adopted an insider trading policy filed hereto as
Exhibit 19. 1 and is incorporated herein by this reference. Corporate Governance Guidelines Our board of directors has adopted
corporate governance guidelines, a copy of which is available on our website. Director Compensation We did not provide any
cash compensation to any of our directors during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 in their capacity as directors.
However, on April 2825 , 2623-2024 , Matthew Del Giudice, Edward MacPherson, and Denil Shekhat were granted an
option to purchase up to 50, 000 shares of our common stock under the 2022 Omnibus Plan for joining the board.
Additionally, on December 6, 2024 . cach non- employee director was granted an additional option to purchase up to +6-25 ,
000 shares of our common stock under the 2022 Omnibus Plan. Each such option wastmmedtatety-vested in faltupen-terms
ranglng from 1mmedlate vestlng to one year follow1ng the grant and-. Each grant has a 10- year term —Geﬁatn—e-f—emhfern&ef

Thls section discusses the material components of the executrve compensation pro;cram ror the followmo persons: (1) all persons
serving as our principal executive officers during 2623-2024 and (ii) the most highly compensated of our other executive
officers who received compensation during 2023-2024 of at least $ 100, 000 and who were executive officers on December 31,
2023-2024 . We refer to these persons as our “ named executive officers ” elsewhere in this Report. Our “ named executive
officers ” and their positions are as follows: ® Erez Aminov, Chief Executlve Officer and (halrman ° Mlchelle Yanez MBA,
Chrer Fmancml Ofrlcer Secretary and Treasurer anrd:-e-Adamiaphs h e ane-Ch eten e

as—euf@htef—F—rn&nei&l-@fﬁeeﬁ Summqry ( ornpensatlon Table The followmo table shows the compensatlon pald by us durmo
the 2024 and 2023 and2022-fiscal years to our named executive officers. Name and principal position Year Salary ($) Bonus
($) Stock Awards ($) Option Awards ($) (6) Non- Equity Incentive Plan Compensation ($) Nonqualified Deferred
Compensation Earnings ($) All Other Compensation ($) Total ($) Erez Aminov, 2623-2024 $3-259 , 333-268-999 300 , 666-000
(1) 595 -+, 000 3«6—8—699-%—626—(2) 1 919 120-- 665 66 , 194 564—@E9—2—92%-~——M-tehe1-}e¥aﬂez—2€%3—}6§—999—81‘3—47§

+99—699—fenner—Prest&ent—&—GS@%92%—é€—99—l—(3) 3 -—7—3«9— 140 999--—7-89— 313 CEO %Hu&e—Hzenw&nne—NB -7’5—83 333
208 666-—=6-, 006 5692y 81+-569-former-CEO-2022125;-666-56;,-066-(4)- 739-1 , 666-368, 600-- 5, 625 (5) 1 —=8-, 385-665,
564 Michelle Yanez, 2024 158, 219-- 258, 900-- 26, 902 ( 2-5 ) 922-444 . 021 CFO 385FHmMeNulty;2023 +54-165 , 000 88 —~
—154-, 475 666-former-CFO-2022-266;-869-166,-066-( 34 )- 282 —366-, 869-215-- 5, 934 (5) 541, 624 (1) The amounts
represent H2O-bemtises—- bonus paidHir2623—earned as part of CEO Executive Scorecard (2 ) On December 6, 2024, Mr.
Aminov was awarded an RSU Stock Award (3 ) Amount represents health insurance premiums paid , car —3)-The-ameunts

represent-milestone-payments purstantto-prioremployment-agreements—, car insurance, and club memberships (4) The
Amount represents IPO bonus fepresents—a—pdrd ﬂgﬂ-—eﬁ-ﬁﬂ‘lﬂﬂﬂt—(s Amounts represent health insurance premlums paid

Yzenwanne—(6) The reported amounts represent the aggregate grant ddte fair value of the awards computed in accorddnce Wrth
Financial Accounting Standards Board Account Standards Codification Topic 718, Stock Compensation, as modified or



supplemented, or FASB ASC Topic 718. The assumptions used in calculating the grant date fair value of the stock options
reported in this column are set forth i in Note 8 to our Conqohdated Financial Statement% for the year ended December 31, %92%
20241ncluded1nth1§Report. A entered-nto-an-agreemen h-M rvanhe-i-which-the-namb 3

Employment Agreementq Except as set forth below, we currently have no written employment agreements with any of our
named executive officers. Effective April 28, 2023, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Aminov, as amended
on August 28, 2023, pursuant to which Mr. Aminov will serve as our Chief Executive Officer. Under his employment
agreement, as amended, Mr. Aminov has agreed to devote at least 50 % of his business time to the affairs of the Company. Mr.
Aminov’ s employment agreement provides that his employment will be on an at- will basis and can be terminated by either Mr.
Aminov or our company at any time and for any reason. Under the agreement, Mr. Aminov will receive a base salary of $ 0. 2
million per year, effective August 1, 2023. In the event that Mr. Aminov’ s employment is terminated by our company without “
Cause ” or is terminated by Mr. Aminov for “ Good Reason ”, Mr. Aminov will be entitled to severance compensation in the
form of salary continuation for a period of three months (subject to Mr. Aminov executing and delivering a customary general
release in favor of the company). ““ Cause ” is defined in the agreement to include dishonesty, misappropriation, willful
misconduct, breach of the agreement, and other customary matters. “ Good Reason ” is defined to include a material adverse
change in Mr. Aminov’ s compensation or duties and level of responsibility. The employment agreement also contains
customary confidentiality and invention- assignment covenants to which Mr. Aminov is subject. On August 17, 2023, Mr.
Aminov received a $ 0. 1 million cash bonus net of federal, state, local and income taxes related to the successful completion of
the IPO. In March 2024, Mr. Aminov assumed the role of Chairman and on March 25, 2024, the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors approved an increase to Mr. Aminov’ s base salary of $ 0. 8-08 million, bringing his total annual base
salary to $ 0. 28 million . On December 2nd, 2024, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved a
milestone payment in the amount of $ 0. 3 million in connection with the Executive Incentive Program for Mr. Aminov
tied to the completion of drug development and financing milestones as outlined in the Executive Incentive Program plan
. On April 28, 2023, we entered into an employment agreement with Ms. Yanez pursuant to which Ms. Yanez will serve as our
Chief Financial Officer on a full- time basis. Ms. Yanez’ s employment agreement provides that her employment will be on an
at- will basis and can be terminated by either Ms. Yanez or our company at any time and for any reason. Under the agreement,
Ms. Yanez will receive an initial base salary of $ 0. 17 million per year. In the event that her employment is terminated by our
company without “ Cause ” or is terminated by Ms. Yanez for “ Good Reason ”, Ms. Yanez will be entitled to severance
compensation in the form of salary continuation for a period of three months (subject to Ms. Yanez executing and delivering a
customary general release in favor of the company). “ Cause  is defined in the agreement to include dishonesty,
misappropriation, willful misconduct, breach of the agreement, and other customary matters. “ Good Reason ” is defined to
include a material adverse change in Ms. Yanez’ s compensation or duties and level of responsibility. The employment
agreement also contains customary confidentiality and invention- assignment covenants to which Ms. Yanez is subject. On
August 17,2023, Ms. Yanez received a $ 0. 05 million cash bonus net of federal, state, local and income taxes related to the
successful completion of the IPO. On March 25, 2024, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved an
increase in Ms. Yanez’ s base salary of $ 0. 06 million, bringing her annual base salary to $ 0. 23 million. €hris-Chapman-On
Aprit28-June 26 , 2623-2024 , we-MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “ Company ) entered into an Amended and Restated
emp}eymeﬁt—Employment agreement-Agreement (the “ with-Dr—Chapman;-as-amended-Amended on-Atgust-and Restated
Employment Agreement ) that amends and restates the Employment Agreement dated Aprll 28,2023, by and Getebef
+3-among the Company and Michelle Yanez , the Company h ved-a ettty
Chairman—Dr—Chapman- s Chief Financial Officer. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated emp’:ey—meﬂt—Employment
agfeemeﬂt—Agreement Ms. Yanez Wlll contmue to serve as the Company s Chlef F1nanc1al Officer amended—prwnéed—t-hat

reeetve-a reduced annual ba%e Salary of § O 95—14 mrlhon per year for a perlod of 90 ...... wrrtten consultlng agreement with Dr.
Kaplin . Grants of Plan- Based Awards in 2823-2024 Estimated Future Payouts Under Non- Equity Incentive Plan Awards
Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity Incentive Plan Awards All Other Stock Awards: Number of Shares of Stocks or All
Other Option Awards: Number of Securities Underlying Exercise or Base Price of Option Closing stock price on Award Grant
Date Fair Value of Stock and Name Grant Date (1) Threshold ($) Target ($) Maximum ($) Threshold (#) Target (#) Maximum
(#) Units (#) Options (#) Awards ($ / Sh) date ($ / Sh) Option Awards Erez Aminov, CEO 4-3 / 28-25 / 2623-2024 ------- +56-300
,000(2)$51.16 $1.16 $ 319, 500 5 —/28 /2024 379, 66-000 —(3) $ 0. 85 $ 0. 85 $ 295, 620 H2-—- 12 ;- 266-8-/ +7-6 / 2623-2024
2, 000 —156-, 000 (4) $1.19$1.19 $ 1, 304, 000 12 / 6 -/ 2024 56-500 , 000 (5) $ 595, 000 CASH $ 300, 000 (6 ) —56-%
8674-606-Michelle Yanez, CFO 4-3 / 28-25 / 2623-2024 ------ 46-150 , 667—000 (27) 551 .16 9635 +74-1. 16 $ 159 , 535§

750 12 / +7-6 / 2623-2024 150 —26-, 000 t4)-5 6-1 . 59—19 $ 6—1 59—$—}9776'897°:daﬁrlé&phn,—fefmer—PfeStdeﬂt—&—GSG-4H8

GFG-----—$-—(1) The “ Grant Date ” represents the date on Wthh the Compeniatron Commrttee of the Board took actron to
grant the applicable award. (2) The stock awards disclosed in this item consist of options, as issued under our 2022 Omnibus

Incentive Plan, which vestratably-inrthirds-beginning-Aprit2623-50 % on grant date and 50 % on the first anniversary of

grant date . (3) There—- The wasno-elosing-stock priee-for-oureommon-stoeksinee-ourHPO-didnotawards disclosed in this
item consist of options, as issued under oeeur—-- our unti-August2623-2022 Omnibus Incentive Plan, which 50 % six

months after grant date and 50 % on the first anniversary of grant date . (4) The stock awards disclosed in this item consist
of options, as issued under our 2022 Omnibus Incentive Plan, which 50 wested—=466-" at-six months after grant date and 50 %



on the first anniversary of grant date. (5) The stock awards disclosed in this item consist of Restricted Stock Units (RSU’
s), as issued under our 2022 Omnibus Incentive Plan, which vest 50 % on February 12, 2025 and 50 % on June 6, 2025
(6) Represents a cash award that Compensation Committee awarded based on CEO performance (7) The stock awards
disclosed in this item consist of options, as issued under our 2022 Omnibus Incentive Plan, which vest 50 % on grant
date, and 50 % six months from grant date . Outstanding equity awards The following table summarizes outstanding
unexercised options held by each of our named executive officers, as of December 31, 2823-2024 . OPTION AWARDS STOCK
AWARDS Name Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Exercisable Number of Securities Underlying
Unexercised Options (#) Unexercisable Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Unearned
Options (#) Options Exercise Prices ($) Option Expiration Date Number of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (#)
Market Value of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested ($) Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Unearned
Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (#) Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market or Payout Value of Unearned
Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not vested (#) Erez Aminov 150, 000-- $ 6. 50 8 / 16 / 33---- 100, 000 50 ;-060-100-,
000-$5.004/27/33----150, 000 150, 000- $ 1. 16 3 / 25 / 34---- 379, 000-- $ 0. 84 5 /28 / 34--—- 1, 000, 000 1, 000, 000- $ 1.
1912/6/34--—--250, 000 $ 297, 475-- Michelle Yanez 20, 000-- $ 6. 50 8 / 16 /33---- 15,556 31, 111-$5.004 /27 / 33---- 6,
667 3,333-$5.006/14/32---- 75Adam—K&p-l-m—1—3— 334—26—000 75 666—000 $5—1 99—4—16 3 /-2—7—25 /33—34 ---- 160-- 150
000-1-99—999-$§-1 06-1912/6/34 W vieNulty

Exercises and Stock Vested No stock options were exercrsed by our executrve ofﬁcers durrng the year ended December 31,
2623-2024 +. Omnibus Incentive Plan Our board of directors has adopted, and our stockholders have approved, our 2022
Omnibus Incentive Plan, or the 2022 Omnibus Plan. The 2022 Omnibus Plan authorizes the grant of incentive stock options,
within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, to our employees and any of our parent and subsidiary
corporations’ employees, and the grant of nonstatutory stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation
rights, performance units and performance shares to our employees, directors, and consultants and any of our future subsidiary
corporations’ employees and consultants. The following is a summary of certain terms and conditions of the 2022 Omnibus
Plan Thls summary is quahﬁed in its entrrety by reference to the 2022 Omnibus Plan attached as an exhrbrt to this Report —Yot

admrnrstered by our board of d1rectors or our compensation cornrnrttee or any other comrnlttee or subcommrttee or one or more
of our officers to whom authority has been delegated (collectively, the “ Administrator ). The Administrator has the authority to
interpret the 2022 Omnibus Plan and award agreements entered into with respect to the 2022 Omnibus Plan; to make, change
and rescind rules and regulations relating to the 2022 Omnibus Plan; to make changes to, or reconcile any inconsistency in, the
2022 Omnibus Plan or any award agreement covering an award; and to take any other actions needed to administer the 2022
Omnibus Plan. Eligibility The Administrator may designate any of the following as a participant under the 2022 Omnibus Plan:
any officer or employee, or individuals engaged to become an officer or employee, of our company or our affiliates; and
consultants of our company or our affiliates, and our directors, including our non- employee directors. Types of Awards The
2022 Omnibus Plan permits the Administrator to grant stock options, stock appreciation rights (“ SARs ), performance shares,
performance units, shares of common stock, restricted stock, restricted stock units (“ RSUs ”), cash incentive awards, dividend
equivalent units, or any other type of award permitted under the 2022 Omnibus Plan. The Administrator may grant any type of
award to any participant it selects, but only our employees or our subsidiaries’ employees may receive grants of incentive stock
options within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code. Awards may be granted alone or in addition to, in
tandem with, or (subject to the repricing prohibition described below) in substitution for any other award (or any other award
granted under another plan of our company or any affiliate, including the plan of an acquired entity). Shares Reserved Under the
2022 Omnibus Incentive Plan The 2022 Omnibus Plan provides that 2-5 , 000, 000 shares of our common stock are reserved for
issuance under the 2022 Omnibus Plan, all of which may be issued pursuant to the exercise of incentive stock options. The
number of shares available for issuance under our 2022 Omnibus Plan will also include an annual increase on the first day of
each fiscal year equal to the lesser of: ® 260-500, 000 shares; ® +5 . 0 % of the outstanding shares of all class of our common
stock as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year; or ® such other amount as our board of directors may
determine. The number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2022 Omnibus Plan will be reduced on the date of the grant of
any award by the maximum number of shares, if any, with respect to which such award is granted. However, an award that may
be settled solely in cash will not deplete the 2022 Omnibus Plan’ s share reserve at the time the award is granted. If (a) an award
expires, is canceled, or terminates without issuance of shares or is settled in cash, (b) the Administrator determines that the
shares granted under an award will not be issuable because the conditions for issuance will not be satisfied, (c) shares are
forfeited under an award, (d) shares are issued under any award and we reacquire them pursuant to our reserved rights upon the
issuance of the shares, (e) shares are tendered or withheld in payment of the exercise price of an option or as a result of the net
settlement of outstanding stock appreciation rights or (f) shares are tendered or withheld to satisfy federal, state or local tax
withholding obligations, then those shares are added back to the reserve and may again be used for new awards under the 2022
Omnibus Plan. However, shares added back to the reserve pursuant to clauses (d), (e) or (f) in the preceding sentence may not be
issued pursuant to incentive stock options. The Administrator may grant stock options and determine all terms and conditions of
each stock option, which include the number of stock options granted, whether a stock option is to be an incentive stock option
or non- qualified stock option, and the grant date for the stock option. However, the exercise price per share of common stock
may never be less than the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant and the expiration date may not be
later than 10 years after the date of grant. Stock options will be exercisable and vest at such times and be subject to such
restrictions and conditions as are determined by the Administrator, including with respect to the manner of payment of the
exercise price of such stock options. Stock Appreciation Rights The Administrator may grant SARs, which represent the right of



a participant to receive cash in an amount, or common stock with a fair market value, equal to the appreciation of the fair market
value of a share of common stock during a specified period of time. The 2022 Omnibus Plan provides that the Administrator
will determine all terms and conditions of each SAR, including, among other things: (a) whether the SAR is granted
independently of a stock option or relates to a stock option, (b) the grant price, which may never be less than the fair market
value of our common stock as determined on the date of grant, (c) a term that must be no later than 10 years after the date of
grant, and (d) whether the SAR will settle in cash, common stock or a combination of the two. Performance and Stock Awards
The Administrator may grant awards of shares of common stock, restricted stock, RSUs, performance shares or performance
units. Restricted stock means shares of common stock that are subject to a risk of forfeiture or restrictions on transfer, which
may lapse upon the achievement or partial achievement of performance goals (as described below) or upon the completion of a
period of service. An RSU grants the participant the right to receive cash or shares of common stock the value of which is equal
to the fair market value of one share of common stock, to the extent performance goals are achieved or upon the completion of a
period of service. Performance shares give the participant the right to receive shares of common stock to the extent performance
goals are achieved. Performance units give the participant the right to receive cash or shares of common stock valued in relation
to a unit that has a designated dollar value or the value of which is equal to the fair market value of one or more shares of
common stock, to the extent performance goals are achieved. The Administrator will determine all terms and conditions of the
awards including (a) whether performance goals must be achieved for the participant to realize any portion of the benefit
provided under the award, (b) the length of the vesting or performance period and, if different, the date that payment of the
benefit will be made, (c) with respect to performance units, whether to measure the value of each unit in relation to a designated
dollar value or the fair market value of one or more shares of common stock, and (d) with respect to performance shares,
performance units, and RSUs, whether the awards will settle in cash, in shares of common stock (including restricted stock), or
in a combination of the two. Cash Incentive Awards The Administrator may grant cash incentive awards. An incentive award is
the right to receive a cash payment to the extent one or more performance goals are achieved. The Administrator will determine
all terms and conditions of a cash incentive award, including, but not limited to, the performance goals (described below), the
performance per10d the potentlal amount payable and the t1m1ng of payment Whlle the 2022 Ornnlbus Plan perm1ts cash
incentive awe D y & e

Gﬁam-bus—P-laﬁ—Performance Goals For purposes of the 2022 Omnlbus Plan the Adm1n1strat0r may estabhsh 0bJect1ve or
subjective performance goals which may apply to any performance award. Such performance goals may include, but are not
limited to, one or more of the following measures with respect to our company or any one or more of our subsidiaries, affiliates,
or other business units: net sales; cost of sales; gross income; gross revenue; revenue; operating income; earnings before taxes;
earnings before interest and taxes; earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization; earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation, amortization and exception items; income from continuing operations; net income; earnings per share; diluted
earnings per share; total stockholder return; fair market value of a share of common stock; cash flow; net cash provided by
operating activities; net cash provided by operating activities less net cash used in investing activities; ratio of debt to debt plus
equity; return on stockholder equity; return on invested capital; return on average total capital employed; return on net capital
employed; return on assets; return on net assets employed before interest and taxes; operating working capital; average accounts
receivable (calculated by taking the average of accounts receivable at the end of each month); average inventories (calculated by
taking the average of inventories at the end of each month); economic value added; succession planning; manufacturing return
on assets; manufacturing margin; and customer satisfaction. Performance goals may also relate to a participant’ s individual
performance. The Administrator reserves the right to adjust any performance goals or modify the manner of measuring or
evaluating a performance goal. Dividend Equivalent Units The Administrator may grant dividend equivalent units. A dividend
equivalent unit gives the participant the right to receive a payment, in cash or shares of common stock, equal to the cash
dividends or other distributions that we pay with respect to a share of common stock. We determine all terms and conditions of a
dividend equivalent unit award, except that dividend equivalent units may not be granted in connection with a stock option or
SAR, and dividend equivalent unit awards granted in connection with another award cannot provide for payment until the date
such award vests or is earned, as applicable. Other Stock- Based Awards The Administrator may grant to any participant shares
of unrestricted stock as a replacement for other compensation to which such participant is entitled, such as in payment of director
fees, in lieu of cash compensation, in exchange for cancellation of a compensation right or as a bonus. Transferability Awards
are not transferable, including to any financial institution, other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution, unless the
Administrator allows a participant to (a) designate in writing a beneficiary to exercise the award or receive payment under the
award after the participant’ s death, (b) transfer an award to a former spouse as required by a domestic relations order incident to
a divorce, or (c) transfer an award without receiving any consideration. Adjustments If (a) we are involved in a merger or other
transaction in which our shares of common stock are changed or exchanged; (b) we subdivide or combine shares of common
stock or declare a dividend payable in shares of common stock, other securities, or other property (other than stock purchase
rights issued pursuant to a stockholder rights agreement); (c) we effect a cash dividend that exceeds 10 % of the fair market
value of a share of common stock or any other dividend or distribution in the form of cash or a repurchase of shares of common
stock that our board of directors determines is special or extraordinary, or that is in connection with a recapitalization or
reorganization; or (d) any other event occurs that in the Administrator’ s judgment requires an adjustment to prevent dilution or
enlargement of the benefits intended to be made available under the 2022 Omnibus Plan, then the Administrator will, in a
manner it deems equitable, adjust any or all of (1) the number and type of shares subject to the 2022 Omnibus Plan and which
may, after the event, be made the subject of awards; (2) the number and type of shares of common stock subject to outstanding
awards; (3) the grant, purchase, or exercise price with respect to any award; and (4) the performance goals of an award. In any
such case, the Administrator may also provide for a cash payment to the holder of an outstanding award in exchange for the
cancellation of all or a portion of the award, subject to the terms of the 2022 Omnibus Plan. The Administrator may, in




connection with any merger, consolidation, acquisition of property or stock, or reorganization, authorize the issuance or
assumption of awards upon terms and conditions we deem appropriate without affecting the number of shares of common stock
otherwise reserved or available under the 2022 Omnibus Plan. Change of Control Upon a change of control (as defined in the
2022 Omnibus Plan), the successor or surviving corporation may agree to assume some or all outstanding awards or replace
them with the same type of award with similar terms and conditions, without the consent of any participant, subject to the
following requirements: ® Each award that is assumed must be appropriately adjusted, immediately after such change of control,
to apply to the number and class of securities that would have been issuable to a participant upon the consummation of such
change of control had the award been exercised, vested, or earned immediately prior to such change of control, and other
appropriate adjustment to the terms and conditions of the award may be made. e If the securities to which the awards relate after
the change of control are not listed and traded on a national securities exchange, then (a) each participant must be provided the
option to elect to receive, in lieu of the issuance of such securities, cash in an amount equal to the fair value of the securities that
would have otherwise been issued, and (b) no reduction may be taken to reflect a discount for lack of marketability, minority, or
any similar consideration, for purposes of determining the fair value of such securities. ® If a participant is terminated from
employment without cause, or due to death or disability, or the participant resigns employment for good reason (as defined in
any award or other agreement between the participant and our company or an affiliate) within two years following the change of
control, then upon such termination, all of the participant’ s awards in effect on the date of such termination will vest in full or
be deemed earned in full. If the purchaser, successor, or surviving entity does not assume the awards or issue replacement
awards, then immediately prior to the change of control date, unless the Administrator otherwise determines: ® Each stock
option or SAR then held by a participant will become immediately and fully vested, and all stock options and SARs will be
cancelled on the change of control date in exchange for a cash payment equal to the excess of the change of control price of the
shares of common stock over the purchase or grant price of such shares under the award. ® Unvested restricted stock and RSUs
(that are not performance awards) will vest in full. ® All performance shares, performance units and cash incentive awards for
which the performance period has expired will be paid based on actual performance, and all such awards for which the
performance period has not expired will be cancelled in exchange for a cash payment equal to the amount that would have been
due under such awards, valued assuming achievement of target performance goals at the time of the change of control, prorated
based on the number of full months elapsed in the performance period. ® All unvested dividend equivalent units will vest (to the
same extent as the award granted in tandem with such units) and be paid. ® All other unvested awards will vest and any amounts
payable will be paid in cash. Term of Plan Unless earlier terminated by our board of directors, the 2022 Omnibus Plan will
terminate on, and no further awards may be granted, after the tenth (10th) anniversary of its effective date. Termination and
Amendment of Plan Our board of directors or the Administrator may amend, alter, suspend, discontinue, or terminate the 2022
Omnibus Plan at any time, subject to the following limitations: ® Our board of directors must approve any amendment to the
2022 Omnibus Plan if we determine such approval is required by prior action of our board of directors, applicable corporate law,
or any other applicable law; ® Stockholders must approve any amendment to the 2022 Omnibus Plan, which may include an
amendment to materially increase the number of shares reserved under the 2022 Omnibus Plan, if we determine that such
approval is required by Section 16 of the Exchange Act, the Code, the listing requirements of any principal securities exchange
or market on which the shares are then traded, or any other applicable law; and @ Stockholders must approve any amendment to
the 2022 Omnibus Plan that would diminish the protections afforded by the participant award limits or repricing and backdating
prohibitions. Amendment, Modification, Cancellation and Disgorgement of Awards Subject to the requirements of the 2022
Omnibus Plan, the Administrator may modify or amend any award or waive any restrictions or conditions applicable to any
award or the exercise of the award, or amend, modify, or cancel any terms and conditions applicable to any award, in each case,
by mutual agreement of the Administrator and the participant or any other person that may have an interest in the award, so long
as any such action does not increase the number of shares of common stock issuable under the 2022 Omnibus Plan. We do not
need to obtain participant (or other interested party) consent for any such action (a) that is permitted pursuant to the adjustment
provisions of the 2022 Omnibus Plan; (b) to the extent we deem the action necessary to comply with any applicable law or the
listing requirements of any principal securities exchange or market on which our common stock is then traded; (c) to the extent
we deem the action is necessary to preserve favorable accounting or tax treatment of any award for us; or (d) to the extent we
determine that such action does not materially and adversely affect the value of an award or that such action is in the best
interest of the affected participant or any other person as may then have an interest in the award. The Administrator can cause a
participant to forfeit any award, and require the participant to disgorge any gains attributable to the award, if the participant
engages in any action constituting, as determined by the Administrator in its discretion, cause for termination, or a breach of a
material company policy, any award agreement or any other agreement between the participant and us or one of our affiliates
concerning noncompetition, nonsolicitation, confidentiality, trade secrets, intellectual property, nondisparagement or similar
obligations. Any awards granted under the 2022 Omnibus Plan, and any shares of common stock issued or cash paid under an
award, will be subject to recoupment our Compensation Recovery Policy (as described below), or any recoupment or similar
requirement otherwise made applicable by law, regulation or listing standards to us, or that may be provided for in any cash or
equity award granted by us. Compensation of Directors The following table sets forth all compensation paid to our Board
members during the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 : Name Fees Earned or Paid in Cash ($ 3H4-) Stock Awards ($) Option
Awards ($) (#1 ) Non- Equity Incentive Plan Compensation ($) Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred
Compensation Earnings ($) All Other Compensation ($) Total ($) €hris-Matthew Whalen-- 16, 525---- Mathew Paul Del
Giudice-- 69, 775--- 69, 775 Denil Shekhat-- 117, 400--- 117, 400 Edward MacPherson-- 69, 775--- 69, 775 Dr. Christopher
Chapman 24 , 121 PhB- 0-493 € € Mike-Jermar athta—Tae 0 0-Brad
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Stgh M h : etors—7) The reported amounts represent the aggregate grant date
fair value of the awards Computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Account Standards Codification
Topic 718, Stock Compensation, as modified or supplemented, or FASB ASC Topic 718. The assumptions used in calculating
the grant date fair value of the stock options reported in this column are set forth in N ote 8 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 included in this Report. furtherp s-that-sueh-employmen

an at- will basis and could be terminated by e1ther Dr.Chapman or eut-the company at any time and for any reason. Under the
agreement Dr.Chapman would receive a-an 1n1t1al base salary of $ 0 8515 m11110n per year fer—a—peﬂed—e%@-days—fe-l-}ewmg

the event that Dr Chapman S employment is termmated by eu-lethe company Wrthout Cause or is terminated by Dr.Chapman
for “ Good Reason ”,Dr.Chapman would be entitled to severance compensation in the form of salary continuation for a period of
three months (subject to Dr.Chapman executing and delivering a customary general release in favor of the company). “~Cause>
is-definredin-On August 17,2023,Dr.Chapman received a $ 0.05 million cash bonus net of federal,state,local and income
taxes related to the successful completion of the IPO.On August 28,2023,the Company amended Dr.Chapman’ s
employment agreement to indicate that he tne{ude-éshenesﬁf—mrsappfepﬁaﬁeﬁ—Compensanon Recovery Policy On October 2,
2023, our Board of Directors adopted a policy (commonly known as a “ clawback  policy) which provides for the recovery of
erroneously awarded incentive compensation to certain of our officers in the event that we are required to prepare an accounting
restatement due to material noncompliance by us with any financial reporting requirements under the federal securities laws.
This policy is designed to comply with Section 10D of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, related rules and the
listing standards of Nasdaq Stock Market or any other securities exchange on which our shares are listed in the future. The
policy is administered by our Board of Directors or, if so designated by the Board of Directors, the Compensation Committee.
Any determinations made by the Board shall be final and binding on all affected individuals. The individuals covered by this
policy (the “ Covered Officers ) are any current or former employee who is or was identified as our president, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer (or if there is no such accounting officer, the controller), any vice- president in
charge of a principal business unit, division, or function (such as sales, administration, or finance), any other officer who
performs a significant policy- making function, or any other person (including any executive officer of our subsidiaries or
affiliates) who performs similar significant policy- making functions for us. The policy covers our recoupment of “ Incentive-
Based Compensation ” (as defined in the policy) received by a person after beginning service as a Covered Executive and who
served as a Covered Officer at any time during the performance period for that Incentive Compensation. In the event we are
required to prepare an accounting restatement, the policy requires us to recover, reasonably promptly, any excess incentive
compensation (as determined by our Board of Directors or Compensation Committee) received by any Covered Officer during
the three completed fiscal years immediately preceding the date on which we are required to prepare such accounting
restatement. The foregoing description of our Compensation Recovery Policy does not purport to be complete and is qualified in
its entirety by the terms and conditions of such policy, a copy of which is filed as an exhibit to this Report and is incorporated
herein by reference. Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters. The following table sets forth, as of the date of this Report, the ownership of our securities by: (i) each of our directors,
(i1) all persons who, to our knowledge, are the beneficial owners of more than 5 % of the outstanding shares of common stock,
(iii) each of the executive officers, and (iv) all of our directors and executive officers, as a group. Each person named in this
table has sole investment power and sole voting power with respect to the shares of common stock set forth opposite such
person’ s name, except as otherwise indicated. Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Amount and Nature of Beneficial
Ownership Percentage of Class as of March 28 ,2624-2025 Directors and Executive Officers (1) Erez Aminov 623-2 , 5664
561,200 13 . +5-78 % Michelle Yanez 57136 , 779-111 * Matthew Whalen- MiehaeHerman25;-000- Matthew Del Giudice
25, 000 * Denil Nanji Shekhat 2541 , 8868-666 * Edward MacPherson 25, 000 * All current directors and officers as a group (6
persons) (2) 7842 , 299-5-788, 977 14 . 2482 % 5 % Stockholders Brian McNulty (3) 5, +6-029 , 276-34-317 29 . 5714 % *
Represents beneficial ownership of less than 1 % (1) Unless otherwise denoted, the address of each noted person is 1200
Brickell Avenue, Suite 1950 # 1183, Miami, Florida 33131. (2) Includes both founders shares and shares subject to options
granted under our 2022 Omnibus Plan that are exercisable as of the Beneficial Ownership Date or within 60 days of the
Beneficial Ownership Date held as follows: Mr. Aminov, 2, 561, 200 shares and Ms. Yanez, 136, 111 shares,, Dr. Del
Guidice, 256-- 25 , 000 shares and-Ms—¥anez57F79-shares; MrJerman; 25-000-shares-, Dr. Del-Guidiee; 25,-000-shares; Dr-
Shekhat, 2541 , 666-666 shares, Mr. MacPherson, 25, 000 shares, and all current officers and directors as a group, 4672 , 779
256, 777 shares. Excludes shares subject to options granted under our 2022 Omnibus Plan that are not exercisable within 60
days of the Beneficial Ownership Date. (3) Includes (i) 10, 000 shares held directly by Mr. McNulty, (ii) 2, 748-540 , 270 shares
held by the Bay Shore Trust, (iii) 666-779 , 666-047 shares held by the Celeste J Williams Lifetime QTIP Trust, (iv) 1, 000, 000
shares issuable pursuant to warrants held by the Bay Shore Trust that are immediately exercisable, and (v) 700, 000 shares
issuable pursuant to warrants held by MIRALOGX LLC, that are immediately exercisable. As trustee of the Bay Shore Trust
and the Celeste J Williams Lifetime QTIP Trust, Mr. McNulty has sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by
each trust, and, as a result is deemed to have beneficial ownership (as determined under Section 13 (d) of the Exchange Act) of
the securities held by the trusts. The address for MIRALOGX LLC and the Bay Shore Trust is 900 West Platt Street, Suite 200,
Tampa, Florida, 33606. DELINQUENT SECTION 16 (A) REPORTS Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act requires directors and



executive officers, and persons who own more than 10 % of the Company’ s common stock, to report to the SEC their initial
ownership of the Company’ s common stock and any subsequent changes in that ownership. Specific due dates for these reports
have been established by the SEC and we are required to disclose in this Annual Report on Form 10- K any late filings or
failures to file. Based solely on review of the copies of such reports furnished to us and written representations from reporting
persons that no other reports were required during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , we believe that, during the
2023 fiscal year, all of the Company s dlrectors and executlve ofﬁcers cornphed Wlth all Sectlon 16 (a) ﬁhng requ1rernents
applicable to them 5w 0 ; A h e tHred -
2—2—292—3—bttt—was—ﬁw}ed-eﬂ—9eeefnber—2—7—292-3— The followmg table 1nd1cates shares of common stock authorlzed for issuance
under our 2022 Omnibus Plan as of December 31, 2623-2024 : Plan category Number of securities to be issued upon exercise of
outstanding options and warrants Weighted- average exercise price of outstanding options and warrants Number of securities
remaining available for future issuance Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 6, 499, 236 $ 2 79735754~
4578939 412 , 999-142 Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders--- Total 6, 499, 236 $ 2 ;973 57-$4- 45
F89-39 412 , 999-142 Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence. The following is a
description of transactions within the last two years to which we have been a party, in which the amount involved exceeded or
will exceed $ 120, 000, and in which any of our executive officers, directors or holders of more than 5 % of our voting securities,
or an immediate family member thereof, had or will have a direct or indirect material interest. We believe the terms obtained or
consideration that we paid or received, as applicable, in connection with the transactions described below were comparable to
terms available or amounts that would be paid or received, as applicable, in arm’ s- length transactions with unrelated third
parties. Line of Credit and Promissory Note with the Bay Shore Trust On April 28, 2023, we entered into the Bay Shore Note
with the Bay Shore Trust, under which we have the right to borrow up to an aggregate of § 5, 000, 000 from the Bay Shore Trust
at any time up to the second anniversary of the issuance of the Bay Shore Note or, if earlier, upon the completion of our initial
public offering. Our right to borrow funds under the Bay Shore Note is subject to the absence of a material adverse change in
our assets, operations, or prospects. The Bay Share Note, together with accrued interest, will become due and payable on the
second anniversary of the issuance of the note, provided that it may be prepaid at any time without penalty. The Bay Shore Note
will accrue interest at a rate equal 7 % per annum, simple interest, during the first year that the note is outstanding and 10 % per
annum, simple interest, thereafter. The Bay Shore Note is unsecured. As of June 30, 2023, the Bay Shore Note had an
outstanding principal balance of § 1. 8 million and accrued and unpaid interest of $ 0. 04 million. Under the Bay Shore Trust
Conversion Agreement, the Bay Shore Trust agreed to convert, upon the completion of our initial public offering, $ 1, 100, 190
of the outstanding principal balance of the Bay Shore Note into shares of our common stock at a conversion price equal to our
initial public offering price, which resulted in the issuance of 157, 170 shares to the Bay Shore Trust upon the completion of our
initial public offering. The note was paid off as of December 31, 2023. In consideration of the loan facility provided by the Bay
Shore Trust, we issued to the Bay Shore Trust a common stock purchase warrant on April 28, 2023 giving the Bay Shore Trust
the right to purchase up to 1, 000, 000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of § 5. 00 per share, which warrant will
expire five years after the date of grant. Pursuant to a registration rights agreement, we have granted to Bay Shore Trust the right
to require us, at any time after one year following our initial public offering, to register for resale the shares issuable upon the
exercise of the warrant, with such registration rights being in the form of demand and * piggyback ” registration rights that are
subject to customary limitations and restrictions. Upon issuance, the warrant met the criteria to be classified as equity based on
an analysis under Accounting Standards Codification (480) ASC 480, “ Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity ”” and was
measured at fair value, resulting in an initial fair value of approximately $ 3. 5 million upon issuance of the warrant using Black-
Scholes valuation techniques. Transactions with MIRALOGX LLC Since January 1, 2023, MIRALOGX has advanced funds on
behalf of Bay Shore Trust to our company in order to fund operating activities. The total amount advanced and outstanding from
MIRALOGX was $ 1. 6 million immediately prior to being consolidated into the Bay Shore Note on June 30, 2023, and such
amounts became a part of the outstanding balance of the Bay Shore Note as of June 30, 2023 and are-were payable under the
terms of the Bay Shore Note as discussed above . We are also a party to an Agreement for Shared Lease Costs, dated April 1,
2023, with MIRALOGX under which we have agreed to pay our pro rata share of the operating usage costs owing by
MIRALOGX under an aircraft lease agreement between MIRALOGX and Supera Aviation I LLC (“ Supera Aviation ") based
on our usage of the leased aircraft each month. No amounts are payable by us under this agreement unless and to the extent we
choose to utilize the leased aircraft. As such, we discontinued the use of the aircraft in March 2023. Prior to entering into this
agreement, we were a party to an aircraft lease agreement with Supera Aviation from April 20, 2021, through March 31, 2023.
We paid Supera Aviation an aggregate of $ 0. 5 million during the first quarter of 2023 and $ 1. 7 million in 2022. Supera
Aviation is a company owned by Starwood Trust. On November 15, 2023, we entered into an exclusive license agreement in
with MIRALOGX to develop and commercialize a drug product containing 2- (2- chlorophenyl)- 2- (methylamino)
cyclopentan- 1- one (sometimes referred to by the Parties as “ M209 ” or “ KETAMIR- 2 ) as an active agent in North America.
The exclusive license in the license agreement includes our right to sublicense the licensed intellectual property. Pursuant to the
terms of the license agreement, and subject to the conditions set forth therein, we paid MIRALOGX a one- time, nonrefundable
payment of § 100, 000 upon the signing of the Agreement and will be obligated to pay quarterly royalty payments on sales of
the Product in the Territory of 8 % of net sales and 8 % of other revenue (such as milestone or sublicense payments) from
licensed products. Also, in consideration of License Agreement, we issued to MIRALOGX a common stock purchase warrant to
purchase up to 700, 000 shares of our common stock. The MIRALOGX Warrants are exercisable, in whole or in part, any time
prior to November 15, 2028, at a cash exercise price of § 2. 00 per share. On November 15, 2023, we entered into a promissory
note and loan agreement with MIRALOGX. Pursuant to the loan agreement, we may borrow up to $ 3. 0 million from
MIRALOGX to fund the development of licensed products under the license agreement. Together with any advance request, we
will deliver to the Lender a budget for the requested advance. The budget may only include costs directly associated with




preparing an IND application for KETAMIR- 2, exclusive of personnel costs. Any advances made by the Lender to us pursuant
to this note may be repaid by us (together with any and all interest accrued thereon) at any time without penalty or premium in
accordance with the terms hereof. Amounts repaid hereunder may not be reborrowed. The loan agreement has a one- year term,
and all outstanding principal and accrued but unpaid interest must be repaid in full on November 15, 2623-2024 . Interest on the
amounts borrowed under the loan agreement accrues at an annual fixed rate of 8 %. We may prepay all or a portion of the
outstanding principal and accrued unpaid interest under the loan agreement at any time without a prepayment fee . The
Company did not borrow any funds from the MIRALOGX loan during the year ended December 31, 2024 or December
31, 2023 and the Loan Agreement expired on November 15, 2024 . Consulting and Employment Agreements with Dr. Chris
Chapman On April 1, 2022, we entered into a Consulting Agreement with Dr. Chapman pursuant to which he provided
regulatory and drug development consulting services to the Company on an as- requested basis. Pursuant to the Consulting
Agreement, he was to be paid a one- time fee of $ 100, 000 upon the completion of our initial public offering (of which $ 50,
000 was prepaid in in the first quarter of 2022) plus a monthly fee of $ 20, 000 thereafter. The monthly fee was to begin upon
the completion of our initial public offering. He was also reimbursed for reasonable out- of- pocket expenses incurred in
connection with his duties under the Consulting Agreement. The agreement had a term of one year with an automatic one- year
extension, provided that either party could terminate the agreement without cause upon 30- days prior written notice. In his
capacity as a consultant, Dr. Chapman was also granted on June 15, 2022, an option to purchase up to 200, 000 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price of $ 5. 00 per share. Upon Dr. Chapman becoming Executive Chairman, received additional
compensation in that capacity, and his employment agreement replaced his Consulting Agreement. See “ Executive
Compensation ” above. Dr. Chapman resigned his positions with our company on March 9, 2024. Review and Approval of
Related Party Transactions Our board of directors has adopted a written policy regarding the review and approval of related
party transactions. Our audit committee charter provides that the audit committee shall review and approve or disapprove any
related party transactions, which are transactions between us and related persons in which the aggregate amount involved
exceeds or may be expected to exceed the lessor of $ 120, 000 or one percent of the average of our total assets at year end for
the last two completed fiscal years and in which a related person has or will have a direct or indirect material interest. Our policy
regarding transactions between us and related persons provides that a related person is defined as a director, executive officer,
nominee for director or greater than 5 % beneficial owner of our common stock, in each case since the beginning of the most
recently completed year, and any of their immediate family members. Certain of the foregoing disclosures are summaries of
certain provisions of our related party agreements and are qualified in their entirety by reference to all of the provisions of such
agreements. Because these descriptions are only summaries of the applicable agreements, they do not necessarily contain all of
the information that you may find useful. Copies of certain of the agreements have been filed as exhibits to this Report and are
available electronically on the website of the SEC at www. sec. gov. As a matter of corporate governance policy, we have not
and will not make loans to officers or loan guarantees available to “ promoters ” as that term is commonly understood by the
SEC and state securities authorities. All future transactions between us and our officers, directors or five percent stockholders,
and respective affiliates will be on terms no less favorable than could be obtained from unaffiliated third parties and will be
approved by a majority of our independent directors who do not have an interest in the transactions and who had access, at our
expense, to our legal counsel or independent legal counsel. Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services. Audit Fees. The
aggregate fees billed by Cherry Bekaert LLP for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual financial statements,
review of the financial information included in our Forms 10- Q for the respective periods and other required filings with the
SEC for the years ended December 31, 2023-2024 and December 31, 2822-2023 totaled $ 0. 08 million and $ 0. 06 million ,
respectively. Additionally, the Company appointed a new audit firm, Salberg & Company P. A (“ Salberg ) effective
December 19, 2024. The aggregate fees billed by Salberg for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual
financial statements, and other required filings with the SEC for the year ended December 31, 2024 totaled $ 0. 05 million
srespeetively—The above amounts include interim procedures and audit fees, as well as attendance at audit committee meetings.
Audit- Related Fees. The aggregate fees billed by Cherry Bekaert LLP for audit- related fees for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 and2022-were $ 0. 405 million and $ 0. 84-03 million, respectively. The fees were provided in consideration of
services consisting of review and update procedures associated with registration statements and other SEC filings. Tax Fees. The
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The Audit Committee of our board of directors has estabhshed its pre- approval pohcles and procedures, pursuant to Wthh the
Audit Committee approved the foregoing audit and non- audit services provided by Cherry Bekaert LLP and Salberg &
Company P. A in 2023-2024 . Consistent with the Audit Committee’ s responsibility for engaging our independent auditors, all
audit and permitted non- audit services require pre- approval by the Audit Committee. The full Audit Committee approves
proposed services and fee estimates for these services. The Audit Committee chairperson has been designated by the Audit
Committee to approve any audit- related services arising during the year that were not pre- approved by the Audit Committee.
Any non- audit service must be approved by the full Audit Committee. Services approved by the Audit Committee chairperson
are communicated to the full Audit Committee at its next regular meeting and the Audit Committee reviews services and fees
for the fiscal year at each such meeting. Pursuant to these procedures, the Audit Committee approved the foregoing services
provided by Cherry Bekaert LLP and Salberg & Company P. A . PART [V Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
The information called for by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Exhibit Index in this Form 10- K. Number
Description 3. 1 Third Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3. 1 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 3. 2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 3 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 4. 1 Common Stock Purchase Warrant, dated April




28,2023, between MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Bay Shore Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 2 to Form S- 1
filed July 28, 2023). 4. 2 Common Stock Purchase Warrant from the Company to MIRALOGX, dated November 15, 2023
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to the Current Report on Form 8- K filed November 20, 2023). 4. 3 Representative’ s
Warrant, dated August 7, 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. 1 of the Company’ s Current Report on Form 8- K filed
August 7, 2023). 4. 4 * Description of Securities of the Registrant 10. 1 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended and restated
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 10. 2 Form of Stock Option Award under 2022
Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 2 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 10. 3 Form of
Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 3 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 10. 4 Confirmatory
Patent Assignment and Royalty Agreement, dated November 1, 2021, between SRQ Patent Holdings II, LLC and MIRA
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 4 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 10. 5 Amended and Restated
Limited License Agreement, dated June 27, 2022, between MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 5 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 10. 6 Amendment No. 1, dated April 20, 2023, to
Amended and Restated Limited License Agreement between MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and MyMD Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 6 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 10. 7 Employment Agreement, dated April 28,
2023, between MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Erez Aminov (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 7 to Form S- 1 filed July
28,2023). 10. 8 Amendment to Employment Agreement, August 28, 2023, between MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Erez
Aminov (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K filed August 31, 2023). 10. 9
Employment Agreement, dated April 28, 2023, between MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Michelle Yanez (incorporated by
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-1-3—Promrssory Note and Loan Agreement dated Aprrl 28, 2023 between MIRA Pharmaceutrcals lnc and Bay Shore Trust
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 10 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 10. +4-11 Registration Rights Agreement, dated
April 28, 2023, between MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Bay Shore Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 11 to Form
S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 10. +5-12 Agreement for Shared Lease Costs, dated April 1, 2023, between MIRA Pharmaceuticals,
Inc., Telomir Pharmaceutrcals Inc., and MIRALOGX LLC (1ncorporated by reference to Exhrbrt 10. 12 to Form S- 1 filed July
282023)10 abora A ated a harmaeettiea —and-Th

- Excluswe Llcense Agreement by and between the Cornpany and
MIRALOGX dated as of November 30, 2023 (1ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8- K
filed November 20, 2023). 10.43-14 Promissory Note and Loan Agreement, by and between the Company and MIRALOGX,
dated as of November 15, 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 3 to the Current Report on Form 8- K filed November
20,2023).10. 15 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated June 2, 2024, by and between MIRA
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Michelle Yanez (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 1 to the Current Report on Form 8-
K filed June 28, 2024). 10. 16 At The Market Agreement, dated August 12, 2024, by and between MIRA
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Rodman & Renshaw LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1. 2 of the Company’ s Form
S- 3 filed on August 12, 2024). 10. 17 Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated May 28, 2024, between MIRA
Pharmaceuticals and Erez Aminov (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 10 of the Company’ s Form 10- Q filed on
August 13,2024 ). 14. 1 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14. 1 to Form S- 1 filed
July 28, 2023). 19. 1 Insider Trading Policy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 5 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 21. 1
List of Subsidiaries of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21. 1 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 3+-23. 1 Consent
of Cherry Bekaert LLP31 . 1 * Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 31. 2 * Certification of
the Interim Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 32. 1 * * # Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to 18 U. S. C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 32. 2 * * # Certification of
the Interim Chref Frnan01al Offrcer pursuant to 18 U S C. 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act
0f2002 9% G v SO A 99. 1 Audit Committee Charter
(incorporated by reference to Exhrbrt 99 1 to Form S 1 ﬁled July 28 2023) 99. 2 Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee Charter (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 2 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 99. 3 Compensation Committee
Charter (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 3 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 99. 4 Corporate Governance Guidelines
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 4 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 99. 5 Related Person Transaction Policy and
Procedures (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. 6 to Form S- 1 filed July 28, 2023). 101. INS Inline XBRL Instance
Document 101. SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101. CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Calculation Linkbase Document 101. DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document 101. LAB Inline
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document 101. PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
Document Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document) Denotes management contract or
compensatory plan or arrangement. * Filed herewith * * Furnished herewith # A signed original of this written statement
required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. Item 16. Form 10- K Summary None. MIRA PHARMACEUTICALS,




INC. INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSReport of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB Firm ID
106) F- 2 €onsolidated-Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB Firm ID 42) F- 3 Balance
Sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-F - 4 3-Consoldated-Statements of Operations for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-F- 5 4-Conselidated-Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 aﬂd%@Q%F 6 S-Geﬁse-l-téa’fed-Statements of Cash FlOV\ /s for the yeals ended December 31, 2024
and 2023 an 5 nforma d F- 7 Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements F- -8-Repeft—9Rep0rt of lndependent Re;:lsteled Publm Aucountmo Firm To the
Stockholders and the Board of Directors and-Stoelhelders-of: Mira Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Opinion on the Financial
Statements We have audited the accompanying balance sheets-- sheet of MIRA-Mira Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “ Company )
as of December 31, 2023-2024 and-2022-, and-the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders” equity ¢deftetty-and
cash flows for the years— year then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ financial statements ). In our
opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December
31, 2623-2024 and-2622-, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years— year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . The financial statements of the Company as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2023, before the retrospective application of the expanded segment disclosure
requirements described in Note 9, were audited by other auditors whose report, dated April 1, 2024, expressed an
unqualified opinion, with an explanatory paragraph expressing substantial doubt regarding the Company’ s ability to
continue as a going concern, on those statements. We also audited the expanded segments disclosures described in Note
9, related to 2023 and the retrospective application of the expanded segment disclosure requirements described therein.
We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2023 financial statements of the Company other
than with respect to the expanded segment disclosures referred to above and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion
or any other form of assurance on the 2023 financial statements taken as a whole . Going Concern The accompanying
financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will be-able-te-continue as a going concern. As discussed
in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has inenrred-reeutring-no revenues, raised approximately $ 3. 6 million,
used approximately $ S. 6 million of cash in operations and had a nct tesses—- loss and-negative-operating-eash-flows-sittee
tneeptiorr-of $ 7. 9 million during the year ended December 31, 2024 . These matters faeters;-among-others;raise substantial
doubt about the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’ s ptens-Plans in regard to these matters are
also described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty. Basis for Opinion These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s financial statements based on our audits— audit . We are a public
accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ( “ PCAOB » ) and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our atdits— audit in
accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company
is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of #s-internal control over financial reporting. As part of our
andits— audit , we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting sbut not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. Our atdits— audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our aueits— audit also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our aueits— audit previde-provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion ./ s/ Salberg & Company, P. A. SALBERG & COMPANY, P. A . We have served as the Company’ s auditor since
2024. Boca Raton, Florida 2295 NW Corporate Blvd., Suite 240 e Boca Raton, FL 33431- 7326 Phone: (561) 995- 8270 o
Toll Free: (866) CPA- 8500 o Fax: (561) 995- 1920 www. salbergco. com e info @ salbergco. com Member National
Association of Certified Valuation Analysts e Registered with the PCAOB Member CPAConnect with Affiliated Offices
Worldwide ® Member AICPA Center for Audit Quality To the Board of Directors and Stockholders Tampa, Florida
Opinion on the Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(the “ Company ”) as of December 31, 2023, and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes, but for the disclosures related to segment reporting described
in Note 9 (collectively referred to as the “ financial statements ). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the disclosures to retroactively
apply the implementation of ASU 2023- 07 described in Note 9 and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any
other form of assurance with regard to Note 9 and the implementation of ASU 2023- 07. The disclosures related thereto
for 2023 were audited by other auditors. Going Concern The accompanying financial statements have been prepared
assuming the Company will be able to continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the
Company has incurred recurring net losses and negative operating cash flows since inception. These factors, among
others, raise substantial doubt about the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’ s plans in
regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might
result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Basis for Opinion These financial statements are the responsibility of the




Company’ s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s financial statements based on
our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (“ PCAOB ) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S.
federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB. We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an
audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit, we are required to obtain an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’ s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our audit included
performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or
fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. We served as the
Company’ s auditor from 2022 to 2024 . / s / Cherry Bekaert LLP April 1, 2024 BALANCE SHEETS 2024 2023 2022
December 31,2024 2023 2022-ASSETS Current assets: Cash $ 2, 832,931 $ 4, 602, 566 $350,978 Deferred-offeringeosts-
+43;427-Other receivables - 11, 862 —Prepaid expenses 54, 729 243, 802 -—Totdl current assets 28 887 660 4, 858 230 494—495
Operating lease, right of use assets - 5, 061 +64;-9+6-Related party opers S Op

right-ofuse-assets—198;- 759 Related-party-aceounts-receivable 35, 439 69, 152 -—Totdl assets b 2 923, 099 $ 4,932, 443 -$—8§-8—
9—7‘4—LIABILITIES AND STOC KH()LDERS EQUITY €BE-F-IGI—T—)—C urrent lmbllmes Trade dccounts pd\/dble dnd accrued

e G e e O-Total current
lldbl ities 723 349 558, 097 H#@—@%—Neﬂ—et&mﬂ%epef&&ﬁg%e&se%r&b&ﬁies-%Hé?—Toml liabil mes 723,349 558,097 &
454:-366-Stockholders’ Pefieit Equity Preferred Stock, $ 0. 0001 par value, 10, 000, 000 shares authorized and none issued or
outstanding.-- Common Stock, $ 0. 0001 par value; 100, 000, 000 shares authorized, 16, 560, 852 and 14, 780, 885 and43;343;
006-shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2623-2024 and December 31, 2022-2023 , respectively. 1, 656 1, 478 6657
Additional paid- in capital 31, 335, 815 25, 657, 930 8;-699;-836-Accumulated deficit ( 29, 137, 2+-721 ;285;-662-) ( 9-21 , 362
285 , H9-062 ) Total stockholders’ equity tdefiett)2, 199, 750 4, 374, 346 £596;232)-Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
{defteity$ 2, 923,099 $ 4, 932, 443 $858,-074-See notes to consolidated financial statements STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS 2024 2023 2022-Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Revenues $- $- Operating costs: General and
administrative expenses 4, 712, 753 6, 499, 537 2;-992+425-Related party travel costs - 453, 550 +5704;-356-Research and
development expenses 3, 305, 575 1, 572, 962 23545465 Total operating costs 8, 018, 328 8, 526, 049 #-0474-946-Interest
income ( expense ), net 165, 669 (3, 456, 294 3HFH9;256-) Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (-7 , 982-852 , 343
659 ) $ (11, 658982 , 496-343 ) Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0. 64-51 ) $ (0. 46-85 ) Basic Weighted-weighted average
common stock shares outstanding +8;566;1+58—- 15 +7-, 566-444 , 533-149 13, 924, 619 STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN
STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY (DEFICIT) Shares Amount Capital Reeetvable-Deficit Egquity-(Deficit) Common Stock
Additional Paid- In Steek-Subseription-Accumulated Total Stockholders” Equity Shares Amount Capital Reeetvable-Deficit

Equ-x-try—(Deﬁut) Balances, ldnuary %2023%%%%

based Compensatlon— (5—3%6)—2 556—550 9462—7%-—~ 2 550, 946 lssuance 01L common stock at IP() net 1, 275 ()()() 128 7, 704,
152-=7, 704, 279 Issuance of common stock conversion of debt 157, 170 16 1, 100, 080- =1, 100, 096 Issuance of common
stock 35, 715 4 249, 996- =250, 000 Issuance of Warrants-warrants - 5, 347, 600 — 5, 347, 600 Net loss —-- (11, 982, 343)
(11,982, 343) Balances, December 31, 2023 14, 780, 885 1, 478 25, 657, 930 (21, 285, 062) 4, 374, 346 Balance 14, 780, 885
1, 478 25, 657, 930 (21, 285, 062) 4, 374, 346 Issuance of common stock- ATM, net of offering costs 1, 779, 967 178 3, 608,
377- 3, 608, 555 Payment of short swing disgorgement by Bay Shore Trust-- 148, 703- 148, 703 Stock- based
compensation-- 1, 920, 805- 1, 920, 805 Net loss--- (7, 852, 659) (7, 852, 659) Balances, December 31, 2024 $ 16, 560, 852 $
1, 478-656 $ 25-31 , 657335 , 815 936-$—5 ( 29, 137, 24-721 ;285;062-) $ 42 . 374-199 , 346-750 Balance $ 16, 560, 852 $ 1,
656 $ 31, 335, 815 $ (29, 137, 721) § 2,199, 750 STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 2024 2023 2022-Year Ended December
1,2024 2023 2622-Cash flows from Operating-operating activities Net loss § (+H-7 , 982-852 , 343-659 ) § (711, 658982 ,
-1-99—343 ) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash from operations Non- cash Interestinterest expense - 3, 456, 294 16;
250-Amertizationrof-debt-issuanee-eosts732,292—Stock- based compensation expense 1, 920, 805 2, 550, 946 Non- cash
warrant expense- |, 296-832 . 666-388 Non- cash investor relations fees - 250, 000 —Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Right of use lease, net - 5, 500 Prepaid expenses 189, 073 (243, 802) Other receivables 11, 862 (11, 862) Trade accounts
payable and accrued expenses 184 785 (389 524) Related party accrued mterest (14, 472)— Net cash used in operatmg
act1v1t1es $ (5 599—560 606 ) $ Aees b e e

g e t i i ing-aetivittes<(4, 532, 403 ¥
{67694—759—) F inancing activities: Deferred offermg costs- 143 427 Repayments under related party line of credit- (1, 142,
483) Advances from (to) frem-affiliates 33, 713 (69, 152) 445:-6+2-Advances received from related party line of credit -2, 147,



920 Bayshore Trust short - swing disgorgement 148 Deferred-offering-eosts 143, 703- 427(43;427)Repayments-under

relatedparty-ine-oferedit(;+42,-483)-(166;:-000)-Proceeds from sale of common stock, less offering costs 3, 608, 555 7, 704,
279 25-964;-600-Net cash flews-provided by financing activities $ 3, 790, 971 $ 8, 783, 991 3;346;485-Net ehange-increase

(decrease) in cash (1 769 635) 4, 251 588 Cash, beglnnmg of year 4 602, 566 350 978 Cash, end of year $ 2, 458-832 ,
931 atine 5 ertod-5 4, 602, 566 $350;-978-Supplemental disclosure
of cash ﬂow 1nformat10n C ash paid fo1 interest$ - § - Cash paid for income taxes $- $- Supplemental schedule of non- cash
financing activities: Deferred offering costs charged to additional paid- in capital $ 32, 500 $ 426, 345 SUPPLEMENTAL
CASH FLOW INFORMATION Non- cash Finaneing-financing and nvesting-investing Aetivities-activities : The Company
recorded deferred offering costs of $ 32, 500 during the year ended December 31, 2024 in association with the At the
Market Agreement and charged these costs to additional paid in capital. The Company recorded the fair value of a total of
1, 000, 000 shares of common stock issued to Bay Shore Trust during the year ended December 31, 2023 which totaled
approximately $ 3. 5 million to deferred finance costs. The Company had amortized approximately $ 0. 7 million of deferred
offering costs as non- cash amortization of debt issuances costs in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (*
GAAP ”) . As of December 31, 2023, this agreement was paid in full. This resulted in a write- off of unamortized deferred
financing costs, in the amount of § 2. 8 million which was recorded as interest expense. The Company recorded the fair value
of a total of 157, 170 shares of common stock issued to Bay Shore Trust during the year ended December 31, 2023
totaling approximately $ 1. 1 million to record Bay Shore Trust conversions of a line of credit and interest to shares of
common stock. The Company recorded the fair value of a total of 35, 715 shares of common stock issued to the MZ
Group during the year ended December 31, 2023 totaling $ 0. 25 million in lieu of fees for investor relation services. On
November 15, 2023, the Company entered a warrant agreement and recorded the fair value of a total of 700, 000 shares of
common stock issued to MIRALOGX, LLC which totdled b 1, 832, 600 to -rn’fefest—expense F-8 Th&@eﬁrp&ﬂ-y—feeef&ed-&te—faﬁ

rform At retples-genera r-the-Untte e Fertea —As used herein, the (ompany
s Common Stock par value ‘{> 0. ()()()1 per Shdle is refened to as the “ Common Stock ” and the Company’ s preferred stock, par
value b () ()()()1 per share, is referred to as the “ PIefeLred Stock ” ~Operating-updatesAdditionaltestingisrequired-to-econfirm

its initial publlc oﬁelmg consisting of 1, 275, 000 shares at a price of ‘{> 7. 00 per Shdle for dpploxnnately $ 8. 9 million in gross
proceeds. After deducting the underwriting commission and other deferred offering expenses totaling $ 1. 2 million, the net
proceeds to the Company were $ 7. 7 million (the “ IPO ). The shares were offered and sold pursuant to the Company”’ s
Registration Statement on Form S- 1, as amended (File No. 333- 273024), originally filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “ SEC ) on June 29, 2023 (the ““ Registration Statement ”’) and the final quarterly report filed with the
Commission pursuant to Rule 424 (b) (4) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Registration Statement was declared
effective by the Commission on August 2, 2023. The common stock began trading on The Nasdaq Capital Market on August 3,
2023 under the symbol “ MIRA . The closing of the IPO occurred on August 7, 2023. (See Note 8 “ Common Stock ). As of
the completion of the IPO, among other things, certain of the Company’ s then- outstanding convertible debt was converted into
shares of common stock. See Note 54 for more information. Basis of Presentation Certain amounts in the prior year
financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. There is no impact to total cash
flows from operations as a result of this reclassification. Specifically, the Company reclassed certain non- cash expenses
related to related party line of credit included in “ Change in operating assets and liabilities ” to “ Adjustments to
reconcile net loss to net cash from operations ” Revenue recognition The Company currently has no source of revenue.
Miscellaneous income, including interest, is recognized when earned by the Company. Income taxes The Company is-accounts
for income taxed-taxes as-a-C-eorporatior—pursuant to the provision of Accounting Standards Codification (“ ASC ) 740-



10, “ Accounting for Income Taxes ” (“ ASC 740- 10 ), which requires, among other things, an asset and liability
approach to calculating Deferred-deferred income taxes. The asset and liability approach requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are-reeognized-for the expected future tax consequences attributable-te-of temporary
differences between the -ﬁﬂ&netal—statefﬂeﬁt—canymg amountamounts e-Pe*rst—mg—assets—and -l-r&bi-l-l-ﬁes—aﬁd-t-henh the fespeem‘e
tax bases of —Deferred-tax-assets a y
and liabilities fertoss-earryovers- A v aluation allow ance 1s feeeg-mzed-feg&fd-mg—prowded to offset any net deferred tax assets
for which management believes if-any;ifit is more likely than not that seme-pertion-of-the net deferred tax-asset will not be
realized. MIRA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. The Company follows the provision of ASC 740- 10 related to Accounting
for Uncertain Income Tax Positions. When tax returns are filed, there may be uncertainty about the merits of positions
taken or the amount of the position that would be ultimately sustained. In accordance with the guidance of ASC 740- 10,
the benefit of a tax position is recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the period during which, based on all
available evidence, management believes it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination,
including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if any. Tax positions taken are not offset or aggregated with
other positions. Tax positions that meet the more likely than not recognition threshold are measured at the largest
amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing
authority. The portion of the benefit associated with tax positions taken that exceed the amount measured as described
above should be reflected as a liability for uncertain tax benefits in the accompanying balance sheet along with any
associated interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination. The Company
believes its tax positions are all more likely than not to be upheld upon examination. As such, the Company has not
recorded a liability for uncertain tax benefits. Rescarch and development costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred and include the expenses paid to third parties, such as contract research organizations and consultants, who conduct
research and development activities on behalf of the Company. Patent- related costs, including registration costs, documentation
costs and other legal fees associated with the application, are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. F9-General
and administrative expenses are primarily comprised of personnel costs, marketing expenses, amortization, insurance expenses,
professional serv 1ees fees, travel dnd office expenses, and stock- based compensatlon —Adveft-tsrng—e*peﬂses—The C ompdny

Gemp&ﬂy—aeeettﬂts-accounted tor leases under the plO\lSlOl]S of FASB AS( Toplc 842 “ Ledses , which requires the
Company to recognize right- to- use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities for operating leases on the bdldnce sheet. Use of
estimates The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP generalty-aceepted-aceountingprineiples-in-the
Yntted-States-of-Amertearequires the Company’ s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from such estimates and such
differences could be material. Significant estimates during the reporting periods include stock- based compensation and
the deferred tax asset valuation allowance. The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments and other short-
term investments with maturities of three months or less, when purchased, to be cash equivalents. The Company
maintains cash and cash equivalent balances with-at two financial institutions that management-believes-arc efhigh-eredit
guaatity-insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“ FDIC ”) . The Company’ s eash-account at these
institutions are times-may-exeeed-federally-insured by the FDIC up to $ 250, 000. On December 31, 2024, the Company
had cash in excess of FDIC limits of approximately $ 2 . The-3 million. To reduce its risk associated with the failure of
such financial institution, the Company has-netexperieneed-anyltosses-evaluates at least annually the rating of the financial
institution in which steh-aeeounts—The-Company-beleves-it holds deposits 1s-notexposed-to-any-signifieantereditriskfromtts
eashaeeount-. The C ompdny accounts for stock- based compensation under the provisions of FASB ASC 718, “ Compensation-
Stock Compensation ”, which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all stock- based awards
made to employees, directors and consultants based on estimated fair values on the grant date. The Company estimates the fair
value of stock- based awards on the date of grant using the Black- Scholes model. The value of the portion of the award that is
ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service periods using the straight- line method. The
Company has elected to account for forfeiture of stock- based awards as they occur. F- 10 Operating Segment-Segments
Operatlng segments are 1dent1ﬁed as components of an enterprlse for whlch separate dlscrete ﬁnancnal information A—SG




fhe%teawsﬁmdard—d&d—net—m&teﬂa-l-}y—ﬂmaaet—l he Company’ s ﬁet—rneeme-ﬁnanclal performance, the CODM reviews total

revenues, total expenses, and had-ne-impaet-expenses by functional classification; using this information to make decisions
on eash-flews-a company- wide basis . Fair value of financial instruments The Company measures the fair value of financial
instruments in accordance with GAAP which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. GAAP defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or
paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants on the measurement date. GAAP also establishes a fair value hierarchy, which requires
an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The
Company considers the carrying amount of deferred offering costs to approximate fair value due to short- term nature of this
instrument. GAAP describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value: Level 1 — quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 —- quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that
are observable. Level 3 —- inputs that are unobservable (for example cash flow modeling inputs based on assumptions).
Ceontingenetesin— Contingencies In the normal course of business, the Company may be subject to loss contingencies, such as
legal proceedings, amounts arising from contractual arrangements and claims arising out of the Company’ s business that cover
a wide range of matters, including, among others, government investigations, shareholder lawsuits, and tax matters. In
accordance with ASC Topic 450, Accounting for Contingencies, (ASC 450), the Company records accruals for such loss
contingencies when it is probable that a liability will be incurred, and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. The
Company, in accordance with this guidance, does not recognize gain contingencies until realized or realizable. F—HNete2-
Hiquidity-and-eapitat-resotrees-trEarnings per Share Earnings (loss) per share is computed in accordance with ASC Toplc
260Aeeeﬁﬂt-rﬂg—Sf&ﬂd&rds—Ged-rﬁeaﬁeﬂ—2-95—49— & Earmngs per Geing wheth e

202 3 mclude the shares of the Company 1ssued and outstandmg durmg such perlod ona welghted average basis. The
basic weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding excludes common stock equivalents such as stock
options and warrants, while diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding includes such stock options and
warrants. As of December 31, 2024 there were 1, 763, 750 stock warrants and 4, 235, 666 stock options that were not
included in the computation of diluted earnings per share, because to do so would have an antidilutive effect. As of
December 31, 2023 there was 1, 763, 750 stock warrants and 1, 215, 001 stock options that were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share, because to do so would have an antidilutive effect. Recent Accounting
Pronouncements In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB ”) issued Accounting
Standards Update (“ ASU ”) No. 2023- 07, “ Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures (Topic 280) ” which is
intended to improve reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through incremental disclosures of segment
information on an annual and interim basis for all public entities. The ASU expands public entities’ segment disclosures
by requiring disclosure of significant segment expenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker
and included within each reported measure of segment profit or loss, an amount and description of its composition for
other segment items and interim disclosures of a reportable segment’ s profit or loss and assets. The ASU is to be applied
retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements and is effective for our Annual Report on Form
10- K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, and interim periods thereafter. The Company adopted this guidance
with no material impact on its consolidated financial statements. See Note 9. Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not
Yet Adopted In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024- 03, Income Statement — Reporting Comprehensive
Income — Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40), which requires entities to provide more detailed
disaggregation of expenses in the income statement, focusing on the nature of the expenses rather than their function.
The new disclosures will require entities to separately present expenses for significant line items, including but not
limited to, depreciation, amortization, and employee compensation. Entities will also be required to provide a qualitative
description of the amounts remaining in relevant expense captions that are not separately disaggregated quantitatively,
disclose the total amount of selling expenses and, in annual reporting periods, provide a definition of what constitutes
selling expenses. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim periods
within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2027, with early adoption permitted. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this new guidance to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. In December 2023, the
FASB issued ASU 2023- 09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. This new standard
requires a company to expand its existing income tax disclosures, specifically related to the rate reconciliation and
income taxes paid. The standard will be effective beginning in fiscal year 2025, with early adoption permitted. The new



standard is expected to be applied prospectively, but retrospective application is permitted. We are currently evaluating
the impact of ASU 2023- 09 on the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. The Company does not
expect the adoption of this new guidance to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Management has considered all other recent accounting pronouncements that are issued, but not effective, and it does
not believe that they will have a significant impact on the Company’ s results of operations or financial position. F- 11
Note 2. Going Concern The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will
continue as a going concern which contemplates the realization of assets and settlement of liabilities and commitments in
the normal course of business. As of December 31, 2024, the Company had cash of approximately $ 2. 8 million, and
historically the Company has had no revenues. The Company raised capital of approximately $ 3. 8 million in 2024 and
used approximately $ S. 6 million of cash in operations during the year ended December 31, 2024 had anet loss of $7.9
million in 2024 and had stockholders’ equity of approximately $ 4-2 . 2 tof;

$-0-6-million at December 31, 20222024 , versus stockholders’ equity of approximately $ 4. 4 million at December 31,
2023. Historically, the Company has been primarily engaged in developing Ketamir- 2 and MIRA- 55. During these activities,
the Company sustained substantial losses. The Company’ s ability to fund ongoing operations and future clinical trials required
for FDA approval is dependent on the Company’ s ability to obtain significant additional external funding in the near term.
Since inception, the Company has financed its operations through t-hehsa-le—e-ﬁ@eﬂ‘lfﬂeﬁ—Steel&ﬂae—H’-@—&nd-lc ated pdllv
financings - see Note 4, and initial public offering — see Note 1 . The Ads¢ b h
Company maintains an effective shelf registration statement with the SEC for the issuance of shares of common stock
under various types of equity offerings, including the shares of common stock under our ATM equity program (Note 8) .
The Company expects to be able to fund operations through the feurth-third quarter of 2624-2025 . with avatable-borrowings
the cash on hand thedoan-agreement-(Note-4)-. Additional-finaneing-However, the Company has the ability to issue common

stock under its shelf registration statement to asslst in llquldlty needs As of the date of ﬁlmg thls Report the Company

Gempan—y—dees—net—hd\ e 1nsuffic1ent cdsh and cash equiv alcnls as—e%t-he—date—e%ﬁ-l-iﬂg—t-h-isﬁnﬂua{—Repeft—on hand

Ferm10-K—to support its operations for at least the 12 months following the date the financial statements are issued. These
eondittons-factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of twelve
months from the issuance date of this report. Management cannot provide assurance that the Company will ultimately
achieve profitable operations or become cash flow positive or raise additional debt and / or equity capital. The Company
is seeking to raise capital through +2-menths-after-additional debt and / or equity financings to fund our operations in the
date-future. If the Company is unable to raise additional capital or secure additional lending in the near future,
management expects that the Company will need to curtall its operatlons These mancml statements are-issted—To

eﬂr&bﬁmes—rn—the—neﬂﬁa-l—eeﬂfse—e-ﬁbusmess—&nd-do nol mcludc any ddj ustmcnts fe}a-t-rng—related to the recoverability and

./

classlllcallon of feeefded-asset—assets ameuﬁts—ol lhc amounts and classification of liabilities that mlghl be necessary should the

2023, the (ompany and MIRAL()(JX LL( a Flonda llmncd lldblll[v company ( MIRAL()(JX ) cntucd into an cxclusn e
license agreement (the “ License Aglccmcm ’) to develop and commercialize a drug product containing 2- (2- chlorophenyl)- 2-
(methylamino) cyclopentan- 1- one (sometimes referred to by the Parties as “ M209 ” or “ KETAMIR- 2 ”) (* the Product ) as
an active agent in North America. (the “ Territory ). The exclusive license in the License Agreement includes the right of the
Company to sublicense the licensed intellectual property. The Company and MIRALOGX have the same founder, who is
also our largest shareholder and thus MIRALOGX is considered a related party. Pursuant to the terms of the License
Agreement, and subject to the conditions set forth therein, the Company paid MIRALOGX a one- time, nonrefundable payment



of $ 0. 1 million upon the signing of the Agreement and will be obligated to pay quarterly royalty payments on sales of the
Product in the Territory of 8 % of net sales and 8 % of other revenue (such as milestone or sublicense payments) from licensed
products. Also, in consideration of License Agreement, the Company issued to MIRALOGX a Common Steelestock Parehase
purchase Warrant-warrant to purchase up to 700, 000 shares of the Company’ s common stock (the “ MIRALOGX Warrants
). The MIRALOGX Warrants are exercisable, in whole or in part, any time prior to November 15, 2028 at a cash exercise price
of $ 2. 00 per share. The Company and MIRALOGX have made customary representations and warranties in the License
Agreement and have agreed to certain other customary covenants, including confidentiality, cooperation, and indemnity
provisions. Either party may terminate the License Agreement for cause if the other party materially breaches or defaults in the
performance of its obligations, and, if curable, such material breach remains uncured for 120 days. Unless earlier terminated, the
License Agreement will contmue in effeet untrl the la%t to exp1re of the Patent-patent Rights-rights (the “ Term ”), unless earlier
terminated. Fh pder—F- +3-12 Note 54 . Debt, related party: On November 15,
2023, the Company entered into a Promr%sory Note and Loan Agreement (the “ Loan Agreement ) with MIRALOGX. Pursuant
to the Loan Agreement, the Company mas-could borrow up to $ 3. 0 mrllron from MIRALOGX to fund the development of
licensed productq under the License Agreement (the “Loan ”) : v y e

ﬂet—be—rebe-rrowed—The Loan Agreement has—had a one- year term, and all outqtandlng pr1nc1pal and accrued but unpard interest
must—had to be repard in full on November 15,2024. {rntefest—eﬁ—However, the a-memﬁs—berrewed—&ndeﬁhe—]:ean—&gfeement

the MIRALOGX loan as—e-f—durmg the year ended Deeember 31, 2024 or December 31, 2023 and the Loan Agreement
expired on November 15, 2024 . In May 2021, the Company entered into a revolving credit facility which allowed for
borrowings of up to $ 5 million from Starwood Trust, a shareholder of the Company. The facility had an initial term of 24
months (extended to 36 months in March 2023), with a new maturity date of May 10, 2024, at which time all outstanding
borrowings and accrued interest, if any, were due in full. Borrowings accrued interest at a rate of 5 % per annum. In April 2023,
the Company entered into a Promissory Note and Loan Agreement with the Bay Shore Trust, a trust established by a-the largest
shareholder of the Company. Under this Promissory Note and Loan Agreement (the “ Bay Shore Note ), the Company has-had
the right to borrow up to an aggregate of $ 5 million from the Bay Shore Trust at any time up to the second anniversary of the
issuance of the Bay Shore Note or, 1f earlrer upon the Completron ofthe Company S lPO The Company—stightto-botrow

ﬂ&erea-fter—’Phe—Bﬂ-y—Shefe—Nems—&nsee&red—The—Bay Shore Note replaeed the revolvmg cred1t fac1lrty that the Company

entered into with Starwood Trust, 2 nd pursuant to

which the Company had an outstanding prlnerpal balance of $ O 2 mrllron as of the date of the Bay Shore Note (which
outstanding balance was retired with an advance under the Bay Shore Note). In consideration of the loan facility provided by the
Bay Shore Trust, in April 2023, the Company issued to the Bay Shore Trust a common stock purchase warrant giving the Bay
Shore Trust the right to purchase up to 1, 000, 000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $ 5. 00 per share, which
warrant will exp1re ﬁve year% after the date of grant Pursuant toa regrqtratron r1ght§ agreement the Company has—granted—to

e . See Note 8
for addrtlonal details related o the@e warrants. -F-—l-4—On July 20 2023 the Company entered into a conversion agreement with
the Bay Shore Trust under which the Bay Shore Trust had agreed to convert, upon the completion of the IPO, $ 1. 1 million of
the outstanding principal balance of the Bay Shore Note into shares of the Company’ s common stock at a conversion price
equal to the Company’ s IPO price, which resulted in the issuance of 157, 170 shares to the Bay Shore Trust. On August 14,
2023, the Company paid $ 1. 0 million in full to Bay Shore Trust, which was the amount due. The eempany-Company also paid
accrued interest of $ 0. 03 million. Both amounts are recorded in the accompanying statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2023 as interest expense. Fhere—- The #s-#remaining amount of $ 0. 01 million in accrued interest due to Bay
Shore Trust was paid as of December 31, 2623-2024 —, as reflected in the accompanying financial statements, and the Note
6-is no longer active. F- 13 Note 5 . Related party transactions: Due from Related Party — As of the year ended December 31,
2023, the Company paid $ 0. 07 million to vendors iraeeeuntspayable-on behalf of a related party. Fhere-wasno-suehameunt
during-During the eorresponding-pertocr-year ended December 31, 2622-2024 , —Due-toRelated-Party—Amounts-due-to
related partiecs made payments on behalf of the Company in the amount of $ 0. 03 million for wages of personnel working
with the Company which is classified as advances from affiliates in the statement of cash flows and offset against the
related party receivable on the balance sheet. As of December 31, %92—3—2024 and—Beeember—}-l— %92—2—a-re—1=eeefded-$ 0. 04
million remains outstandlng asa related party recelvable aee 3 -

9—ba-laﬁee—as—ef—Beeember—3—l—292—3— Travel expenses —= ln Apr1l 2021 the Company entered into an a1rplane lea%e W1th an
entity under common control that the Company tresrs-incurred approxrmately $ 0. 05 million of lease charges per month. The



ease wableatthe 3€ 3 y ever;the-Company terminated the
lease at—March 31 2023 Wrthout any penaltlei The Company may continue to incur related party travel- related expenses as
they occur, which will be recorded in Related Party Travel Costs, in the eendensed-statement of operations. During the year
ended December 31, 2023, the Company incurred $ 0. 5 million, for travel- related expenses to the related party for monthly
rental charges and airplane- related expenses. There were no such travel- was-$+—F-mithenofrclated partytravel-cxpenses in
during-the-year-ended-Deeember34;2022-2024 . License agreement - See Note 3. Line of credit - Sce Note 4. Line-oferedit
Stock settlement agreement - See Note 8 5—Note 76 . Leases: The Company’ s former corporate headquarters was-were
located in Baltnnore Maryland Wthh -rnel-udes-lncluded a lease for offlce Space Th1§ lease began in November 2021 and was

pay&b{e—t-lﬁeugh—Aprrl 2024 The lease was not renewed after Aprll 2024 Reﬁt—ts—pay&b{e—m—meﬁﬂﬂy—msfaﬁment&and-ts
subjeetto-yeatlypriee-itereases—. In April 2024, the Company moved to a virtual office model and does not have a physical
office space as of December 31, 2024 The Company had leased an office in Tampa, Florida, for its finance and general
operations, which began in March 2022 for 37 months. On December 1, 2023, the Company formally terminated the lease with
the landlord. There is-was a remaining deposit due from the landlord to the Company of $ 0. 005 million, which is recorded in
accounts receivable in the accompanying balance sheet as of December 31, 2023 . As of December 31, 2024, the amount was
collected . The Company also leased a jet (Note 5) from a related party, which terminated on March 31 ,2023. Variable lease
costs Variable lease costs primarily include utilities, property taxes, and other operating costs that are passed on from the lessor.
Variable lease costs in 2023 related to the aircraft include usage expenses, which includes pilot expenses, jet fuel and general
flight expenses. F=—5-The components of lease expense were as follows: Schedule of Lease Expense 2623-2024 2622-2024 Y ear
Ended December 31, 2024 2024 [case €osts-costs 2023-2022-Operating Fease-lease Cost-OperatingLease-costs $ 5, 092 $ 200,
283 Variable lease costs- 311, 126 Total lease cost $ 333-5 , 092 946-Variable-Lease-Costs3H5126-637-420-Totalease-Cost
$ 511, 409 F- 14 $970,466-Supplemental cash flow 1nformat10n related to leases were as follows: Schedule of Cash Flow
Information Related to Leases 2024 Othereasetnformation-2023 2022-Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 Other Lease
lease Infermatterrinformation 2623-20622-Cash paid for amounts 1ncluded in the measurement of leaqe liabilities Operatlng cash
ﬂowe from operatlng leases $ 5 092 $ 511, 40 € d

Note -8—7 lncome taxes: The irgnrfrcant components of the Company s net deferred tax assets are as f0110W§ as of December
31: Schedule of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 2024 2023 2822-December 31, 2024 2023 2822-Deferred tax assets Net
operating loss carry- forward $ 4, 555, 400 $ 2, 430, 529 $14-061;,360-Section 174 Qualified Research Expenditures 1, 232, 033
533, 159 388;236-Stock compensation 1, 099, 090 650, 018 336;633-ROU liability - 1, 291 94-R & D Credit 38 , 333-640-
Other = 204 6;420-Deferred tax assets, Gross 6,925,163 3, 615, 201 45.87%-6+6-1css: valuation allowance ( 3-6 , 643-925 , 96+
163 ) (+3 ., 784-613 , 886-901 ) Deferred tax assets, Net - 1, 291 92:436-Deferred tax liabilities ROU asset = (1, 291 925736-)
Total net deferred tax asset $- $— Beginning in 2022, in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 174, Qualified
Research Expenditures are capitalized for tax purposes and amortized over a period of five years. Accordingly, for income tax
purposes, and as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company has recorded a deferred tax asset totaling
approximately $ 1. 2 million and $ 0. 5 million , respectively, related to the timing difference between GAAP and Tax
recognition of these expenditures. The components of the provision for income taxes consist of the following: Schedule of
Components of Income Tax Provision 2024 2023 December 31, 26222024 2023 Decferred tax: Deferred (43 , 829-311 , 636
252) (1,784-829 , 886-030 ) Change in valuation allowance 3, 311, 252 1, 829, 030 +5784;-880-Total deferred-- Total provision
for income taxes $- $- ASC Topic 740 requires that a deferred tax amount be reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the
weight of available evidence it is more likely than not (a likelihood of more than 50 %) that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized. The valuation allowance should be sufficient to reduce the deferred tax asset to the amount that is
more likely than not to be realized. The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets
generated by net operating loss carryforwards as it has determined that such amounts may not be recognizable, given the
historical losses of the Company to date. As of December 31, 2823-2024 , the Company has a cumulative federal net operating
loss carryforward of approximately $ 9-18 . 5-0 million. The net operating loss carryforwards have no expiration date. F- 15 A
reconciliation of the statutory U. S. federal income tax rate to the Company’ s effective income tax rate is as follows:
Schedule of Reconciliation of Effective Income Tax Rate Year Ended December 31, 2024 Amount Rate Book Loss $ 7,
852, 659 Tax Benefit at U. S. Federal Statutory Rate (1, 649, 058) 21. 00 % State Taxes, Net of Federal Benefit (341, 591)
4. 35 % Change in Valuation Allowance 3, 311, 262 (42. 17 ) % Permanent Items (1, 320, 612) 16. 82 % Net actual
effective rate $-- % Note 3-8 . Stockholders’ equity: Capital stock The Company has the authority to issue 110, 000, 000 shares
of capital stock, consisting of 100, 000, 000 shares of Common Stock and 10, 000, 000 shares of undesignated preferred stock
(as amended and restated on June 28, 2023), whose rights and privileges will be defined by the Board of Directors when a series
of preferred stock is designated. Reverse stock- split Effective June 28, 2023, the Company completed a 1- for- 5 reverse stock
split of its outstanding common stock upon the filing of the Company’ s Third Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation
with the Florida Secretary of State. No fractional shares were issued in connection with the reverse stock split, and all such



fractional shares resulting from the reverse stock split were rounded up to the nearest whole number. The shares issuable upon
the exercise of our outstanding options and warrants, and the exercise prices of such options and warrants, have been adjusted to
reflect the reverse stock split. All share and per share information in the accompanying financial statements have been
retrospectively adjusted to reflects the reverse stock split. Common Stock #ssaanees-At [PO in August 2023, 1, 275, 000
shares of the Company’ s common stock were issued at a price of $ 7. 00 per share which resulted in gross proceeds of $ 8. 9
million and net proceeds of $§ 7. 7 million to the Company after the underwriter discount but before other IPO related expenses.
Additionally, the Company issued its former investor relations firm $ 0. 25 million worth of restricted common stock upon
closing of the IPO, which resulted in issuance of 35, 715 shares of stock. Puaring-On August 12, 2024, the year-ended
Company filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC to facilitate the issuance of our common stock and entered
into an At The Market Offering Agreement (the “ ATM Agreement ”’) with Rodman & Renshaw LLC (the “ Manager
), under which the Company may offer and sell shares of its Common Stock, with an aggregate offering amount sold of
up to $ 19, 268, 571. On September 24, 2024, the Company filed a prospectus supplement to amend the shelf registration
statement to update the maximum amount eligible to be sold under the ATM Agreement to $ 75 million. As of December
31,2622-2024 , under the ATM Agreement , the Company has sold 3—2-mihien-1, 779, 967 shares of Common Stock in 2024
at an average price per share of $ 1. 65 and received 66-pershare;nect proceeds of effering-eests-approximately $ 3. 6
million, after deducting commissions and other fees of $ 0. 3-13 million . F- 16 On April 24 , resulting-2024 the Company
settled a claim submitted by certain shareholders under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act involving the
Company that claimed illegal profits were earned on stock transactions involving insiders of the Company. After
investigation, the Company informed the insider, Bay Shore Trust, of the claim and came to agreement with the
shareholders, whereby requiring the disgorgement of profits by the insider back to the Company in net-proceeds-the
amount of $ 2-9-miltien-148, 703, which was recorded in additional paid in capital in the accompanying financial
statements . In June 2022, the Company’ s Board of Directors adopted, and its stockholders approved, the Company’ s 2022
Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended and restated in August 2023, (*“ 2022 Omnibus Plan ). The 2022 Omnibus Plan authorizes
the grant of incentive stock options, within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, to the Company’ s
employees and any of its parent and subsidiary corporations’ employees, and for the grant of non- nenstatutery—-- statutory
stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, performance units and performance shares to the
Company’ s employees, directors, and consultants and any of its future subsidiary corporations’ employees and consultants. On
September 12, 2024, the Company held its 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “ Annual Meeting ) in which it
was voted upon to increase the shares provided under the plan from 2, 000, 000 shares to 5, 000, 000 shares as
summarized below. The 2022 Omnibus Plan provides that 2-§ , 000, 000 shares of the Company’ s Common Stock are reserved
for issuance under the 2022 Omnibus Plan, all of which may be issued pursuant to the exercise of incentive stock options. The
fair value of each option award is estimated on the grant date using the Black- Scholes valuation model that uses assumptions
for expected volatility, expected dividends, expected term, and the risk- free interest rate. Expected price volatility is based on
the historical volatilities of a peer group as the Company does not have a trading history for its shares prior to its [PO. Industry
peers consist of several public companies in the biotech industry similar to the Company in size, stage of life cycle and product
indications. The Company intends to continue to consistently apply this process using the same or similar public companies until
a sufficient amount of historical information regarding the volatility of the Company’ s own stock price becomes available, or
unless circumstances change such that the identified companies are no longer similar to the Company, in which case, more
suitable companies whose share prices are publicly available would be utilized in the calculation. Expected term of options
granted is derived using the * simplified method ” which computes expected term as the average of the sum of the vesting term
plus contract term. The risk- free rate is based on the 5- year U. S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The
Company recognizes forfeitures as they occur. F=8-During the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , a total of 635-3 , 66+
599, 000 options to purchase Common Stock, with an aggregate fair market value of approximately $ 2. #5-79 million were
;Dranted to the Company S executlve officers aﬁd- mdndgement and consultants of the Company. Optlons have a term of 10

the second anniversary of the grant ddte of-gran v Y h v
year-anntversary-of date-of grant. As of December 31 2—92—3—2024 optlons exerc1sable totaled 2, 348 720. The Company
recognized approximately $ 1. 9 million in stock- based compensation in 2024. there-There was approximately $ 1. 3-5
million of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested share- based compensation awards granted. These costs will be
expensed ever-through the next-two-years-second quarter of 2026 . F- 17 The following is option activity during the year
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023: Schedule of Stock Optlon Acthlty Number of Shares Weighted Avemge Exelc1se Price

Contractudl Llfe (qurs) Wetghfedﬁf&age—ExefeBe&lﬁeeNtﬁﬁbeﬁE*efeﬁaHe—Amnegdte lntr1n51c Pﬂee—Value Outstandmg
as January 1, 2023 750, 000 $ 5 9. 4 $-- Options granted 635, 001 $ 5. 55- $- Forfeitures (170, 000) $ 5- $- Outstanding as
December 31, 2023 1, 215, 001 $ S. 29 8. 7 $- Options granted 3, 599, 000 5 1. 66-15 - 5-66-986-$- Expired (268 , 886) 66+-5-
9-5 5. 05- 60-382;-500-5- Forfeitures (309, 449) $ 5-4 . 61-68 - +6-06-$- Outstanding as December 31, 2024 4, 235, 666-666 $
1.83 9.2 $ 135, 200 Exercisable, December 31, 2024 2, 348, 720 $ 2. 23 8 . 6 § 120 656236, 886 600—12145-66+612,500
$-—Key assumptions used to value stock options during the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 are as follows: Schedule of Key
Assumptions Used to Value Stock OptionsExpected priee-volatility 88-58 . 6446 - H6-152 . 64-45 9% Risk- free interest rate 3.

5+49 - 4. 42-56 o Weighted-average-fair-values-Exercise Price $ 0. 71- § 1. 57 Expected term ( years grants-post—split) $3-



54585 - 384-Weighted-average-expeeteddifeinyears-5 —6-. 5 years Dividend yield- Oa-Mareh25-During the year ended
December 31 . 2024, a total 0o£486-500 , 000 restricted epﬁens—te—petfehase—eeﬂafﬂeﬂ—swekstock units (“ RSU ”) , with an
aggregate fair mdrket value of approximately $ 0. +-6 million were granted to the Company’ s IndependentBoard-of Direetors
Chief Executive Officer under the 2022 Omnibus Incentive Plan . These eption-RSU’ s vest as follows: (i) 50 % on date-of
grant-and-February 12, 2025 (ii) 50 % at 6- month anniversary of date of grant. The awards were fair valued using the
closing price of the stock of $ | ’y‘e&l’—aﬂ-ﬂr‘v‘eﬁaﬁ—a{—éﬁe-&f;gf&ﬂt— Gn—Mafeh%6-I9 on December 6th , 2024 . As s-atetal-of
450-December 31 , 202 options-top mmon e g he-there Company-was approximately $ 0.
5 million unrecogmzed compensatlon cost related to unvested RSU s exeeuﬁve—efﬁeefs—awards granted . These eptionr
west-costs will be expensed in 2025. F- 18 MIRA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 The following is RSU activity during the year ended December 31,
2024: Schedule of Restricted Stock Unit Activity Number of Restricted Shares Outstanding as feHews-December 31,
2023- RSU’ s granted 500, 000 Expired- Forfeitures- Outstanding as December 31, 2024 500, 000 In connection with
various transactions and the IPO summarized below, the Company issue stock warrants. Warrant activity for the year
ended December 31, 2024 is summarized below : SCHEDULE OF WARRANT ACTIVITY Weighted Weighted Average
Number of Average Exercise Remaining Contractual Aggregate Warrants Price Term ( +Years ) Intrinsic Value Balance
Outstanding as January Se%wemeﬂths—ffem—th&éat&e-f—gf&m—&ﬂd-fnﬁée—%r&t—l ye&r—&ﬁﬂwefsaﬁ—at—éate—e-ﬁgf&nt— 2023- $---
Granted 1, 763,570 $ 3 . 88 S Both-a ren rgrantshave-a-term ears n-the-grant-date-. 0- Balance
Outstanding as December 31, 2023 1, 763, 570 $3.88 4 6- Granted- $--- Exerclsed- $--- Balance Outstanding as
December 31, 2024 1, 763, 570 $ 3. 88 3. 6- Exercisable, December 31, 2024 1, 763, 570 $ 3. 88 3. 6- MIRALOGX warrants
The Company issued to MIRALOGX a common stock purchase warrant on November 15, 2023 giving MIRALOGX the right
to purchase up to 700, 000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $ 2. 00 per share. This warrant will expire five years
after the date of grant. F=—9-The fair value of the warrants were estimated on the grant date using the Black- Scholes valuation
model and level 3 inputs based on assumptions for expected volatility, expected dividends, expected term, and the risk- free
interest rate, which resulted in § 1. 8 million of warrant expense-value . This cost was recorded as-interestexpense-in General
and Administrative expenses on the accompanying statement of operations and additional paid in capital on the accompanying
balance sheet as of December 31, 2023 Key assumptions used to value warrants in November 2023 are as follows Schedule
of Key Assumptions Used to Value Underwriter WarrantsExpected price volatility 127 . 11 % Risk- free interest rate 4.
52 % Fair Market Value of underlying Common Stock $ 2. 95 Expected Term in years S years Dividend yield- F- 19 Bay
Shore Trust warrants In consideration of the line of credit provided by the Bay Shore Trust, the Company issued to the Bay
Shore Trust a common stock purchase warrant on April 28, 2023 giving the Bay Shore Trust the right to purchase up to 1, 000,
000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of § 5. 00 per share. This warrant will expire five years after the date of grant.
There are 1, 000, 000 warrants outstanding at December 31, 2023. The fair value of the warrants were estimated on the grant
date using the Black- Scholes valuation model and level 3 inputs based on assumptions for expected volatility, expected
dividends, expected term, and the risk- free interest rate, which resulted in $ 3. 5 million of deferred financing costs. This cost
was recorded as deferred financing costs and additional paid in capital on the accompanying balance sheet and is amortized
straight- line over the term of the line of credit (which is 24 months). Associated amortization of deferred finance costs is
recorded to interest expense on the 2023 condensed income statement of operations. Subsequent to the IPO, the Bay Shore Trust
line of credit was paid in full early, efresulting in $ 2. 8 million remaining in deferred financing costs . These costs were
recorded as interest expense on the accompanying statement of operations with the offsetting entry clearing the balance of
amortization in deferred finance costs. Key assumptions used to value warrants in April 2023 are as followsExpected price
volatility 88. 01 % Risk- free interest rate 3. 51 % Fair Market Value of underlying Common Stock $ 1. 00 Expected
Term in years 5 years Dividend yield- Underwriter warrants In connection with the IPO, the Company issued 63, 750 warrants
to purchase common stock to the IPO underwriter (or its designees) at an exercise price of § 7. 00 which will expire in the four-
and- a- half- year period commencing six months after the commencement of sales in the IPO. The warrants will be exercisable
at any time and from time to time, in whole or in part, during the four- and- a- half- year period commencing six months after
the commencement of sales in the IPO. The warrants provide for registration rights (including a one- time demand registration
right and piggyback registration rights that expire 5 years from the commencement of sales of the offering) and customary anti-
dilution provisions as permitted under FINRA Rule 51 1() (g) (8) Key dssumptlons used to value underwriter warrants in August
2023 are-were as follows: Expected Sehed m § arran peeted-price volatility 98. 53 %
Risk- free interest rate 4. 16 % Wetghted—a—ver&ge—f&rr—Falr va-}ues-Market Value of underlylng Common Stock § 5. 297

Wetg-hted—ewemge—e*peefed—Expected -1-1-fe—Term in years 5 years Dividend yleld E&ﬂamgs—Per—Sh&fe—Btmﬂg—t-he—ye&r—eﬂde&

e do et—F- 20 Note 16
9. Segment Informatlon The E—mp%eymeﬁ%greemeﬁs—@nﬁ*ﬂ%—%@%—ﬂ&e{ompany eﬂ-tefed—rnte—operates in one
reportable segment related to the development am-and employment-agreement-with-Mr-commercialization of
pharmaceuticals targeting neurologic and neuropsychiatric disorders . The CODM fOFEer—Ad‘ﬂﬂ‘lﬂV—pﬂfSﬁaﬂt—tﬁ-Whteh
Mhérmrnev—seﬁ‘es—as—the Company is the Chlef Executlve Officer (the “ CEO ”) The C ompany S CEO reviews operatlng
results Chi eetttv —Mr—Am y 3

be-on an aggregate at-—wn-l-l—bas1s and manages ean




; vESas lhc Company’ s Ghtef—operatlons asa
whole for the purpose of evaluatlng Frnaneta—l—ﬁnanclal Qfﬁeeﬁ)n—performance and allocating resources. Accordingly, the
Company has determined that it has a full—time-single reportable and operating segment structure. The CEO uses
aggregate net loss to allocate resources in the annual budgetmg and forecastlng process and also uses that measure as a
basis for evaluating financial performance regularly —vs- h i
wH—be—errarr&HuH—b&sts—artd—e&n—be—ter&nnated—h ett-her—Ms—X‘&nez—eH-he—eempafw—comparlng actual results at—&ny—t—rme

forecasts The accountmg pohcles of €h a1 hteh v
Gha-rrman—smgle segment are the same as those descrlbed in the summary of s1gn1ﬁcant accountmg pohcles w1th1n Note 1
; Reftp The CEO assesses performance for the Company and decides how to
allocate resources based on the aggregate net loss that his— is also reported employment-wilt-be-on the income statement as
net loss a—paﬁ-—&me—baﬂs—whefeby—laf The measure Gh&pm&n—wet&d—da*eteé@% segment assets hts— is reported-ful-l
arratrS-ortnccompan anca 3 B y WotrGoc-01
an at- will basls and could ...... S cmploymcnl agreement to mdlcdtc lml he the balance sheets Werks—pai—t-—t—nﬁe—eﬁ—&n—as total

=n

with-Ch Nieh S At vhtehMr—Nteh s-served-as-the ( ompany’ s revenue, 51gn1ﬁcant segment
expenses and other segment expenses Schedule of Segment Expenses and Other Segment Expenses 2024 2023 Years
Ended December 31, 2024 2023 Revenues $ — $ — Less segment expenses: Research and development 3, 305, 575 1, 572,
962 General €eunseland administrative 4, 712, 753 6, 499, 537 Loss from operations $ 8, 018, 328 8, 526, 049 Plus:
Interest income (expense) 165, 669 (3, 456, 294) Segment Net loss $ 7, 852, 659 $ 11, 982, 343 Note 10. Subsequent Events
Acquisition Letter of Intent On March 19, 2025, MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “ Company ) entered into a binding
letter of intent (the “ LOI ) with SKNY Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“ SKNY ”), a privately held Delaware corporation, to
acquire SKNY through a stock exchange transaction (the “ Acquisition ). The acquisition will bring SKNY- 1, a novel
oral drug candidate targeting weight loss and smoking cessation — two of the leading causes of preventable death —
into MIRA’ s development pipeline. As part of the agreement, SKNY will provide a $ 5 million capital infusion in cash or
cash equivalents, further strengthening MIRA’ s financial position and supporting future growth initiatives. SKNY
holds exclusive rights to its compounds in the United States, Canada, and Mexico which is license from Miralogx, a
related party of the Company . Under the terms of the LOIL, SKNY will merge into the Company through a stock
exchange, with each outstanding share of SKNY’ s common stock being exchanged for shares of MIRA’ s common stock.
The exact exchange ratio will be determined by an independent third- party valuation firm (the “ Independent Valuator
) based on the relative values of both companies. The completion of the Acquisition is contingent upon the Independent
Valuator determining that SKNY’ s valuation is at least equal to or greater than that of the Company. Both parties have
agreed to a 90- day mutual due diligence period, during which they will work in good faith to negotiate and execute a
definitive stock purchase agreement -Mr-and any related transaction documents . Nieholoudisreeetve-Upon completion of
the Acquisition, all of SKNY’ s assets, including its drug candidates, will become wholly owned by MIRA, further
expanding the Company’ s development pipeline ATM Offering From January 1, 2025 through March 28, 2025, under
the ATM Agreement, the Company sold and issued 2, 802 shares of Common Stock at an initial-base-salary-average price
per share of $ 1. 33, and received net proceeds of approximately $ 0. 675-003 million peryear—OnAugast+7, 26023, Mr-
Mehe-leuehs—reeewed—a—after deductlng commissions and other fees of $ 0. 925—0003 mllllon eash—benus—net—ef—feeleral—st&te—

accordance with Section 13 or 1* d) 0[ the [\chanw Act, lhc registrant has duly caused 1hls report lo be sluncd on its behalf by
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. MIRA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. Date: Aprit-+March 28 , 2624-2025 By: / S



Erez Aminov Name: Erez Aminov Title: Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) By: / S / Michelle Yanez Name:
Michelle Yanez Title: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has
been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. Person
Capacity Date / s / Erez Aminov Chief Executive Officer and Chairman Apri-+March 28 , 2024-2025 Erez Aminov /s /
Michelle Yanez Chief Financial Officer ApriH-March 28 | 2624-2025 Michelle Yanez / s / MiehaeHerman-Matthew Whalen
Director ApriH-March 28 , 2624-2025 MiehaeHerman-Matthew Whalen / s / Matthew Del Giudice Director Apri-+March
28 , 2024-2025 Matthew Del Giudice /s / Denil Shekhat Director Apri-+March 28 |, 2624-2025 Denil Shekhat /s / Edward
Mchhuson Dnulor A—pﬂ-l—l—March 28 %9%4—2025 Edw dld MaePhuson EXhlbll 4.4 Exhlblt 23 DE—SGRI—P—T—IGN—QF
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thls Annudl Repon on F01m 1() K of MIRA Pharm'lceutlcals lnc
(the Company ), relatmg to the consohdated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and

the related statements of operations and comprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows, and the related notes
for each of the years in the two- year period ended December 31, 2023. Our report includes an explanatory paragraph
about the existence of substantial doubt concerning the Company’ s ability to continue as a going concern. March 28,
2025 Exhibit 31. 1 CERTIFICATION I, Erez Aminov, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of MIRA
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., certify that: 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10- K of MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I are
responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 5+ 15
(e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (1))
for the registrant and have : a —) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report
is being prepared; b —) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; ¢ =
) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant > s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and d =) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial
reporting; and5. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the-audit committee eftheregistrant—s-board-of-direetors— a )
All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and b —) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting. Date: Apri+-March 28 , 2024-2025 / s / Erez Aminov Erez Aminov Chief
Executlve Offlcen and Ghatﬂﬁ&nE-)ehi-b-rt—Chalrman (Prlnclpal Executlve Officer) Exhlblt 31.21, Mlchelle Yanez, MBA

fﬂ—aﬁd—léd—%é—éﬂ)—feﬁ&mgﬁfr&ﬂt—aﬁd-have—a—Demgned such dlsclosure controls and procedules or caused such dlsclosure

controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in



which this report is being prepared; b ) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles; ¢ —) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and d ) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s fourth mestreeent-fiscal quarter in that has materially affected, or is
reasonably hkely to mdtendlly affect the reustrant s internal control over fmdnClal repomné, andDate ﬁﬂdé—’Phe—reg-rsfr&ﬂt—s

i ditors-a atteh i tstran i sba Apﬂ-l—l—MarchZS 2—9%4—2025/3/
Mlchelle deez Michelle Yanez , MBA Chief Flmncml OﬁlceI —T—reaSﬂfef(Prlnmpal Financial Officer and SeeretaryExhibit
Principal Accounting Officer) Exhlblt 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO Purstantto-Seetion906-of the-Sarbanes-
OxleyAetof200218 U. S. C. SECTION 1350 yPurswantto-Seetiorr, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 of
the-Sarbanes-OF THE SARBANES - OXLEY ACT OF 2002 In connection with e*}ey—Aet—e-f—él-S—U—S—%Bée)—the
uﬂéers—rg-ﬂed-efﬁeer—annual report of MIRA Phdrm'lceutlcals Inc. —a—F-}eﬂda—eefper&t-teﬂ-(the Company ”) -deeshereby

Report-on Form 10- K for the year ended
December 31, 2—92—3—2024 as filed w1th the Securltles and Exchange Commlssmn on the date hereof (the *“ Report Form—10-
k-7), I, Erez Aminov, Chlef Executive Officer of the Company , certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that: 1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section

13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and €2 ¥. The information contained in the Report Ferm3o-—J—fairly
presents in dH ﬁa&terta-ls— materlal respects the fmdnClal condltlon and fes'u-l-ts—~ result of operatlons of the Company —Ba’fe—

E—xehange—A:et— Exhlblt 22 2 In connectlon with Pufsu&nt—te—Seeﬁeﬂ—%é-ef—the annual report S&rbanes-—ex}ey%et—e-f—zee%

H8US5-€1350)theundersigned-offieer-of MIRA Pharmaceuticals, Inc. -aHleridaeerperationthe “ Company ) on Form
10- K for the year ended December 31 , doeshereby-2024, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the

date hereof (the “ Report ”), I, Michelle Yanez, MBA, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to the

best-18 U. S. C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of saeh-offieersknowledge-and-beliefthe Sarbanes- Oxley Act of
2002 . that: Date: Aprit+March 28 , 26242025 / s / Michelle Yanez , MBA Michelle Yanez, MBA Chief Financial Officer 5

T—feasufef(Prlnclpal Financial Officer and -Seefet&ry-E-)ﬂ%rbtt@-?'—l—Prmclpal Accounting Officer)



